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Certara, Inc.

Unless otherwise indicated, references to the “Company,” “Certara,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Certara, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this “Quarterly Report”) contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning
of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), which are subject to the “safe harbor” created by those sections.
All statements (other than statements of historical facts) in this Quarterly Report regarding the prospects of the industry and
our prospects, plans, financial position and business strategy may constitute forward-looking statements. In addition,
forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “should,”
“expect,” “might,” “intend,” “will,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “believe,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue,”
“suggest,” “project” or “target” or the negatives of these terms or variations of them or similar terminology. Although we
believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot provide any assurance
that these expectations will prove to be correct. Such statements reflect the current views of our management with respect
to our operations, results of operations and future financial performance. The following factors are among those that may
cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements:

• our ability to compete within our market;
• any deceleration in, or resistance to, the acceptance of model-informed biopharmaceutical discovery and

development;
• our ability to retain key personnel or recruit additional qualified personnel;
• changes or delays in government regulation relating to the biopharmaceutical industry;
• increasing competition, regulation and other cost pressures within the pharmaceutical and biotechnology

industries;
• trends in research and development (“R&D”) spending, the use of third parties by biopharmaceutical companies

and a shift toward more R&D occurring at smaller biotechnology companies;
• our ability to successfully enter new markets, increase our customer base and expand our relationships with

existing customers;
• the occurrence of natural disasters and epidemic diseases, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, which may result in

delays or cancellations of customer contracts or decreased utilization by our employees;
• our ability to sustain recent growth rates;
• any future acquisitions and our ability to successfully integrate such acquisitions;
• consolidation within the biopharmaceutical industry;
• reduction in the use of our products by academic institutions;
• pricing pressures due to increased customer utilization of our products;
• any delays or defects in our release of new or enhanced software or other biosimulation tools;
• failure of our existing customers to renew their software licenses or any delays or terminations of contracts or

reductions in scope of work by our existing customers;
• our ability to accurately estimate costs associated with our fixed-fee contracts;
• risks related to our contracts with government customers, including the ability of third parties to challenge our

receipt of such contracts;
• the accuracy of our addressable market estimates;
• the length and unpredictability of our software and service sales cycles;
• our ability to successfully operate a global business;
• our ability to comply with applicable anti-corruption, trade compliance and economic sanctions laws and

regulations;;
• our ability to perform our services in accordance with contractual requirements, regulatory standards and ethical

considerations;
• the loss of more than one of our major customers;
• our future capital needs;
• adverse developments affecting the financial services industry may delay or prevent us or our customers from

accessing cash or cash equivalents, which could negatively impact the timely payment to vendors or timely
receipt of payment from customers;

• our ability to realize the anticipated revenue reflected in our bookings;
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• any disruption in the operations of the third-party providers who host our software solutions or any limitations on
their capacity or interference with our use;

• our ability to reliably meet our data storage and management requirements, or the experience of any failures or
interruptions in the delivery of our services over the internet;

• our ability to comply with the terms of any licenses governing our use of third-party open source software utilized
in our software solutions;

• any unauthorized access to or use of customer or ither proprietary or confidential data or other breach of our
cybersecurity measures;

• our ability to comply with applicable privacy and cybersecurity laws;
• our ability to adequately enforce or defend our ownership and use of our intellectual property and other

proprietary rights;
• any allegations that we are infringing, misappropriating or otherwise violating a third party’s intellectual property

rights;
• risks related to litigation against us;
• the adequacy of our insurance coverage and our ability to obtain adequate insurance coverage in the future;
• our ability to meet the obligations under our current or future indebtedness as they become due and have sufficient

capital to operate our business and react to changes in the economy or industry;
• any limitations on our ability to pursue our business strategies due to restrictions under our current or future

indebtedness or inability to comply with any restrictions under such indebtedness;
• any impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets;
• our ability to use our net operating loss (“NOLs”) and R&D tax credit carryforwards to offset future taxable

income;
• the accuracy of our estimates and judgments relating to our critical accounting policies and any changes in

financial reporting standards or interpretations;
• any inability to design, implement, and maintain effective internal controls when required by law, or inability to

timely remediate internal controls that are deemed ineffective; and
• the other factors described elsewhere in this Quarterly Report, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31, 2022 (“2022 Annual Report”), and in the other documents and reports we file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. The forward-looking statements in
this Quarterly Report are based on our beliefs, assumptions and expectations of future performance, taking into account the
information currently available to us. These statements are only predictions based upon our current expectations and
projections about future events. There are important factors, including those described in the section titled “Risk Factors”
and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report and in our 2022 Annual Report, which could cause our actual results, level of
activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from the results, level of activity, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing
environment. New risks emerge from time to time and it is not possible for our management to predict all risks, nor can we
assess the impact of all factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause
actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements we may make in this Quarterly
Report. Such risk factors may be updated from time to time in our periodic filings with the SEC. Our periodic filings are
accessible on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee
that the future results, levels of activity, performance and events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking
statements will be achieved or occur.  The forward-looking statements made in this Quarterly Report relate only to events
as of the date on which the statements are made. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update publicly
any forward-looking statements for any reason after the date of this Quarterly Report to conform these statements to actual
results or to changes in our expectations.

In addition, statements that “we believe” and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject.
These statements are based upon information available to us as of the date of this Quarterly Report, and while we believe
such information forms a reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and our
statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially
available relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely
upon these statements.
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Channels for Disclosure of Information

Investors and others should note that we may announce material information to the public through filings with the SEC, our
Investors Relations website (https://ir.certara.com), press releases, public conference calls and public webcasts. We use
these channels to communicate with the public about the Company, our products, our services and other matters. We
encourage our investors, the media and others to review the information disclosed through these channels as such
information could be deemed to be material information. The information on such channels, including on our website, is
not incorporated by reference in this Quarterly Report and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any
other filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except as expressly set forth by specific reference in such a
filing. Please note that this list of disclosure channels may be updated from time to time.
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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

CERTARA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(UNAUDITED)

     MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31, 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AND SHARE DATA)      2023      2022
Assets         
Current assets:         

Cash and cash equivalents $ 244,135 $ 236,586
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for credit losses of $736 and $1,250, respectively   82,404   82,584
Restricted cash   3,103   3,102
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   18,612   19,980

Total current assets   348,254   342,252
Other assets:          

Property and equipment, net   2,317   2,400
Operating lease right-of-use assets 13,405 14,427
Goodwill   718,841   717,743
Intangible assets, net of $231,384 and $217,705, respectively   476,554   486,782
Deferred income taxes 3,703 3,703
Other long-term assets   3,683   5,615

Total assets $ 1,566,757 $ 1,572,922
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity          
Current liabilities:          

Accounts payable $ 4,326 $ 7,533
Accrued expenses   30,008   35,403
Current portion of deferred revenue   51,654   52,209
Current portion of long-term debt   3,020   3,020
Current operating lease liabilities 4,808 4,968
Other current liabilities   —   25

Total current liabilities   93,816   103,158
Long-term liabilities:          

Deferred revenue, net of current portion   2,780   2,815
Deferred income taxes   62,920   65,046
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 9,244 10,133
Long-term debt, net of current portion and debt discount   289,546   289,988
Other long-term liabilities   23,396   22,121

Total liabilities   481,702   493,261
Commitments and contingencies          
Stockholders' equity:          

Preferred shares, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 authorized as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
respectively, no shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively — —
Common shares, $0.01 par value, 600,000,000 shares authorized, 160,218,109 and 159,676,150 shares
issued as of March 31 ,2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively; 159,839,743  and 159,525,943 shares
outstanding as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively   1,601   1,596
Additional paid-in capital   1,158,708   1,150,168
Accumulated deficit   (59,515)   (60,873)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (7,320)   (8,230)
Treasury stock at cost, 378,366 and 150,207 shares at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
respectively (8,419) (3,000)

Total stockholders’ equity   1,085,055   1,079,661
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,566,757 $ 1,572,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements
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CERTARA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE ICOME(LOSS)

(UNAUDITED)

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,     
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AND SHARE DATA)      2023      2022     
Revenues $ 90,301 $ 81,551
Cost of revenues   34,856   32,789
Operating expenses:    

Sales and marketing   8,002   6,111
Research and development   9,287   7,548
General and administrative   19,772   18,339
Intangible asset amortization   10,535   10,149
Depreciation and amortization expense   411   482

Total operating expenses   48,007   42,629
Income from operations   7,438   6,133

Other expenses:    
Interest expense   (5,475)   (3,228)
Net other income   506   841

Total other expenses   (4,969)   (2,387)
Income before income taxes   2,469   3,746
Provision for income taxes   1,111   1,536

Net income   1,358   2,210
Other comprehensive income (loss):    

Foreign currency translation adjustment   2,601   (3,184)
Change in fair value from interest rate swap, net of tax of $(588) and $60,
respectively (1,691) 64

Total other comprehensive income (loss)   910   (3,120)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 2,268 $ (910)

Net income per share attributable to common stockholders:
Basic $ 0.01 $ 0.01
Diluted $ 0.01 $ 0.01

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 158,177,025 155,936,953
Diluted   159,727,412   159,160,321

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements
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CERTARA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)
ACCUMULATED 

ADDITIONAL  OTHER  TOTAL 

(IN THOUSANDS, COMMON STOCK PAID-IN  ACCUMULATED  COMPREHENSIVE 
TREASURY  

STOCK STOCKHOLDERS' 
EXCEPT SHARE DATA)    SHARES   AMOUNT   CAPITAL    DEFICIT    LOSS   SHARES  AMOUNT   EQUITY
Balance as of December 31,
2021 159,660,048 $ 1,596 $ 1,119,821 $ (75,604) $ (3,926) (1,100) $ (38) $ 1,041,849
Equity-based compensation
awards — — 7,513 — — — — 7,513
Restricted stock withheld for
tax liability — — — — — (1,774) (47) (47)
Change in fair value from
interest rate swap, net of tax — — — — 64 — — 64
Net income — — — 2,210 — — — 2,210
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — — — (3,184) — — (3,184)
Balance as of March 31, 2022 159,660,048 $ 1,596 $ 1,127,334 $ (73,394) $ (7,046) (2,874) $ (85) $ 1,048,405

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements
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CERTARA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)
ACCUMULATED 

ADDITIONAL  OTHER  TOTAL 

(IN THOUSANDS, COMMON STOCK PAID-IN  ACCUMULATED  COMPREHENSIVE 
TREASURY  

STOCK STOCKHOLDERS' 
EXCEPT SHARE DATA)    SHARES   AMOUNT   CAPITAL    DEFICIT    LOSS   SHARES  AMOUNT   EQUITY
Balance as of
December 31, 2022   159,676,150 $ 1,596 $ 1,150,168 $ (60,873) $ (8,230) (150,207) $ (3,000) $ 1,079,661
Equity-based compensation
expense, net of forfeiture   — — 8,543 — — — — 8,543
Common shares issued for
share-based compensation
awards and shares withheld
for tax 608,179 6 (4) — — (228,159) (5,419) (5,417)
Restricted stock forfeiture* (66,220) (1) 1 — — — — —
Change in fair value from
interest rate swap, net of tax — — — — (1,691) — — (1,691)
Net income — — — 1,358 — — — 1,358
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax   — — — — 2,601 — — 2,601
Balance as of March 31, 2023 160,218,109 $ 1,601 $ 1,158,708 $ (59,515) $ (7,320) (378,366) $ (8,419) $ 1,085,055

*   Legal forfeiture occurred in Q1 2023; and the accounting forfeiture occurred in Q3 2022.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements
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CERTARA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
(IN THOUSANDS)      2023      2022     
Cash flows from operating activities:        
Net income $ 1,358 $ 2,210
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment   411   482
Amortization of intangible assets   13,113   12,450
Amortization of debt issuance costs   383   386
(Recovery of) provision for credit losses   (168)   34
Loss on retirement of assets   4   5
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 1,261   —
Equity-based compensation expense   8,543   7,513
Deferred income taxes (1,524) (715)
Changes in assets and liabilities    
   Accounts receivable   647 (3,244)

Prepaid and other assets   559   653
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   (14,196)   (11,830)
Deferred revenue   (1,034)   2,556
Change in other liabilities 600 (697)

Net cash provided by operating activities   9,957   9,803
Cash flows from investing activities:          
Capital expenditures   (317)   (506)
Capitalized development costs (2,360)   (2,187)
Investment in intangible assets (54) —
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired   —   (5,983)

Net cash used in investing activities   (2,731)   (8,676)
Cash flows from financing activities:          

Payments on long-term debt and finance lease obligations (780) (826)
Payments on financing component of interest rate swap   — (646)
Payment of taxes on shares and units withheld for employee taxes (70) (48)

Net cash used by financing activities   (850)   (1,520)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash   1,174   (1,171)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash   7,550   (1,564)
Cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash, at beginning of period   239,688   186,624
Cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash, at end of period $ 247,238 $ 185,060
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information          
Cash paid for interest $ 5,196 $ 3,547
Cash paid for taxes $ 517 $ 2,769

   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements
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CERTARA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)
(UNAUDITED)

1. Description of Business

Certara, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (together, the “Company”) deliver software products and technology-driven
services to customers to efficiently carry out and realize the full benefits of biosimulation in drug discovery, preclinical and
clinical research, regulatory submissions and market access. The Company is a global leader in biosimulation, and the
Company’s biosimulation software and technology-driven services help optimize, streamline, or even waive certain clinical
trials to accelerate programs, reduce costs, and increase the probability of success. The Company’s regulatory science and
market access software and services are underpinned by technologies such as regulatory submissions software, natural
language processing, and Bayesian analytics. When combined, these solutions allow the Company to offer customers end-
to-end support across the entire product life cycle.

The Company has operations in the United States, Australia, Canada, China, France, Germany, India, Italy, Japan,
Luxembourg, Netherlands, Philippines, Poland, Portugal, Spain, Switzerland and the United Kingdom.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

There have been no changes other than what is discussed herein to the Company’s significant accounting policies as
compared to the significant accounting policies described in Note  2 to the Company’s audited consolidated financial
statements included in our 2022 Annual Report. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes as of and for the year ended December 31,
2022.

(a) Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include, among other estimates, assumptions
used in the allocation of the transaction price to separate performance obligations, estimates towards the measure of
  progress of completion on fixed-price service contracts, the determination of fair values and useful lives of long-lived
assets as well as intangible assets, goodwill, allowance for credit losses for accounts receivable, recoverability of deferred
tax assets, recognition of deferred revenue, valuation of interest rate swaps, determination of fair value of equity-based
awards, measurement of fair value of contingent consideration,  and assumptions used in testing for impairment of long-
lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and such differences may be material to the consolidated
financial statements.

(b)   Unaudited Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2023, the condensed consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss) for the three months ended March 31,  2023 and 2022, the condensed
consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity for the three months ended March 31,  2023 and 2022, the condensed
consolidated statements of cash flows for the three months ended March 31,  2023 and 2022, and the related interim
disclosures are unaudited.
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The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments necessary to fairly state the
financial position and the results of the Company’s operations and cash flows for interim periods in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. Certain amounts reported in prior periods have been reclassified to conform with the current presentation. Interim
period results are not necessarily indicative of results of operations or cash flows for a full year or any subsequent interim
period. The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
2022 audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. The information as of December 31, 2022 in the
Company’s condensed consolidated balance sheet included herein is derived from the Company’s audited consolidated
financial statements included in the Company’s 2022 Annual Report. 

(c) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2023-
01, “Common Control Arrangements (Topic 842),” which provide private companies and not-for-profit organizations that
are not conduit bond obligors with a practical expedient to use the written terms and conditions of a common control
arrangement to determine whether a lease exists and, if so, the classification of and accounting for that lease. In addition,
the ASU requires all entities including public companies to amortize leasehold improvements associated with common
control leases over the useful life to the common control group. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting this guidance on its condensed consolidated financial statements.

(d)   Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

(e) Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820 10, “Fair Value Measurements” (“ASC 820-
10”), which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in U.S. GAAP, and requires certain
disclosures about fair value measurements.

ASC 820 10 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction. Fair value measurement is
based on a hierarchy of observable or unobservable inputs. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used
to measure fair value.

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active markets for identical securities as of
the reporting date;

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are other significant observable inputs, including quoted prices for similar
securities, interest rates, credit risk etc. as of the reporting date, and the fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies; and

Level  3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations where there is little, or no market
activity of the securities and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions relating to the pricing of the securities
including assumptions regarding risk.

If the inputs used to measure fair value fall at different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. For the acquisitions noted in Note 5, the fair value
measurement methods used to estimate the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition dates
utilized a number of significant unobservable inputs of Level 3 assumptions. These assumptions included, among other
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things, projections of future operating results, implied fair value of assets using an income approach by preparing a
discounted cash flow analysis, and other subjective assumptions.

Interest rate swaps are valued in the market using discounted cash flows techniques. These techniques incorporate Level 1
and Level 2 inputs. The market inputs are utilized in the discounted cash flows’ calculation considering the instrument’s
term, notional amount, discount rate and credit risk. Significant inputs to the derivative instrument valuation model for
interest rate swaps are observable in active markets and are classified as Level 2 in the hierarchy.

Contingent liabilities related to acquisitions are measured at fair value using Level 3 unobservable inputs. The Company's
estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but that are uncertain and involve significant
judgments by management. Any changes in the fair value of these contingent liabilities are included in the earnings in the
condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

To estimate the fair value of the contingent consideration liability, management utilized a Monte Carlo simulation model to
value the earn-out based on the likelihood of reaching certain eligible revenue thresholds. Significant inputs used in the fair
value measurement of contingent consideration are the amount and timing of the acquired entity’s eligible revenue over a
three-year period subsequent to the acquisition date. At the acquisition date, the fair value of the contingent consideration
liabilities was $19.8 million.

The following table sets forth the assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring
basis by their levels in the fair value hierarchy at March 31, 2023:

     LEVEL 1      LEVEL 2      LEVEL 3      TOTAL
(In thousands)

Assets  
Money market funds $ 102,076 $ — $ — $ 102,076
Interest rate swap assets — 6,096 — 6,096

Total assets $ 102,076 $ 6,096 $ — $ 108,172

Liabilities
Contingent liabilities $ — $ — $ 21,074 $ 21,074

Total liabilities $ — $ — $ 21,074 $ 21,074

The following table sets forth the assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring
basis by their levels in the fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2022:

     LEVEL 1      LEVEL 2      LEVEL 3      TOTAL
(In thousands)

Assets  
Money market funds $ 100,999 $ — $ — $ 100,999
Interest rate swap assets — 8,374 — 8,374

Total assets $ 100,999 $ 8,374 $ — $ 109,373

Liabilities
Contingent liabilities $ — $ — $ 19,813 $ 19,813

Total liabilities $ — $ — $ 19,813 $ 19,813

For the period ended March 31, 2023, there were no transfers between the levels within the fair value hierarchy. The
Company’s Level 3 liability is the acquisition related contingent consideration liability.
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The following table summarizes the Level 3 activity of the changes in the contingent consideration liability.

MARCH 31,
     2023

(In thousands)
Beginning balance at December 31, 2022   $ 19,813
Payments —
Change in fair value 1,261

Ending balance at March 31, 2023 $ 21,074

For more information regarding fair value measurements and the fair value hierarchy, see Note 2. “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2022 Annual Report. 

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date purchased.

Restricted cash represents cash that is reserved to provide for a Company credit card program and unexpended restricted
grant funds. The restricted cash balance was $3,103 and $3,102 at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash to the amounts presented in
the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows:

     MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31, 
                2023                            2022           

(In thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 244,135 $ 236,586
Restricted cash, current   3,103   3,102
Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 247,238 $ 239,688
 
(g)   Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable includes current outstanding invoices billed to customers. Invoices are typically issued with net 30
days to net 90 days terms upon delivery of the product or upon achievement of billable events for service-based contracts.
Unbilled receivables relate to the Company’s rights to consideration for performance obligations satisfied but not billed at
the reporting date on contracts. Unbilled receivables are billed and transferred to customer accounts receivable when the
rights become unconditional. The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance.  

The Company estimates the expected credit losses for accounts receivables using historical loss data adjusted for current
economic conditions, including reasonable and supportable forecasts to estimate the relative size of credit losses to be
expected. The Company generally writes off a receivable or records a specific allowance for credit losses if the Company
determines that the receivable is not collectible. Allowances for credit losses of $736 and $1,250 were provided in the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.
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Accounts receivable consists of the following:

MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31, 
     2023      2022

(In thousands)
Trade receivables $ 69,832 $ 72,238
Unbilled receivables   12,979   11,309
Other receivables 329 287
Allowances for credit losses   (736)   (1,250)
Accounts receivable, net $ 82,404 $ 82,584

The following table presents the information regarding the allowance of accounts receivable:

MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31, 
     2023      2022

(In thousands)
Beginning balance $ 1,250 $ 262
Provision for credit losses   (164)   1,009
Charge-offs, net of recoveries (350) (21)
Ending balance $ 736 $ 1,250

(h) Derivative Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to risk from adverse fluctuations in interest rates. The Company
has chosen to manage this risk through the use of derivative financial instruments that consist of interest rate swap
contracts. Counterparties to these contracts are major financial institutions. The Company is exposed to credit loss in the
event of nonperformance by these counterparties. The Company does not use derivative instruments for trading or
speculative purposes. The objective in managing exposure to market risk is to limit the impact on cash flows. To qualify for
hedge accounting, the interest rate swaps must effectively reduce the risk exposure that they are designed to hedge. In
addition, at the inception of a qualifying cash flow hedging relationship, the underlying transaction or transactions must be,
and be expected to remain, probable of occurring in accordance with the related assertions.

FASB ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging,” requires the Company to recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair
value. The Company may enter into derivative contracts such as interest rate swap contracts that effectively convert
portions of the Company’s floating rate debt to a fixed rate, which serves to mitigate interest rate risk. The Company’s
objectives in using interest rate swaps are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate
movements. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a
counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of
the underlying notional amount.

The Company had entered into an interest rate swap agreement in May 2022 that pays a fixed interest rate and receives a
variable interest rate to modify the interest rate characteristics of term loan debt from variable to fixed in order to reduce
the impact of changes in future cash flows due to market interest rate changes. The swap agreement has a notional amount
of $230,000, a fixed rate of 2.8% and a termination date of August 31, 2025. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
  the interest swap had a fair value of $6,096 and $8,374, respectively; The fair value recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income was $6,096 and $8,374, respectively, at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022. The interest
income on derivative instruments recognized in the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) was $986 for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and there was no changes in the fair
value of the interest rate swap in interest expense for the three month ended March 31 2022.

The Company uses derivatives to manage certain interest exposures and designated all the derivatives as cash flow hedges.
The Company records derivatives at fair value on its condensed consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
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(loss). Those amounts are reclassified into interest expense in the same period during which the hedged transactions impact
earnings.

The notional amounts and fair values, locations of derivative instruments in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as
of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Interest rate swap derivative designated as cash flow hedging instruments:
March 31,

2023
December 31,

2022

(In thousands)
                                                                                                                                                  
Notional amounts $ 230,000 $ 230,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 4,261 $ 4,638
Other long-term assets $ 1,835 $ 3,736

The net amount of deferred gains related to derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges that is expected to be
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive gains into earnings over the next twelve months is $4,272.

(i) Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606 ("ASC Topic 606"), “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”, the Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

i. Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer

ii. Identification of the performance obligations in the contract

iii. Determination of the transaction price

iv. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

v. Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation

The Company’s revenue consists of fees for perpetual and term licenses for its software products, post- contract customer
support (referred to as maintenance), software as a service (“SaaS”), and professional services including training and other
revenue. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for promised goods or services.

The following describes the nature of the Company’s primary types of revenues and the revenue recognition policies as
they pertain to the types of transactions the Company enters into with its customers.

Software Licenses Revenues

Software license revenue consists primarily of sales of software licenses downloaded and installed by our customers on
their own hardware.  The license period is generally one year or less and includes an insignificant amount of customer
support to assist the customer with the software. Software license performance obligations are generally recognized upfront
at the point in time when the software license has been delivered.
Software as a Service (SaaS) Revenues

SaaS revenues consist of subscription fees for access to, and related support for, the Company’s cloud-based solutions. The
Company typically invoices subscription fees in advance in annual installments.   The invoice is initially deferred and
revenue is recognized ratably over the life of the contract. The Company’s software contracts do not typically include,
variable consideration, or options for future purchases that would not be similar to the original goods.
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Software Service Revenues

Maintenance services agreements on perpetual software consist of fees for providing software updates and for providing
technical support for software products for a specified term. Revenue allocated to maintenance services is recognized
ratably over the contract term beginning on the delivery date of each offering. Maintenance contracts generally have a term
of one year. While the transfer of control of the software training and implementation performance obligations are over
time, the services are typically started and completed within a few days. Due to the quick nature of the performance
obligation from start to finish and the insignificant amounts, the Company recognizes any software training or
implementation revenue at the completion of the service. Any unrecognized portion of amounts paid in advance for
licenses and services is recorded as deferred revenue.

Consulting Service Revenues

The Company’s primary professional services offering includes consulting services, which may be either strategic
consulting services, reporting and analysis services, regulatory writing services, or any combination of the three. The
Company’s professional services contracts are either time-and-materials or fixed fee. Service revenues are generally
recognized over time as the services are performed. Generally, these services are delivered to customers electronically.
Revenue from time-and-material contracts is recognized on an output basis as labor hours are delivered and/or direct
expenses are incurred. Revenues for fixed-price services are generally recognized over time by applying input methods to
estimate progress to completion. Accordingly, the number of resources being paid for and the varying lengths of time they
are being paid for determine the measure of progress.

Arrangements with Multiple Performance Obligations

For contracts with multiple performance obligations, such as a software license plus software training, implementation,
and/or maintenance/support, or in contracts where there are multiple software licenses, the Company determines if the
products or services are distinct and allocates the consideration to each distinct performance obligation on a relative
standalone selling price basis.  The delivery of a particular type of software and each of the user licenses would be one
performance obligation. Additionally, any training, implementation, or support and maintenance promises sold as part of
the software license agreement would be considered separate performance obligations, as those promises are distinct and
separately identifiable from the software licenses. The payment terms in these arrangements are less than one year such
that there is no significant financing component.

Contract Balances

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections results in billed accounts receivable, unbilled receivables
(contract assets), and customer advances and deposits (deferred revenue, contract liabilities) on the condensed consolidated
balance sheets. Amounts are billed as work progresses in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms, either at periodic
intervals (e.g., quarterly or monthly) or upon achievement of contractual milestones.

Contract assets relate to the Company’s rights to consideration for performance obligations satisfied but not billed at the
reporting date on contracts (i.e., unbilled revenue, a component of accounts receivable in the condensed consolidated
balance sheets). Contract assets are billed and transferred to customer accounts receivable when the rights become
unconditional. The Company typically invoices customers for term licenses, subscriptions, maintenance and support fees in
advance with payment due before the start of the subscription term, ranging from one to three years. The Company records
the amounts collected in advance of the satisfaction of performance obligations, usually over time, as a contract liability or
deferred revenue. Invoiced amounts for non-cancelable services starting in future periods are included in contract assets
and deferred revenue. The portion of deferred revenue that will be recognized within 12 months is recorded as current
deferred revenue, and the remaining portion is recorded as deferred revenue in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.
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Contract balances at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were as follows:

MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31, 
     2023 2022

(In thousands)
Contract assets $ 12,979 $ 11,309
Contract liabilities   54,434   55,024

During the first quarter of 2023, the Company recognized revenue of $24,488 related to contract liabilities at December 31,
2022.

The unsatisfied performance obligations as of March 31, 2023, were approximately $130,237. We expect to recognize
approximately $114,658 or 88.0% of this revenue over the next 12 months and the remainder thereafter.

Deferred Contract Acquisition Costs

Under ASC Topic 606, sales commissions paid to the sales force and the related employer payroll taxes, collectively
deferred contract acquisition costs, are considered incremental and recoverable costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer.

The Company recognizes an asset for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the Company expects
the benefit of those costs to be longer than one year. The Company has determined that certain sales incentive programs
meet the requirements to be capitalized. The costs capitalized are primarily sales commissions for our sales force
personnel. Capitalized costs to obtain a contract are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected period of benefit.
Amortization of capitalized costs is included in sales and marketing expenses in our condensed consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

Capitalized contract acquisition costs were $814 and $981 as of March 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, respectively, and
were included in prepaid expenses and other current assets in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Grant Revenue

The Company receives grant funding for certain specific projects from time to time. These grants specify the funds
provided are to be used exclusively to satisfy the deliverables outlined in the grant agreements.  In these agreements, both
involved parties receive and sacrifice approximately commensurate value so these are accounted for as exchange
transactions and revenue is recognized according to ASC Topic 606. Grant funding is generally provided near contract
inception, so a contract liability is initially recorded and revenue is recognized as the performance obligations are satisfied
over time.  

Sources and Timing of Revenue                 

The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied either over time or at a point in time. The following table presents the
Company’s revenue by timing of revenue recognition to understand the risks of timing of transfer of control and cash
flows:

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
     2023   2022

(In thousands)
Software licenses transferred at a point in time $ 14,498 $ 13,452
Software licenses transferred over time   18,507 15,741
Service revenues earned over time   57,296 52,358

Total $ 90,301 $ 81,551
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(j) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing the net earnings by the weighted-average number of shares
outstanding during the reporting period, without consideration for potentially dilutive securities. Diluted earnings per share
is computed by dividing the net earnings attributable to stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares and
dilutive securities outstanding during the period.

3.    Public Offerings and Other significant Shareholder Transactions

On December 11, 2020, the Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO”), pursuant to which the Company issued
and sold 14,630,000 shares of common stock and certain selling stockholders, including former controlling shareholder,
EQT AB (“EQT”), sold 18,783,250 shares of our common stock (representing the full exercise of the underwriters’ option
to purchase additional shares), at a public offering price of $23.00 per share. The Company received net proceeds of
$316,301, after deducting underwriters’ discounts and commissions. In addition, $4,408 of legal, accounting and other
offering costs, net of the tax effect of $259, were incurred in connection with the sale of the Company's common stock in
the IPO, were capitalized and offset against the proceeds received in the IPO.

The Company was party to a registration rights agreement with EQT and its affiliates, Arsenal Capital Partners
(“Arsenal”), and certain other stockholders, dated December 8, 2020. That agreement was terminated following the sale of
all of EQT’s 29,954,521 common shares in the Company to Arsenal on December 8, 2022 (the “Arsenal Transaction”).
Arsenal and the Company entered into a new registration rights agreement, dated November 3, 2022 (the “Registration
Rights Agreement”), which contains provisions that entitle Arsenal to certain rights to have their securities registered by
the Company under the Securities Act. While the Registration Rights Agreement is in effect, Arsenal is entitled to (i) four
“demand” registrations, (ii) one underwritten offering in any consecutive 90-day period, and (iii) two underwritten
offerings in any consecutive 360-day period, subject in each case to certain limitations. In addition, the Registration Rights
Agreement provides that the Company will share certain expenses of Arsenal relating to such registrations and indemnify
Arsenal against certain liabilities that may arise under the Securities Act.  In connection with the Arsenal Transaction, the
Company also entered into a letter agreement, effective December 8, 2022, with Arsenal providing that, subject to certain
exceptions, Arsenal is prohibited from transferring the shares from EQT until December 8, 2024. Also in connection with
the Arsenal Transaction, the Company entered into a stockholders agreement with Arsenal, effective December 8, 2022,
which, among other things, grants certain conditional rights to Arsenal to nominate up to two directors to our Board.

On August 11, 2022, the Company completed a secondary public offering in which certain selling stockholders, including
EQT, sold 7,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company did not offer any common stock in this
transaction and did not receive any proceeds from the sale of the shares of common stock by the selling stockholders. The
Company incurred costs of $596, recorded in general and administrative expenses, in relation to the secondary public
offering.

4. Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk have consisted principally of
cash and cash equivalent investments and trade receivables. The Company invests available cash in bank deposits,
investment-grade securities, and short-term interest-producing investments, including government obligations and other
money market instruments. At March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the investments were bank deposits, overnight
sweep accounts, and money market funds. The Company has adopted credit policies and standards to evaluate the risk
associated with sales that require collateral, such as letters of credit or bank guarantees, whenever deemed necessary.
Management believes that any risk of loss is significantly reduced due to the nature of the customers and distributors with
which the Company does business.

As of March 31,  2023 and December 31, 2022, no single customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s
accounts receivable. No single customers accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s revenues during the three
months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.
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5.   Business Combinations

Acquisitions have been accounted for by using the acquisition method of accounting pursuant to FASB ASC 805,
“Business Combinations.” Amounts allocated to the purchased assets and liabilities assumed are based upon the total
purchase price and the estimated fair values of such assets and liabilities on the effective date of the purchase as determined
by an independent third party. The results of operations have been included in the Company’s results of operations
prospectively from the date of acquisition.

Since its inception, and as of March 31, 2023, the Company has completed 17 acquisitions, of which 12 have included
software or technology. Details of acquisitions that have closed since the beginning of fiscal year 2022 are provided below.

Integrated Nonclinical Development Solutions, Inc.

On January 3, 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of Integrated Nonclinical Development Solutions, Inc.
(“INDS”), a company that provides the SEND Explorer software and drug development consulting for a total consideration
of $8,048. The business combination was not significant to the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements.
Based on the Company’s purchase price allocation, approximately $2,380, $1,040, $100, and $2,910 of the purchase price
were assigned to customer relationships, developed technology, non-compete agreements, and goodwill, respectively.

Vyasa Analytics, LLC

On December 28, 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of Vyasa Analytics, LLC (“Vyasa”), a company that
provides an AI powered, scalable deep learning software and analytics platform for organizations within healthcare and life
sciences for a total estimated consideration of $29,276. The business combination was not significant to the Company’s
condensed consolidated financial statements.

Based on the Company’s purchase price allocation, approximately $11,400, $1,500, $120, $80 and $16,589 of the purchase
price were assigned to developed technology, customer relationships, trademarks, non-compete agreements and goodwill,
respectively.

The total estimated consideration includes a portion of contingent consideration that is payable over the next three years in
a combination of 70% cash and 30% common stock of the Company. Future payments of contingent consideration are
based on achieving certain eligible revenue thresholds for each of the twelve-month periods ended at December 31, 2023,
2024, and 2025. Potential payments range from $0 to $60,000 over the three-years period. The fair value of the contingent
consideration was estimated to be $19,813 as of the acquisition date.

The contingent consideration was classified as a liability and included in other long term liabilities on the Company’s
condensed consolidated balance sheet, which is remeasured on a recurring basis at fair value for each reporting period. Any
changes in the fair value of these contingent liabilities are included in the earnings in the condensed consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). At March 31, 2023, contingent consideration was remeasured
to $21,074, resulting in a fair value adjustment of $1,261 and recorded in general and administrative (“G&A”) on the
accompanying condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the operating results of each acquisition from the date of
acquisition.
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6. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets and Other Long-Term Assets

MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31, 
     2023      2022

(In thousands)
Prepaid expenses $ 8,472 $ 8,389
Income tax receivable   1,589   2,014
Research and development tax credit receivable   3,410   4,207
Current portion of interest rate swap asset 4,261 4,638
Other current assets 880 732

Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 18,612 $ 19,980

Other long-term assets consisted of the following:

MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31, 
     2023      2022

(In thousands)
Long-term deposits $ 1,189 $ 1,150
Interest rate swap asset - long-term 1,835 3,736
Deferred financing cost   659   729

Total other long-term assets $ 3,683 $ 5,615

7. Long-Term Debt and Revolving Line of Credit

The Company has been a party to a Credit Agreement since August 2017 that provides for a senior secured term loan and
commitments under a revolving credit facility. The agreement was modified several times. The Company and the lenders
modified the Credit Agreement on June 17, 2021, which provides for, among other things, (i) the extension of the
termination date applicable to the revolving credit commitments to August 2025, (ii) the extension of the maturity date
applicable to the term loans under the Credit Agreement to August 2026, and (iii) an increase of approximately $80,000 in
commitments available under the revolving line of credit (resulting in an aggregate amount of commitments of $100,000).
 The term loan under this amendment has substantially the same terms as the existing term loans and revolving credit
commitments. The Credit Agreement  is collateralized by substantially all U.S. assets and stock pledges for the non-U.S.
subsidiaries and contain various financial and nonfinancial covenants.

As of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, available borrowings under the revolving lines of credit were $100,000.
Available borrowings under the revolving lines of credit as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were reduced by
$120 and $120, respectively, of standby letters of credit issued to a landlord in lieu of a security deposit in addition to any
outstanding borrowings.  

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are subject to a variable interest rate at LIBOR plus a margin. The applicable
margins are based on achieving certain levels of compliance with financial covenants.

The effective interest rate was 8.03% and 3.64% for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 for the term loan
debt, respectively. As discussed previously, the Company has interest rate swap agreements to mitigate the interest rate
risk.

Interest incurred on the Credit Agreement with respect to the term loan amounted to $5,974 and $2,737 for the three
months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Accrued interest payable on the Credit Agreement with respect to
the term loan amounted to $69 and $130 at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, and is included in
accrued expenses. Interest incurred on the Credit Agreement with respect to the revolving line of credit was $63 and $63
for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. There was $1 and $66 of accrued interest payable on
the revolving line of credit at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.
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Long-term debt consists of the following:

MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31, 
                2023                           2022           

(In thousands)
Term loans $ 296,715 $ 297,470
Revolving line of credit   —   —
Less: debt issuance costs   (4,149)   (4,462)
Total   292,566   293,008
Current portion of long-term debt   (3,020)   (3,020)
Long-term debt, net of current portion and debt issuance costs $ 289,546 $ 289,988

The principal amount of long-term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2023 matures in the following years:

    
Remainder

of 2023      2024      2025 2026      TOTAL
(In thousands)

Maturities $ 2,265 $ 3,020 $ 3,020 $ 288,410 $ 296,715

The Credit Agreement requires the Company to make an annual mandatory prepayment as it relates to the Company’s
Excess Cash Flow calculation. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company was not required to make a mandatory
prepayment on the term loan. For the Credit Agreement, the Company is required to make a quarterly principal payment of
$755 on the term loan each quarter starting from September 30, 2021.

The fair values of the Company’s variable interest term loan and revolving line of credit are not significantly different than
their carrying value because the interest rates on these instruments are subject to change with market interest rates.

8. Leases

The Company leases certain office facilities and equipment under non-cancelable operating and finance leases with
remaining terms from one to six years.

Operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) assets are included in other assets while finance lease ROU assets are included in
property and equipment, net in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. With respect to operating lease liabilities,
current operating lease liabilities are included in current liabilities and non-current operating lease liabilities are included in
long-term liabilities in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. Current finance lease liabilities are included in other
current liabilities in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. At March 31, 2023, the weighted average remaining lease
terms were 3.77 years for operating leases, respectively; the weighted average discount rate was 3.43% for operating
leases, respectively. For additional information on the Company's leases, see Note 14 to the condensed consolidated
financial statements included the Company’s 2022 Annual Report.
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The following table summarizes the lease-related assets and liabilities recorded in the condensed consolidated balance
sheets at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022:

MARCH 31, DECEMBER 31,
Lease Position Balance Sheet Classification 2023    2022

(In thousands)

Assets
Operating lease assets Operating lease ROU assets $ 13,405 $ 14,427
Finance lease assets Property and equipment, net — 24
   Total lease assets $ 13,405 $ 14,451

Liabilities
Current

Operating Current operating lease liabilities $ 4,808 $ 4,968
Finance Other current liabilities — 25

Noncurrent
Operating Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 9,244 10,133
Finance Non-current finance lease liabilities — —

   Total lease liabilities $ 14,052 $ 15,126

The following table summarizes by year the maturities of our minimum lease payments as of March 31, 2023.

     OPERATING 
LEASES

(In thousands)
Remainder of 2023 $ 3,635
2024 4,124
2025 3,348
2026 2,125
2027 911
Thereafter 697
Total future lease payments 14,840
Less: imputed interest (788)
Total $ 14,052

9. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31,
     2023      2022

(In thousands)
Accrued compensation    $ 23,642 $ 29,518
Legal and professional accruals      781   1,297
Interest payable      57   176
Income taxes payable      3,697   2,223
Accrued business acquisition liabilities      700   700
Other      1,131   1,489
Total accrued expenses    $ 30,008 $ 35,403
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Other long-term liabilities consist of the following:

MARCH 31,  DECEMBER 31,
     2023      2022

(In thousands)
Uncertain tax position liability $ 2,322 $ 2,308
Contingent consideration      21,074   19,813

Total other long-term liabilities    $ 23,396 $ 22,121

10. Equity-Based Compensation

The Company’s equity-based compensation programs are intended to attract, retain and provide incentives for employees,
officers and directors. The Company has the following stock-based compensation plans and programs.

Restricted Stock

The majority of the Company’s restricted stock awarded to its employees was originally issued in December 10, 2020 in
exchange for the Class B Profits Interest Unit (the “Class B Units”) of EQT Avatar Parent, L.P, which was the former
parent of the Company.

Share-based compensation for the restricted stock exchanged for the time-based Class B Units is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally five years. Share-based compensation for the
restricted stock exchanged for the performance-based Class B Units is recognized using the accelerated attribution
approach.

In 2021, the Company granted 87,127 replacement shares of restricted stock in connection with the Pinnacle acquisition
under which equity-based awards are outstanding. The fair value of the restricted stock awarded was initially  based on the
fair value of our common stock on the date of grant, then adjusted for time restrictions due to unregistered shares  and lack
of marketability. Total grant date fair value was $2,762. The restricted stock issued in 2021 generally has a three-year
vesting period except for one holder whose shares vests equally on a monthly basis for two years.

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE

GRANT DATE
     SHARES      FAIR VALUE

Non-vested restricted stock as of December 31, 2022 1,402,813 $ 23.27
Granted — —
Vested (209,360)   23.27
Forfeited —   —
Cancelled — —

Non-vested restricted stock as of March 31, 2023 1,193,453 $ 23.27

The Company did not legally authorize or issue any restricted stock during the three-month period ended March 31, 2023.
The shares of restricted stock that vested include 2,022 shares of common stock that were withheld on behalf of employees
to satisfy the statutory tax withholding requirements.

Equity-based compensation expenses related to the restricted stock exchanged for performance-based Class B Units were
$655 and $2,120 for the three months ended March 31,  2023 and 2022, respectively. At March 31,  2023, the total
unrecognized equity-based compensation expense related to outstanding restricted stock recognized using the accelerated
attribution approach was $2,640, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 19.4 months.

Equity-based compensation expenses related to the restricted stock exchanged for time-based Class B Units were $498 and
$766 for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. At March 31, 2023, the total unrecognized
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equity-based compensation expense related to outstanding restricted stock recognized using the straight-line attribution
approach was $2,389, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 24.3 months.

Equity-based employee compensation expense related to the time-based restricted stock for the Pinnacle acquisition was
$292 for both three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. At March 31, 2023, the total unrecognized
equity-based compensation expenses related to outstanding restricted stock recognized using the straight-line attribution
approach was $1,009, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 13.6 months.

2020 Incentive Plan

In order to align the Company’s equity compensation program with public company practices, the Company’s Board of
Directors adopted and stockholders approved the 2020 Incentive Plan. The 2020 Incentive Plan allows for grants of non-
qualified stock options, incentive stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units (“RSUs”), and performance stock
units (“PSUs”) to employees, directors, officers, and consultants or advisors of the Company. The 2020 Incentive Plan
allows for 20,000,000 shares (the “plan share reserve”) of common stock to be issued. No more than the number of shares
of common stock equal to the plan share reserve may be issued in the aggregate pursuant to the exercise of incentive stock
options. The maximum number of shares of common stock granted during a single fiscal year to any non-employee
director, taken together with any cash fees paid to such non-employee director during the fiscal year, may not exceed
$1,000,000 in total value, except for certain awards made to a non-executive chair of our Board of Directors.

Restricted Stock Units (“RSU”)

RSUs represent the right to receive shares of the Company’s common stock at a specified date in the future. The fair value
of the RSUs is based on the fair value of the underlying shares on the date of grant.

A summary of the Company’s RSU activity is as follows:

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE 

GRANT DATE 
     UNITS      FAIR VALUE

Non-vested RSUs as of December 31, 2022   2,005,095 $ 24.71
Granted   —   —
Vested*   (608,179)   24.11
Forfeited   (17,196)   23.72

Non-vested RSUs as of March 31, 2023   1,379,720 $ 24.98

* The number of the RSUs vested includes 226,137 shares that were withheld on behalf of employees to satisfy the
statutory tax withholding requirements.

Equity-based compensation expenses related to the RSUs were $4,798 and $3,388 for three months ended March 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively. At March 31, 2023, the total unrecognized equity-based compensation expense related to
outstanding RSUs was $29,925, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 20.4 months.

Performance Stock Units (“PSU”)

PSUs granted in April 2021 and 2022 were issued under the 2020 Incentive Plan and represent the right to receive shares of
the Company’s common stock at a specified date in the future based on the satisfaction of various service conditions and
the achievement of certain performance thresholds for individual PSU plans including year over year revenue growth and
unlevered free cash flow growth.

Share-based compensation for the PSUs is only recognized to the extent a threshold is probable of being achieved and is
recognized using the accelerated attribution approach. The Company will continue to assess the probability of each
condition being achieved at each reporting period to determine whether and when to recognize compensation cost.
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A summary of the Company’s PSU activity is as follows:

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE 

GRANT DATE 
     UNITS      FAIR VALUE

Non-vested PSUs as of  December 31, 2022   654,308 $ 23.99
Granted   —   —
Vested   —   —
Forfeited   —   —

Non-vested PSUs as of March 31, 2023   654,308 $ 23.99

Equity-based compensation expenses related to the PSUs were $2,287 and $947 for the three months ended March 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively.  At March 31, 2023, the total unrecognized equity-based compensation expense related to
outstanding PSUs was $4,499, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 14.3 months.

The following table summarizes the components of total equity-based compensation expense included in the condensed
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) for each period presented:

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
     2023      2022

(In thousands)
Cost of revenues $ 2,042 $ 1,723
Sales and marketing   381   660
Research and development   1,650   1,373
General and administrative   4,470   3,757

Total $ 8,543 $ 7,513

11.  Commitments and Contingencies

Contingent consideration

In connection with the 2022 Vyasa acquisition, the Company is required to pay additional consideration if the acquired
business achieves certain eligible revenue thresholds for each of the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2023,
2024, and 2025, respectively. The maximum contingent consideration to be earned is $60,000. The fair value of the
contingent consideration was $21,074 and $19,813 at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Legal proceedings

The Company does not have any pending or threatened litigation which, individually or in the aggregate, would have a
material adverse effect on the condensed consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2023.

Assurance-type warranty

The Company includes an assurance commitment warranting that the application software products will perform in
accordance with written user documentation and the agreements negotiated with customers. Since the Company does not
customize its applications software, warranty costs have historically been insignificant and expensed as incurred.

For information related to commitments for future minimum lease payments, please see Note 8 – Leases.
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12. Segment Data

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that
is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance.

The Company has determined that its chief executive officer is its CODM. The Company manages its operations as a
single segment for the purposes of assessing and making operating decisions. The Company’s CODM allocates resources
and assesses performance based upon financial information at the consolidated level. Since the Company operates in one
operating segment, all required financial segment information can be found in the condensed consolidated financial
statements.

The following table summarizes revenue by geographic area for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022:

     THREE MONTHS ENDED
     MARCH 31, 
     2023      2022

(In thousands)
Revenue(1):         

Americas $ 67,023 $ 59,784
EMEA   16,915   15,934
Asia Pacific   6,363   5,833
Total $ 90,301 $ 81,551

(1) Revenue is attributable to the countries based on the location of the customer.

13. Income Taxes

The Company generally records its interim tax provision based upon a projection of the Company's estimated annual
effective tax rate ("EAETR"). This EAETR is applied to the year-to-date consolidated pre-tax income to determine the
interim provision for income taxes before discrete items. The effective tax rate ("ETR") each period is impacted by a
number of factors, including the relative mix of domestic and international earnings, adjustments to the valuation
allowances, and discrete items. The currently forecasted ETR may vary from the actual year-end due to the changes in
these factors.

The Company's global ETR for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 were 45% and 41%, respectively,
including discrete tax items. The current year increase in the ETR was principally due to the combined effect of the
increase in certain foreign income tax rates and adjustments to the valuation allowance.
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14. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-
average common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net
income (loss) attributable to stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares and dilutive potential common shares
during the period.

     THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
     2023      2022

(In thousands, except per share and share data)
Basic earnings per share         

Net income available to common shareholders $ 1,358 $ 2,210
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding   158,177,025   155,936,953
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.01 $ 0.01

Diluted earnings per share
Net income available to common shares $ 1,358 $ 2,210
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 158,177,025 155,936,953
Dilutive potential common shares 1,550,387 3,223,368
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 159,727,412 159,160,321
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.01 $ 0.01
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting the operating results, financial condition, liquidity,
and cash flows of our Company as of and for the periods presented below. The following discussion and analysis should be
read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report and our 2022 Annual Report. The statements in this discussion regarding industry
outlook, our expectations regarding our future performance, liquidity, and capital resources, and all other non-historical
statements in this discussion are forward-looking statements and are based on the beliefs of our management, as well as
assumptions made by, and information currently available to, our management. Actual results could differ materially from
those discussed in or implied by forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those discussed below
and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report, particularly in the sections “Special Note  Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements” and “Risk Factors” of this Quarterly Report.

We intend the discussion of our financial condition and results of operations that follows to provide information that will
assist the reader in understanding our condensed consolidated financial statements, the changes in certain key items in
those financial statements from period to period, and the primary factors that accounted for those changes, as well as how
certain accounting principles, policies and estimates affect our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Executive Overview

We accelerate medicines to patients using biosimulation software, technology, and services to transform traditional drug
discovery and development. Biosimulation is a powerful technology used to conduct virtual trials using virtual patients to
predict how drugs behave in different individuals. Biopharmaceutical companies use our proprietary biosimulation
software throughout drug discovery and development to inform critical decisions that not only save significant time and
money but also advance drug safety and efficacy, improving millions of lives each year.

As a global leader in biosimulation based on 2022 revenue, we provide an integrated, end-to-end platform used by more
than 2,300 clients including biopharmaceutical companies, regulatory agencies and academic institutions across 70
countries, including 39 of the top 40 biopharmaceutical companies by research and development spend in 2021. Since
2014, customers who use our biosimulation software and technology-driven services have received 90% of all new drug
approvals by the FDA. Moreover, 20 global regulatory authorities license our biosimulation software to independently
analyze, verify, and review regulatory submissions, including the FDA, Health Canada, Japan’s Pharmaceuticals and
Medical Devices Agency, and UK’s Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency.

We build our biosimulation technology on first principles of biology, chemistry, and pharmacology with proprietary
mathematical algorithms that model how medicines and diseases behave in the body. For over two decades, we have honed
and validated our biosimulation technology with an abundance of data from scientific literature, lab research, and
preclinical and clinical studies. In turn, our customers use biosimulation to conduct virtual trials to answer critical
questions, such as: What will be the human response to a drug based on preclinical data? How will other drugs interfere
with this new drug? What is a safe and efficacious dose for children, the elderly, or patients with pre-existing conditions?
Virtual trials may be used to optimize dosing on populations that are otherwise difficult to study for ethical or logistical
reasons, such as infants, pregnant women, the elderly, and cancer patients.

Biosimulation results need to be incorporated into regulatory documents for compelling submissions. Accordingly, we
provide regulatory science solutions and integrate them with biosimulation so that our customers can navigate the complex
and evolving regulatory landscape and maximize their chances of approval. Our differentiated regulatory services are
powered by submissions management software and natural language processing for scalability and speed, allowing us to
deliver more than 300 regulatory submissions over the past five years. Our team of regulatory professionals has extensive
experience applying industry guidelines and global regulatory requirements.

A final hurdle to delivering medicines to patients is market access, defined as strategies, processes, and activities to ensure
that therapies are available to patients at the right price. We believe that biosimulation and market access will continue to
be increasingly intertwined as health systems and countries move toward outcomes-based pricing. We have expanded into
market access solutions, which help our customers understand the real-world impact of therapies and dosing regimens
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earlier in the process and effectively communicate this to payors and health authorities. Our solutions are underpinned by
artificial intelligence (machine learning) and SaaS-based value communication tools.

With continued innovation in and adoption of our biosimulation software, technology, and services, we believe more
biopharmaceutical companies worldwide will leverage more of our end-to-end platform to reduce cost, accelerate speed to
market, and ensure the safety and efficacy of medicines for all patients.

Public Offerings and Other Key Shareholders Transactions

On August 11, 2022, the Company completed a secondary public offering in which certain selling stockholders, including
EQT, sold 7,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company did not offer any common stock in this
transaction and did not receive any proceeds from the sale of the shares of common stock by the selling stockholders. The
Company incurred costs of $0.6 million, recorded in general and administrative expenses, in relation to the secondary
public offering.

On December 8, 2022, Arsenal acquired an aggregate of 29,954,521 shares of our common stock from EQT at a price of
$15.00 per share. In connection with this transaction, we entered into (i) a letter agreement, effective December 8, 2022,
with Arsenal providing that, subject to certain exceptions, Arsenal is prohibited from transferring the acquired shares until
December 8, 2024; (ii) a stockholders agreement with Arsenal, effective December 8, 2022, which, among other things,
grants certain conditional rights to Arsenal to nominate up to two directors to our Board; and (iii) a Registration Rights
Agreement, which contains provisions that entitle Arsenal to certain rights to have their securities registered by the
Company under the Securities Act.

Key Factors Affecting Our Performance

We believe that the growth of and future success of our business depends on many factors. While each of these factors
presents significant opportunities for our business, they also pose important challenges that we must successfully address to
sustain our growth and improve results of operations.

Customer Retention and Expansion

Our future operating results depend, in part, on our ability to successfully enter new markets, increase our customer base,
and retain and expand our relationships with existing customers. We monitor two key performance indicators to evaluate
retention and expansion: new bookings and renewal rates.

● Bookings:    Our new bookings represent the estimated annual contract value of a signed contract or purchase
order where there is sufficient or reasonable certainty about the customer’s ability and intent to fund and
commence the software and/or services. Bookings vary from period to period depending on numerous factors,
including the overall health of the biopharmaceutical industry, regulatory developments, industry consolidation,
and sales performance. Bookings have varied and will continue to vary significantly from quarter to quarter and
from year to year.

● Renewal Rates:   Our renewal rates measure the percentage of software customers who renew their licenses or
subscriptions at the end of the license or subscription periods. The renewal rate is based on revenues and excludes
the effect of price increases or expansions.
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The table below summarizes our quarterly bookings and renewal rate trends:

  2023      2022
     Q1 Q1

Bookings (in millions)    112.7    108.5  
Renewal Rate    90 %    92 %  

Investments in Growth

We have invested and intend to continue to invest in expanding the breadth and depth of our solutions, including through
acquisitions and international expansion. We expect to continue to invest in (i) scientific talent to expand our ability to
deliver solutions across the drug development spectrum; (ii) sales and marketing to promote our solutions to new and
existing customers and in existing and expanded geographies; (iii) research and development to support existing solutions
and innovate new technology; (iv) other operational and administrative functions to support our expected growth; and (v)
complementary business. We expect that our headcount will increase over time and also expect our total operating
expenses will continue to increase over time.

Our Operating Environment

The acceptance of model-informed biopharmaceutical discovery and development by regulatory authorities affects the
demand for our products and services. Support for the use of biosimulation in discovery and development from regulatory
bodies, such as the FDA and EMA, has been critical to its rapid adoption by the biopharmaceutical industry. There has
been a steady increase in the recognition by regulatory and academic institutions of the role that modeling and simulation
can play in the biopharmaceutical development and approval process, as demonstrated by new regulations and guidance
documents describing and encouraging the use of modeling and simulation in the biopharmaceutical discovery,
development, testing, and approval process, which has directly led to an increase in the demand for our services. Changes
in government or regulatory policy, or a reversal in the trend toward increasing the acceptance of and reliance upon in
silico data in the drug approval process, could decrease the demand for our products and services or lead regulatory
authorities to cease use of, or recommend against the use of, our products and services.

Governmental agencies throughout the world, but particularly in the United States where the majority of our customers are
based, strictly regulate the biopharmaceutical development process. Our business involves helping biopharmaceutical
companies strategically and tactically navigate the regulatory approval process. New or amended regulations are expected
to result in higher regulatory standards and often additional revenues for companies that service these industries. However,
some changes in regulations, such as a relaxation in regulatory requirements or the introduction of streamlined or expedited
approval procedures, or an increase in regulatory requirements that we have difficulty satisfying or that make our
regulatory strategy services less competitive, could eliminate or substantially reduce the demand for our regulatory
services.

Competition

The market for our biosimulation products and related services for the biopharmaceutical industry is competitive and
highly fragmented. In biosimulation software, we compete with other scientific software providers, technology companies,
in-house development by biopharmaceutical companies, and certain open source solutions. In the technology-driven
services market, we compete with specialized companies, in-house teams at biopharmaceutical companies, and academic
and government institutions. In some standard biosimulation services, and in regulatory and market access, we also
compete with contract research organizations. Some of our competitors and potential competitors have longer operating
histories in certain segments of our industry than we do and could have greater financial, technical, marketing, R&D, and
other resources. Some of our competitors offer products and services directed at more specific markets than those we
target, enabling these competitors to focus a greater proportion of their efforts and resources on those specific markets.
Some competing products are developed and made available at lower cost by government organizations and academic
institutions, and these entities may be able to devote substantial resources to product development. Some clinical research
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organizations or technology companies may decide to enter into or expand their offerings in the biosimulation area,
whether through acquisition or internal development. We also face competition from open source software initiatives, in
which developers provide software and intellectual property free of charge, such as R and PK-Sim software. In addition,
some of our customers spend significant internal resources in order to develop their own solutions.

Macroeconomic challenges, including COVID-19

Uncertain macroeconomic conditions, including higher inflation, rising interest rates and instability in the financial system,
geopolitical conflicts, and the residual effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, may pose challenges to our business. As of
March 31, 2023, we believe there have been and will be short-term impacts on our business; for instance, the presence of
these new variants has caused a slowdown in closing out clinical trials and delays in regulatory services projects. We
believe that these are transitory impacts that we are well-equipped to manage going forward., but given the evolution of
COVID-19 since its onset, including the proliferation of variants, we cannot predict the impact of future virus surges on our
business and will continue to closely monitor the impact of COVID-19 on our business and our industry generally.

Non-GAAP Measures

Management uses various financial metrics, including total revenues, income from operations, net income, and certain
metrics that are not required by, or presented in accordance with, GAAP, such as adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net income,
and adjusted diluted earnings per share, to measure and assess the performance of our business, to evaluate the
effectiveness of our business strategies, to make budgeting decisions, to make certain compensation decisions, and to
compare our performance against that of other peer companies using similar measures. We believe that presentation of the
GAAP and the non-GAAP metrics in this filing will aid investors in understanding our business.

Management measures operating performance based on adjusted EBITDA defined for a particular period as net income
(loss) excluding interest expense, provision (benefit) for income taxes, depreciation and amortization expense, intangible
asset amortization, equity-based compensation expense, acquisition and integration expense, and other items not indicative
of our ongoing operating performance. Management also measures operating performance based on adjusted net income
defined for a particular period as net income (loss) excluding, equity-based compensation expense, amortization of
acquisition-related intangible assets, acquisition and integration expense, and other items not indicative of our ongoing
operating performance. Further, management measures operating performance based on adjusted diluted earnings per share
defined for a particular period as adjusted net income divided by the weighted-average diluted common shares outstanding.

We believe adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net income, and adjusted diluted earnings per share are helpful to investors,
analysts, and other interested parties because they can assist in providing a more consistent and comparable overview of
our operations across our historical periods. In addition, these measures are frequently used by analysts, investors, and
other interested parties to evaluate and assess performance.

Adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net income, and adjusted diluted earnings per share are non-GAAP measures and are
presented for supplemental purposes only and should not be considered as an alternative or substitute to financial
information presented in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net income and adjusted diluted earnings per
share have certain limitations in that they do not include the impact of certain expenses that are reflected in our condensed
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) that are necessary to run our business. Other
companies, including other companies in our industry, may not use these measures and may calculate both differently than
as presented, limiting the usefulness as a comparative measure.
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The following table reconciles net income to adjusted EBITDA :

     THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
     2023      2022

(in thousands)
Net income(a) $  1,358 $  2,210
Interest expense(a)    5,475    3,228
Interest income(a)    (1,354)    (11)
Provision for income taxes(a)    1,111    1,536
Depreciation and amortization expense(a)    411    482
Intangible asset amortization(a)    13,113    12,450
Currency (gain) loss(a)  894  (705)
Equity-based compensation expense(b)    8,543    7,513
Change in fair value of contingent consideration(d)  1,261  —
Acquisition-related expenses(e)    1,192    272
Integration expense(f)  102    —
Transaction-related expenses(g)    —    17
Loss on disposal of fixed assets(h)    4    5
Executive recruiting expense(i)  196  —
First-year Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs(j)    —    653
Adjusted EBITDA $  32,306 $  27,650

The following table reconciles net income to adjusted net income:

     THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
     2023      2022

(in thousands)
Net income (a) $  1,358 $  2,210
Currency (gain) loss(a)  894  (705)
Equity-based compensation expense(b)    8,543    7,513
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets(c)  11,256  10,880
Change in fair value of contingent consideration(d)  1,261  —
Acquisition-related expenses(e)    1,192    272
Integration expense(f)  102    —
Transaction-related expenses(g)    —    17
Loss on disposal of fixed assets(h)    4    5
Executive recruiting expense(i)    196    —
First-year Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs(j)  —    653
Income tax expense impact of adjustments(k)  (5,495)  (3,916)
Adjusted net income $  19,311 $  16,929
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The following table reconciles diluted earnings per share to adjusted diluted earnings per share:

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
2023 2022

Diluted earnings per share(a)     $  0.01      $  0.01
Currency (gain) loss(a)  0.01  —
Equity-based compensation expense(b)  0.04  0.05
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets(c)  0.07  0.07
Change in fair value of contingent consideration(d)  0.01  —
Acquisition-related expenses(e)    0.01    —
Integration expense(f)  —    —
Transaction-related expenses(g)    —    —
Loss on disposal of fixed assets(h)    —    —
Executive recruiting expense(i)    —    —
First-year Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs(j)  —  —
Income tax expense impact of adjustments(k)    (0.03)    (0.02)
Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share $  0.12 $  0.11

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding  158,177,025  155,936,953
Effect of potentially dilutive shares outstanding (l)  1,550,387  3,223,368
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding  159,727,412  159,160,321

(a) Represents amounts as determined under GAAP.

(b) Represents expense related to equity-based compensation. Equity-based compensation has been, and will continue
to be for the foreseeable future, a recurring expense in our business and an important part of our compensation
strategy.

(c) Represents amortization costs associated with acquired intangible assets in connection with business acquisitions.

(d) Represents expense associated with remeasuring fair value of contingent consideration of business acquisition.

(e) Represents costs associated with acquisitions and any retention bonuses pursuant to the acquisitions.

(f) Represents integration costs related to post - acquisition integration activities.

(g) Represents costs associated with our public offerings that are not capitalized.

(h) Represents the gain/loss related to disposal of fixed assets.

(i) Represents recruiting and relocation expenses related to hiring senior executives.

(j) Represents the first-year Sarbanes-Oxley costs for accounting and consulting fees related to the Company's
preparation to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as implementation cost of adopting ASC
842.

(k) Represents the income tax effect of the non-GAAP adjustments calculated using the applicable statutory rate by
jurisdiction.

(l) Represents dilutive shares or potentially dilutive shares that were excluded from the Company's GAAP diluted
weighted average common shares outstanding because the Company had a reported net loss and therefore including
these shares would have been anti-dilutive.
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Components of Results of Operations

Revenues

Our business generates revenue from the sales of software products and delivery of consulting services.

● Software.  Our software business generates revenues from software licenses, software subscriptions and software
maintenance as follows:

● Software licenses:  We recognize revenue for software license fees upfront, upon delivery of the software
license.

● Software subscription: Subscription revenue consists of subscription fees to provide our customers access to
and related support for our cloud-based solutions. We recognize subscription fees ratably over the term of the
subscription, usually one to three years. Any subscription revenue paid upfront that is not recognized in the
current period is included in deferred revenue in our condensed consolidated balance sheet until earned.

● Software maintenance:  Software maintenance revenue includes fees for providing updates and technical
support for software offerings. Software maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term,
usually one year.

● Services. Our services business generates revenues primarily from technology-driven services and professional
services, which include software implementation services. Our service arrangements are time and materials, fixed
fee, or prepaid. Revenues are recognized over time as services are performed for time and materials, and over
time by estimating progress to completion for fixed fee and prepaid services.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues consists primarily of employee related expenses, equity-based compensation, the costs of third-party
subcontractors, travel costs, distributor fees, amortization of capitalized software and allocated overhead. We may add or
expand computing infrastructure service providers, make additional investments in the availability and security of our
solutions, or add resources to support our growth.

Operating Expenses

● Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expense consists primarily of employee-related expenses, equity-
based compensation, sales commissions, brand development, advertising, travel-related expenses and industry
conferences and events. We plan to continue to invest in sales and marketing to increase penetration of our
existing client base and expand to new clients.

● Research and Development.  Research and development expense consist primarily of employee-related expenses,
equity-based compensation, third-party consulting, allocated software costs and tax credits. We plan to continue
to invest in our R&D efforts to enhance and scale our software product offerings by development of new features
and increased functionality.

● General and Administrative. General and administrative expense consists of personnel-related expenses
associated with our executive, legal, finance, human resources, information technology, and other administrative
functions, including salaries, benefits, bonuses, and equity-based compensation. General and administrative
expense also includes professional fees for external legal, accounting and other consulting services, allocated
overhead costs, and other general operating expenses.
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● Intangible Asset Amortization.  Intangible asset amortization consists primarily of amortization expense related
to intangible assets recorded in connection with acquisitions and amortization of capitalized software
development costs.

● Depreciation and Amortization Expense.   Depreciation and amortization expense consists of depreciation of
property and equipment and amortization of leasehold improvements.

Other Expenses

● Interest Expense. Interest expense consists primarily of interest expense associated with the Credit Agreement,
including amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts.

● Net Other Income (Expense).   Net other income (expense) consists of miscellaneous non-operating expenses
primarily comprised of interest income and foreign exchange transaction gains and losses.

● Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes.  Provision for (benefit from) income taxes consists of U.S. federal
and state income taxes and income taxes in certain foreign jurisdictions in which we conduct business. We expect
income tax expense to increase over time as the Company continues to grow more profitable.

Acquisitions

Since our inception, and as of March 31, 2023, we have completed 17 acquisitions, of which 12 have included software or 
technology. Details of acquisitions that have closed since the beginning of fiscal year 2022 are provided below. We 
continually seek and assess a range of highly focused opportunities in our immediately addressable market and in related 
adjacent markets, whether through acquisitions, licenses, or partnerships.  

Integrated Nonclinical Development Solutions, Inc.

On January 3, 2022, we completed the acquisition of INDS for a total consideration of $8.0 million, which qualified as a
business combination. The business combination was not significant to our consolidated financial statements. Based on the
purchase price allocation, approximately $2.4 million, $1.0 million, $0.1 million, and $2.9 million of the purchase price
were assigned to customer relationships, developed technology, non-compete agreements, and goodwill, respectively.

Vyasa Analytics, LLC

On December 28, 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of Vyasa, a company that provides an AI powered,
scalable deep learning software and analytics platform for organizations within healthcare and life sciences, higher
education and state and local governments for total estimated consideration of $29.3 million. The business combination
was not significant to the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements.

Based on the Company’s purchase price allocation, approximately $11.4 million, $1.5 million, $0.1 million, $0.1 million
and $16.6 million of the purchase price were assigned to developed technology, customer relationships, trademarks, non-
compete agreements and goodwill, respectively.

The fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated to be $19.8 million as of the acquisition date. The contingent
consideration was classified as a liability and included in other long-term liabilities on the Company’s condensed
consolidated balance sheet, which is remeasured on a recurring basis at fair value for each reporting period. Any changes in
the fair value of these contingent liabilities are included in the earnings in the condensed consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss). At March 31, 2023, the contingent consideration was remeasured to $21.1
million, resulting in $1.3 million adjustment to fair value.
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For more information about our acquisitions, see Note 5. “Business Combinations” in the notes to the condensed
consolidated financial statements.

Results of Operations

We have included the results of operations of acquired companies in our consolidated results of operations from the date of
their respective acquisitions, which impacts the comparability of our results of operations when comparing results for the
three months ended March 31, 2023 to the three months ended March 31, 2022.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 Versus Three Months Ended March 31, 2022

The following table summarizes our unaudited statements of operations data for the three months ended March 31, 2023
and 2022:

Revenues

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,       CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %  

( in thousands)  
Software $  33,005 $  29,193 $  3,812  13 %
Services    57,296    52,358    4,938  9 %
Total revenues $  90,301 $  81,551 $  8,750  11 %

Revenues increased $8.8 million, or 11%, to $90.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 as compared to the
same period in 2022. The overall increase in revenues was primarily due to growth in our technology-driven services and
software product offerings from client expansion and new customer acquisitions. The increase was partially offset by the
negative impact on our revenue from fluctuation of the foreign currency exchange rates.

Software revenues increased $3.8 million, or 13%, to $33.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, as
compared to the same period in 2022. The overall growth is primarily attributable to client expansion and new customer
acquisitions. The increase was partially offset by the negative impact on our revenue from fluctuation of the foreign
currency exchange rates.

Services revenues increased $4.9 million, or 9%, to $57.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, as compared
to the same period in 2022. The growth in overall services revenue is primarily attributable to continued growth in
biosimulation. The increase was partially offset by the negative impact on our revenue from fluctuation of the foreign
currency exchange rates.

Cost of Revenues

    THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,       CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %  

(in thousands)  
Cost of revenues $  34,856 $  32,789 $  2,067  6 %

Cost of revenues increased by $2.1  million, or 6%, to $34.9  million for the three  months ended March 31, 2023, as
compared to the same period in 2022. The increase was primarily due to a $1.3 million increase in employee-related costs
resulting from billable head count growth, a $0.3 million increase in stock-based compensation costs, a $0.3 million
increase in intangible assets amortization, and a $0.3 million increase in travel expenses.
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Sales and Marketing Expenses

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,  CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %  

(in thousands)  
Sales and marketing $  8,002 $  6,111 $  1,891  31 %
% of total revenues    9 %      7 %         

Sales and marketing expenses increased by $1.9 million, or 31%, to $8.0 million for the three months ended March 31,
2023 as compared to the same period in 2022. Sales and marketing expenses increased primarily due to a $1.5 million
increase in employee-related costs resulting from head count growth, and a $0.6 million increase in marketing and travel
costs, partially offset by a $0.3 million decrease in stock-based compensation costs.

Research and Development Expenses

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,       CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %  

(in thousands)  
Research and development $  9,287 $  7,548 $  1,739  23 %
% of total revenues    10 %      9 %         

Research and development expenses increased by $1.7 million, or 23%, to $9.3 million for the three months ended March
31, 2023, as compared to the same period in 2022. The increase in research and development expenses was primarily due
to a $1.5 million increase in employee-related costs primarily resulting from head count growth and a $0.3 million increase
in stock-based compensation cost.

General and Administrative Expenses

    THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,       CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %  

(in thousands)  
General and administrative $  19,772 $  18,339 $  1,433  8 %
% of total revenues    22 %      22 %         

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.4 million, or 8%, to $19.8 million for the three months ended March
31, 2023 as compared to the same period in 2022. The increase in general and administrative expenses was primarily due to
a $1.3 million increase related to change in fair value of contingent consideration, a $0.7 million increase in stock-based
compensation cost, and a $0.4 million increase in professional and consulting expenses, partially offset by a $0.7 million
decrease in first-year Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs, and a $0.4 million decrease in insurance cost.

Intangible Asset Amortization

    THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,       CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %  

(in thousands)  
Intangible asset amortization $  10,535 $  10,149 $  386  4 %
% of total revenues    12 %      12 %         

Intangible asset amortization expense increased by $0.4 million, or 4%, to $10.5 million for the three months ended March
31, 2023, as compared to the same period in 2022. The increase in intangible asset amortization expense was primarily due
to the increased amortization cost from capitalized software.
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Depreciation and Amortization Expense

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,       CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %  

(in thousands)  
Depreciation and amortization $  411 $  482 $  (71)  (15)%
% of total revenues    0 %      1 %         

Depreciation and amortization expense of $0.4 million was relatively flat for the three months ended March 31, 2023 as
compared to the same period in 2022.

Interest Expense

    THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,      CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %    

(in thousands)  
Interest expense $  5,475 $  3,228 $  2,247  70 %
% of total revenues    6 %      4 %         

Interest expense increased by $2.2 million, or 70%, to $5.5  million for the three  months ended March 31, 2023 as
compared to the same period in 2022. The increase in interest expense was primarily due to an increase in market interest
rates reflected on our term loan floating rate debt. The increase in interest expense was partially offset by $1.0 million
interest income from interest swap hedge activities.

Net other income

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,       CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %  

(in thousands)
Net other income $  (506) $  (841) $  335  (40)%

% of total revenues    (1)%      (1)%         

Net other income decreased by $0.3 million to $0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, as compared to the
same period in 2022. The decrease in other income was primarily due to a $1.6 million decrease in remeasurement gains
related to the fluctuation of foreign currency exchange rates, and partially offset by a $1.3 million increase in interest
income primarily from cash investments.

Provision for Income Taxes

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,  CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %    

( in thousands)  
Provision for income taxes $  1,111   $  1,536 $  (425)  28 %
Effective income tax rate    45 %      41 %         

Our income tax expense was $1.1 million, resulting in an effective income tax rate of 45% for the three months ended
March  31, 2023 as compared to income tax expense of $1.5 million, or an effective income tax rate of 41%, for the same
period in 2022. Our income tax expense for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 was primarily due to the tax
effects of U.S. pre-tax income, the relative mix of domestic and international earnings, the impact of non-deductible items,
adjustments to the valuation allowances, the effects of tax elections made for U.K. earnings, and discrete tax items.
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Net Income

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,       CHANGE  
     2023      2022      $      %    

(in thousands)  
Net  income $  1,358 $  2,210 $  (852)  39 %

Net income was $1.4 million, decreased $0.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023, as compared to the same
period in 2022. The decrease was primarily due to a $5.4 million increase in operating expenses, a $2.2 million increase in
interest expense,  a $2.1 million increase in cost of revenues, and a $1.6 million currency remeasurement loss, partially
offset by a $8.8 million increase in revenue and a $1.3 million increase in interest income and a $0.4 million decrease in tax
expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have consistently generated positive cash flow from operations, providing $10.0 million and $9.8 million as a source of
funds for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Our additional liquidity comes from several
sources: maintaining adequate balances of cash and cash equivalents, issuing common stock, and accessing credit facilities
and revolving lines of credit. The following table provides a summary of the major sources of liquidity for the three and
twelve months periods ended at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 and as of March 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022.

March 31,       
2023

December 31,
2022

(in thousands)
Net cash from operating activities(1) $  9,957 $  92,543
Cash and cash equivalents(2) $  244,135 $  236,586
Term loan credit facilities $  296,715 $  297,470
Revolving line of credit(3) $  100,000 $  100,000

(1) Net cash for three months ended at March 31, 2023 and twelve months ended at December 31, 2022.

(2) Cash balance as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 included $62.1 million and $56.4 million cash and cash equivalents, respectively, held
outside of the United States.

(3) Available borrowings under the revolving lines of credits as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were reduced by $120 and $120 standby
letters of credit issued to a landlord in lieu of a security deposit in addition to any outstanding borrowings.

Our material cash requirements from known contractual obligations are principal and interest payments of long-term debt.
We also have future cash obligations of $14.8 million for lease contracts, which have remaining terms of one to six years.

The principal amount of long-term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2023 matures in the following years:

    
Remainder

of 2023      2024      2025 2026      TOTAL
(In thousands)

Maturities $  2,265 $  3,020 $  3,020 $  288,410 $  296,715

We assess our liquidity in terms of our ability to generate adequate amounts of cash to meet current and future needs. We
believe our existing sources of liquidity will be sufficient to meet our working capital, capital expenditures, and contractual
obligations for the foreseeable future. Our expected primary uses on a short-term and long-term basis are for repayment of
debt, interest payments, working capital, capital expenditures, geographic or service offering expansion, acquisitions,
investments, and other general corporate purposes. We believe we will meet short and longer-term expected future cash
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requirements and obligations through a combination of cash flows from operating activities, available cash balances, and
potential future equity or debt transactions.

Our future capital requirements, however, will depend on many factors, including funding for potential acquisitions,
investments, and other growth and strategic opportunities, which could increase our cash requirements. While we believe
we have, and will be able to generate, sufficient liquidity to fund our operations for the foreseeable future, our sources of
liquidity could be affected by factors described under “Risk Factors” in our 2022 Annual Report.

Cash Flows

The following table presents a summary of our cash flows for the periods shown:

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
     2023      2022

 (in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $  9,957 $  9,803
Net cash used in investing activities    (2,731)    (8,676)
Net cash used in financing activities    (850)    (1,520)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents, and restricted
cash    1,174    (1,171)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash $  7,550 $  (1,564)
Cash paid for interest $  5,196 $  3,547
Cash paid for income taxes $  517 $  2,769

Operating Activities

Our cash flows from operating activities primarily include net income adjusted for (i) non-cash items included in net
income, such as provisions for credit losses, depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, deferred taxes and
other non-cash items and (ii) changes in the balances of operating assets and liabilities. Net cash provided by operating
activities in the first three months of 2023 was $10.0 million, compared to $9.8 million in the same period of 2022. The
$0.2 million increase in cash from operating activities was primarily due to higher cash collected from accounts receivable
and less cash utilized for other liabilities, partially offset by reduced cash inflow from deferred revenues and more cash
used for paying down of accounts payable and expense accrued.

Investing Activities                  

Net cash used by investing activities in the first three months of 2023 was $2.7 million, a decrease of $5.9 million,
compared to $8.7 million in the same period of 2022. The change in investing activities was primarily due to a $6.0 million
decrease in cash payments in connection with business acquisitions.

Financing Activities

Net cash used by financing activities in the first three months of 2023 was $0.9 million, compared to $1.5 million cash used
in the same period of 2022. The $0.7 million change in cash flow for financing activities was primarily due to  a decrease
in cash payment on financing component of interest rate swap.

Indebtedness

We have been a party to a Credit Agreement since August 2017 that provided for a senior secured term loan and
commitments under a revolving credit facility. The agreement was modified several times. The Company and the lenders
modified the credit Credit agreement Agreement again on June 17, 2021, which provides for, among other things, (i) the
extension of the termination date applicable to the revolving credit commitments under the Credit Agreement to August
2025, (ii) the extension of the maturity date applicable to the term loans under the Credit Agreement to August 2026, and
(iii) an increase of approximately $80,000 in commitments available under the revolving line of credit (resulting in an
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aggregate amount of commitments of $100,000). The term loan under the modified Amendment amendment Credit
Agreement has substantially the same terms as the existing term loans and revolving credit commitments. The Credit
Agreement is collateralized by substantially all U.S. assets and stock pledges for the non-U.S. subsidiaries and contain
various financial and nonfinancial covenants.

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement currently bear interest at a rate per annum equal to either (i) the Eurocurrency rate,
with a floor of 0.00%, as adjusted for the reserve  percentage required under regulations issued by the Federal Reserve
Board for determining maximum reserve requirements with respect to Eurocurrency funding, plus an applicable margin
rate of 3.50% for the term loan and between 4.00% and 3.50% for revolving credit loans, depending on the applicable first
lien leverage ratio, (ii) an alternative base rate (“ABR”), with a floor of 1.00%, plus an applicable margin rate of 2.50% for
the term loan or between 3.00% and 2.50% for revolving credit loans, depending on the applicable first lien leverage ratio
(with the ABR determined as the greatest of (a) the prime rate, (b) the federal funds effective rate, plus 0.50%), and (iii) the
Eurocurrency rate plus 1.00%.

Additionally, we are obligated to pay under the revolving credit facility (i) a commitment fee of between 0.50% and 0.25%
per annum of the unused amount of the revolving credit facility, depending on the applicable first lien leverage ratio,
(ii) customary letter of credit issuance and participation fees, and (iii) other customary fees and expenses of the letter of
credit issuers.

All obligations under the Credit Agreement are unconditionally guaranteed by our wholly owned direct and indirect
subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions. All obligations under the Credit Agreement, and the guarantees of those
obligations, are secured on a first lien basis, subject to certain exceptions, by substantially all of our assets and the assets of
the other guarantors.

As of March 31, 2023, we had $296.7 million of outstanding borrowings on the term loan, and $100.0 million of
availability under the revolving credit facility under the Credit Agreement, and outstanding letters of credit of $0.1 million
under the Credit Agreement.

As of March 31, 2023, we were in compliance with the covenants of the Credit Agreement.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

There have been no material changes to our contractual obligations during the three months ended March 31, 2023 from
those disclosed in our 2022 Annual Report, except for payments made in the ordinary course of business.

Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and income tax expense of
$1.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

As of March 31, 2023, we had federal and state NOLs of approximately $1.8 million and $0.05 million, respectively, which
are available to reduce future taxable income and expire between 2024 and 2036 and 2029 and 2040, respectively. We had
federal and state R&D tax credit carryforwards of approximately $0.4 million and $0.1 million, respectively, to offset
future income taxes, which expire between 2025 and 2042. We also had foreign tax credits of approximately $10.6 million,
which will start to expire in 2027. These carryforwards that may be utilized in a future period may be subject to limitations
based upon changes in the ownership of our stock in a future period. Additionally, we carried forward foreign NOLs of
approximately $65.8 million which will start to expire in 2022, foreign research and development credits of $0.3 million
that expire in 2029, and Canadian investment tax credits of approximately $3.5 million which expire between 2030 and
2040. Our carryforwards are subject to review and possible adjustment by the appropriate taxing authorities.

As required by ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, our management has evaluated the positive and negative evidence bearing
upon the realizability of our deferred tax assets, which are composed principally of NOL carryforwards, Section 174
carryforwards, investment tax credit carryforward, and foreign tax credit carryforwards. Management has determined that
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it is more likely than not that we will not realize the benefits of foreign tax credit carryforwards. At the foreign subsidiaries
level, management has determined that it is more likely than not that we will not realize the benefits of certain NOL
carryforwards. As a result, a valuation allowance of $25.7 million is recorded at December 31, 2022. As of March 31,
2023, the valuation allowance remained unchanged from December 31, 2022.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not have, and currently do not have, any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined
under the rules and regulations of the SEC, that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a material effect on our current or
future financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” in our audited
consolidated financial statements included in our 2022 Annual Report. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We monitor estimates and assumptions on a continuous
basis and update these estimates and assumptions as facts and circumstances change and new information is obtained.
Actual results could differ materially from those estimates and assumptions. We discussed the accounting policies that we
believe are most critical to the portrayal of our results of operations and financial condition and require management’s most
difficult, subjective and complex judgments in Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” in our 2022 Annual Report. There were no significant changes to our critical
accounting estimates during the three months ended March 31, 2023.

Recently Adopted and Issued Accounting Standards

We have reviewed all recently issued standards and have determined that, other than as disclosed in Note  2 to our
condensed consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Quarterly Report, such standards will not have a
material impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements or do not otherwise apply to our operations.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

For information regarding our exposure to certain market risks, see “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market
Risk,” in Part II, Item 7A of the Company’s 2022 Annual Report. There were no material changes to the Company’s
market risk exposure during the three months ended March 31, 2023.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures
pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this report.  Our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Any
controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving
the desired control objective and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of
possible controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable assurance level as of March 31, 2023.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the period ended March 31, 2023, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

There have been no material changes to our legal proceedings as previously disclosed in our 2021 Annual Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Except as described below, there have been no significant changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in our 2022
Annual Report that we believe are material to our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or growth
prospects. 

Adverse developments affecting the financial services industry, including events or concerns involving liquidity, defaults or
non-performance by financial institutions or transactional counterparties, could impair our ability or our customers’ ability
to access existing cash, cash equivalents and investments, which could negatively impact the timely payment to key
vendors and others or timely receipt of accounts payable from customers.

Events involving limited liquidity, defaults, non-performance or other adverse developments that affect financial
institutions, transactional counterparties or other companies in the financial services industry or the financial services
industry generally or concerns or rumors about any events of these kinds or other similar risks, have in the past and may in
the future lead to market-wide liquidity problems. For example, on March 10, 2023, Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”) was
placed into receivership with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), which resulted in all funds held at SVB
being temporarily inaccessible by SVB’s customers. Although the Company did not hold cash deposits or securities at SVB
if other banks and financial institutions with which we have banking relationships are placed into receivership or go
bankrupt in the future, we may not be able to access our current cash, cash equivalents, and investments and we may lose
some or all of them, to the extent that those funds are not insured or otherwise protected by the FDIC. We maintain
substantially all of our cash and cash equivalents in accounts with U.S. and multi-national financial institutions, and our
deposits at these institutions exceed insured limits. [In addition, investor concerns regarding the U.S. or international
financial systems could result in less favorable commercial financing terms, including higher interest rates or costs and
tighter financial and operating covenants, or systemic limitations on access to credit and liquidity sources, thereby making
it more difficult for us to acquire financing on acceptable terms or at all.  Our] customers are [also] exposed to this same
risk, and any delay in our customer's ability to access their cash and cash equivalents to make timely payments to us could
have a materially negative impact on our operations and necessitate the need for additional capital sooner than anticipated.
Any of these the foregoing could have material adverse impacts on our liquidity and our business, financial condition or
results of operations.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Following is the activities of equity security repurchases during the three months ended at March 31, 2023.

Total Number of
Shares Purchased(a)

Weighted Average Price
Paid per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
Under Announced

Programs

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That

May Yet be Purchased
Under Announced

Programs
1/1/2023 to 1/31/2023 674 $ 16.07 0 $ 0
2/1/2023 to 2/01/2023 674 $ 19.4 0 $ 0
3/1/2023 to 3/31/2023 226,811 $ 23.78 0 $ 0

Total 228,159 $ 23.74 0

(a) Shares purchased were due to shares delivered by employees to us for the payment of taxes resulting from issuance of common
stock upon the vesting of restricted stock or RSUs relating to stock-based compensation plans.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None

Item 6. Exhibits

See Exhibit Index.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit


Number
    

Exhibit Title Form File No. Exhibit
Filing
Date

10.1* Employment agreement, dated February 26, 2023 between
Certara Inc. and John Gallagher

10.2*# 2022 Amended Restated Form of PSU Grant Award
Agreement

10.3*# Form of PSU Grant and Award Agreement (2023 grants)
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002+
32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002+
101.INS XBRL Instance Document –the instance document does not

appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags
are embedded within the Inline XBRL document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

Document
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

Document
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in Inline XBRL

and contained in Exhibit 101)

+ This certification is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the
liability of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act or
the Exchange Act.

* Management contract.

# Certain schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The registrant
agrees to furnish a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon request; provided, however, that the
registrant may request confidential treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Exchange Act for any document so
furnished.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, duly authorized.

CERTARA, INC.

Date: May 8, 2023 By: /s/ William F. Feehery
Name: William F. Feehery
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

 (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 8, 2023 By: /s/ John Gallagher
Name: John Gallagher
Title:  Chief Financial Officer

 (Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 10.1

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this 26th day of February,
2023, by and between Certara, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”) and John Gallagher (the “Executive”).

W I T N E S S E T H :

WHEREAS, the Company desires to employ Executive and to enter into this Agreement embodying the terms of such
employment, and Executive desires to enter into this Agreement and to accept such employment, subject to the terms and provisions of
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained herein and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are mutually acknowledged, the Company and Executive hereby agree as
follows:

Section 1. Definitions. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined elsewhere in this Agreement shall have the
meaning set forth in this Section 1.

(a) “Accrued Obligations” shall mean (i) all accrued but unpaid Base Salary through the date of termination of
Executive’s employment, payable within thirty (30) days following the date of termination, (ii) any unpaid or unreimbursed business
expenses incurred in accordance with Section 6 hereof, payable within thirty (30) days following the date of termination and (iii) any
benefits provided under the Company’s employee benefit plans upon a termination of employment, including rights with respect to
equity participation under the Equity Documents, in accordance with the terms contained therein.

(b) “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

(c) “Cause” shall mean (i) Executive’s act(s) of gross negligence or willful misconduct in the course of
Executive’s employment hereunder, (ii) willful failure or refusal by Executive to perform in any material respect his duties or
responsibilities, (iii) misappropriation (or attempted misappropriation) by Executive of any assets or business opportunities of the
Company or any other member of the Company Group, (iv) embezzlement or fraud committed (or attempted) by Executive, or at his
direction, (v) Executive’s conviction of, or pleading “guilty” or “ no contest” to, (x) a felony or (y) any other criminal charge that has, or
could be reasonably expected to have, a material adverse impact on the performance of Executive’s duties to the Company or any other
member of the Company Group or otherwise result in material injury to the reputation or business of the Company or any other member
of the Company Group, (vi) any material violation by Executive of the policies of the Company, including but not limited to those
relating to sexual harassment or business conduct, and those otherwise set forth in the manuals or statements of policy of the Company,
or (vii) Executive’s material breach of this Agreement or of the Equity Documents.

(d) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder.
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(e) “Company Group” shall mean the Company, together with any of its direct or indirect subsidiaries.

(f) “Compensation Committee” shall mean the committee of the Board designated to make compensation
decisions relating to senior executive officers of the Company Group.

(g) “Confidential Information” has the meaning set forth in the Restrictive Covenants.

(h) “Disability” shall mean any physical or mental disability or infirmity of Executive that prevents the
performance of Executive’s duties for a period of (i) ninety (90) consecutive days or (ii) one hundred twenty (120) non-consecutive days
during any twelve (12) month period. Any question as to the existence, extent, or potentiality of Executive’s Disability upon which
Executive and the Company cannot agree shall be determined by a qualified, independent physician selected by the Company and
approved by Executive (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned). The determination of any such
physician shall be final and conclusive for all purposes of this Agreement.

(i) “Good Reason” shall mean, without Executive’s consent, (i) a demotion in Executive’s title, duties, or
responsibilities as set forth in Section 3 hereof or (ii) a reduction in Base Salary set forth in Section 4(a) hereof or Target Annual Bonus
opportunity set forth in Section 4(b) hereof (other than pursuant to an across-the-board reduction applicable to all similarly situated
executives) or (iii) a requirement that the Executive’s principal place of employment as set forth in Section 3(c) changes by more than 50
miles, or (iv) any other material breach of a provision of this Agreement by the Company (other than a provision that is covered by
clause (i) or (ii) or (iii) above). Executive acknowledges and agrees that his exclusive remedy in the event of any breach of this
Agreement shall be to assert Good Reason pursuant to the terms and conditions of Section 7(f) hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
during the Term of Employment, in the event that the Board reasonably believes that Executive may have engaged in conduct that could
constitute Cause hereunder, the Board may, in its sole and absolute discretion, suspend Executive from performing his duties hereunder,
and in no event shall any such suspension constitute an event pursuant to which Executive may terminate employment with Good Reason
or otherwise constitute a breach hereunder; provided, that no such suspension shall alter the Company’s obligations under this Agreement
during such period of suspension.

(j) “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture,
association, joint-stock company, trust (charitable or non- charitable), unincorporated organization, or other form of business entity.

(k) “Release of Claims” shall mean the Release of Claims in substantially the same form attached hereto as
Exhibit A (as the same may be revised from time to time by the Company upon the advice of counsel).

(l) “Restrictive Covenants” shall mean the Restrictive Covenants attached hereto as Exhibit B.
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(m) “Severance Term” shall mean the six (6) month period following Executive’s termination by the Company
without Cause (other than by reason of death or Disability) or by Executive with Good Reason.

Section 2. Acceptance and Term of Employment.

The Company agrees to employ Executive, and Executive agrees to serve the Company, on the terms and conditions set
forth herein. Executive’s employment hereunder shall commence on April 1, 2023 (“Start Date”), and continue until terminated as
provided in Section 7 hereof (“Term of Employment”).

Section 3. Position, Duties, and Responsibilities; Place of Performance.

(a) Position, Duties, and Responsibilities. During the Term of Employment, Executive shall be employed and
serve as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company (together with such other position or positions consistent with Executive’s title as
the Board shall specify from time to time) and shall have such duties and responsibilities commensurate with such title.

(b) Performance. Executive shall devote his full business time, attention, skill, and best efforts to the performance
of his duties under this Agreement and shall not engage in any other business or occupation during the Term of Employment, including,
without limitation, any activity that (x) conflicts with the interests of the Company or any other member of the Company Group, (y)
interferes with the proper and efficient performance of Executive’s duties for the Company, or (z) interferes with Executive’s exercise of
judgment in the Company’s best interests. Executive shall not serve as a member of the board of directors or advisory board (or the
equivalent in the case of a non-corporate entity) of a non-competing for- profit business and one or more charitable organizations without
the express written consent of the CEO. Executive may (i) engage in charitable activities and community affairs, and (ii) manage
Executive’s personal investments and affairs; provided, however, that the activities either consented to in writing by the CEO or set out in
clauses (i) and (ii) shall be limited by Executive so as not to materially interfere, individually or in the aggregate, with the performance of
his duties and responsibilities hereunder.

(c) Principal Place of Employment. Executive’s principal place of employment shall be the company’s U.S.
headquarters (so long as such headquarters is located either in the Princeton, NJ or Philadelphia PA-metro area (e.g. Blue Bell or
Conshohocken, PA), although Executive understands and agrees that he may be required to travel from time to time for business reasons
including, without limitation, the Company’s other offices.

Section 4. Compensation.

During the Term of Employment, Executive shall be entitled to the following compensation:

(a) Base Salary. Executive shall be paid an annualized Base Salary (the “Base Salary”), payable in accordance
with the regular payroll practices of the Company, of $575,000, as may be adjusted from time to time in writing by the Compensation
Committee.
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(b) Annual Bonus. Executive shall be eligible for an annual incentive bonus award determined by the
Compensation Committee in respect of each fiscal year during the Term of Employment (the “Annual Bonus”). The target Annual Bonus
for each fiscal year shall be 50% of Base Salary (the “Target Annual Bonus”), with the actual Annual Bonus payable being based upon
the level of achievement of annual Company and individual performance objectives for such fiscal year, as determined by the Board (or
Compensation Committee) in consultation with Executive. The Annual Bonus shall otherwise be subject to the terms and conditions of
the annual bonus plan adopted by the Board or the Compensation Committee, if any, under which bonuses are generally payable to senior
executives of the Company, as in effect from time to time. The Annual Bonus shall be paid in cash to Executive at the same time as
annual bonuses are generally payable to other senior executives of the Company, subject to Executive’s continuous employment through
the annual bonus payment date (subject to Section 7 below). The parties affirm that Executive shall be eligible to receive the Annual
Bonus for the full fiscal year of 2023, provided that he remains employed through the end of the year, and subject to the other conditions
set forth in this clause.

(c) Sign-on Bonus. Executive will receive a one-time sign-on bonus in the gross amount of $200,000 on
Executive’s first regularly scheduled pay date. The sign-on bonus will be paid as a lump sum, less applicable withholdings. By receiving
this sign-on bonus, Executive agrees that if Executive’s employment is terminated for Cause during the first twelve months of
employment, or Executive leaves the Company for any reason other than Good Reason, Executive will repay 1/12th of the gross amount
for each full month of service remaining in such 12-month period.

(d) Equity Participation. In connection with the commencement of Executive’s employment hereunder, Executive
shall be entitled to participate in and receive grants under the Company 2020 Equity Plan, pursuant to the terms of such plan, and the
applicable equity award agreements (the “Equity Documents”). Executive’s equity participation shall be exclusively governed by the
terms of the Equity Documents.

On your Start Date, you will receive long-term incentive equity award in the form of 40% Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) and 60%
Performance Stock Units (“PSUs”), with an aggregate value of $2,100,000, in accordance with the RSU and PSU agreements applicable
to all executive officers.

On your Start Date, you will also receive a one-time equity award with a value of $650,000, in the form of RSUs, with a vesting schedule
of 50% after 12 months of employment and 50% after 24 months of employment.

Section 5. Employee Benefits.

During the Term of Employment, Executive shall be entitled to participate in health, insurance, retirement, and other
benefits provided generally to senior executives of the Company. Executive shall also be entitled to the same number of holidays,
vacation days, and sick days, as well as any other benefits, in each case as are generally allowed to senior executives of the Company in
accordance with the Company policy as in effect from time to time. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to limit the Company’s
ability to amend, suspend, or terminate any employee benefit plan or policy at any time, and the right to do so is expressly reserved.
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Section 6. Reimbursement of Expenses.

Executive is authorized to incur reasonable business expenses in carrying out his duties and responsibilities under this
Agreement, and the Company shall promptly reimburse him for all such reasonable business expenses, subject to documentation in
accordance with the Company’s policy, as in effect from time to time.

Section 7. Termination of Employment.

(a) General. The Term of Employment, and Executive’s employment hereunder, shall terminate upon the earliest
to occur of (i) Executive’s death, (ii) a termination by reason of a Disability, (iii) a termination by the Company with or without Cause,
and (iv) a termination by Executive with or without Good Reason. Except as otherwise expressly required by law (e.g., COBRA) or as
specifically provided herein, all of Executive’s rights to Base Salary, Annual Bonus, employee benefits and other compensatory amounts
hereunder (if any) shall cease upon the termination of Executive’s employment hereunder.

(b) Deemed Resignation. Upon any termination of Executive’s employment for any reason, except as may
otherwise be requested by the Company in writing and agreed upon in writing by Executive, Executive shall be deemed to have resigned
from any and all directorships, committee memberships, and any other positions Executive holds with the Company or any other member
of the Company Group.

(c) Termination Due to Death or Disability. Executive’s employment shall terminate automatically upon his death.
The Company may terminate Executive’s employment immediately upon the occurrence of a Disability, such termination to be effective
upon Executive’s receipt of written notice of such termination. Upon Executive’s death or in the event that Executive’s employment is
terminated due to his Disability, Executive or his estate or his beneficiaries, as the case may be, shall be entitled to:

(i) The Accrued Obligations; and

(ii) Any unpaid Annual Bonus in respect of the most recently completed fiscal year that ended prior to
the date of such termination, which amount shall be paid at such time annual bonuses are paid to other senior executives of the
Company (the “Prior Year Bonus Amount”).

Following Executive’s death or a termination of Executive’s employment by reason of a Disability, except as set forth in this
Section 7(c), Executive shall have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits under this Agreement.

(d) Termination by the Company for Cause.

(i) The Company may terminate Executive’s employment at any time for Cause, effective upon delivery
to Executive of written notice of such termination;
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provided, however, that with respect to any Cause termination relying on clause (i), (ii), (vi) or (vii) of the definition of Cause,
to the extent that such act or acts or failure or failures to act are curable, Executive shall be given not less than twenty (20) days’
written notice by the Company of the Company’s intention to terminate him for Cause, such notice to state in detail the
particular act or acts or failure or failures to act that constitute the grounds on which the proposed termination for Cause is
based, and such termination shall be effective at the expiration of such twenty (20) day notice period unless Executive has fully
cured such act or acts or failure or failures to act that give rise to Cause during such period.

(ii) In the event that the Company terminates Executive’s employment for Cause, he shall be entitled
only to the Accrued Obligations. Following such termination of Executive’s employment for Cause, except as set forth in this
Section 7(d)(ii), Executive shall have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits under this Agreement.

(e) Termination by the Company without Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment at any
time without Cause by giving Executive at least two weeks’ written notice of such termination. In the event that Executive’s employment
is terminated by the Company without Cause (other than due to death or Disability), Executive shall be entitled to:

(i) the Accrued Obligations;

(ii) the Prior Year Bonus Amount;

(iii) the Executive’s Target Annual Bonus for the calendar year in which the Termination occurs (“Current
Year”), multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days during the Current Year that the Executive is
employed by the Company and the denominator of which is 365;and

(iv) an amount equal to the prorated Base Salary during the Severance Term, such amount to be paid in
substantially equal payments during the Severance Term, and payable in accordance with the Company’s regular payroll
practices.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the payments and benefits described in clauses (iii) and (iv) above shall immediately terminate, and the
Company shall have no further obligations to Executive with respect thereto, in the event that Executive breaches the Restrictive
Covenants. Following such termination of Executive’s employment by the Company without Cause, except as set forth in this Section
7(e), Executive shall have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits under this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt,
Executive’s sole and exclusive remedy upon a termination of employment by the Company without Cause shall be receipt of the
Severance Benefits.

(f) Termination by Executive with Good Reason. Executive may terminate his employment with Good Reason by
providing the Company thirty (30) days’ written notice setting forth in reasonable specificity the event that constitutes Good Reason,
which written notice, to be effective, must be provided to the Company within thirty (30) days of the
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occurrence of such event (or the date the Executive became aware of such event, if later). During such thirty (30) notice period, the
Company shall have a cure right (if curable), and if not cured within such period, Executive’s termination will be effective upon the
expiration of such cure period, and Executive shall be entitled to the same payments and benefits as provided in Section 7(e) hereof for a
termination by the Company without Cause, subject to the same conditions on payment and benefits as described in Section 7(e) hereof.
Following such termination of Executive’s employment by Executive with Good Reason, except as set forth in this Section 7(f),
Executive shall have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits under this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt,
Executive’s sole and exclusive remedy upon a termination of employment with Good Reason shall be receipt of the Severance Benefits.

(g) Termination by Executive without Good Reason. Executive may terminate his employment without Good
Reason by providing the Company sixty (60) days’ written notice of such termination. In the event of a termination of employment by
Executive under this Section 7(g), Executive shall be entitled only to the Accrued Obligations. In the event of termination of Executive’s
employment under this Section 7(g), the Company may, in its sole and absolute discretion, by written notice accelerate such date of
termination without changing the characterization of such termination as a termination by Executive without Good Reason. Following
such termination of Executive’s employment by Executive without Good Reason, except as set forth in this Section 7(g), Executive shall
have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits under this Agreement.

(h) Release. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the payment of any amount or provision of any
benefit pursuant to subsection (e) or (f) of this Section 7 (collectively, the “Severance Benefits”), other than the Accrued Obligations,
shall be conditioned upon Executive’s execution, delivery to the Company, and non-revocation of the Release of Claims (and the
expiration of any revocation period contained in such Release of Claims) within twenty-one days following the date of Executive’s
termination of employment hereunder (the “Release Execution Period”). If Executive fails to execute the Release of Claims in such a
timely manner so as to permit any revocation period to expire prior to the end of such twenty-one day period, or timely revokes his
acceptance of such release following its execution, Executive shall not be entitled to any of the Severance Benefits. No portion of the
Severance Benefits (other than Accrued Obligations) shall be paid until the Release has become effective and all such amounts shall
commence to be paid on the first regular payroll date of the Company after the Release has become effective; provided, that, if the
Release Execution Period overlaps two calendar years, the first payment shall not be made sooner than the first day of the second year,
and shall include any missed payments.

Section 8. Certain Payments.

In the event that (i) Executive is entitled to receive any payment, benefit or distribution of any type to or for the benefit
of Executive, whether paid or payable, provided or to be provided, or distributed or distributable, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement
or otherwise (collectively, the “Payments”), and (ii) the net after-tax amount of such Payments, after Executive has paid all taxes due
thereon (including, without limitation, taxes due under Section 4999 of the Code) is less than the net after-tax amount of all such
Payments otherwise due to Executive in the aggregate, if such Payments were reduced to an amount equal to 2.99
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times Executive’s “base amount” (as defined in Section 280G(b)(3) of the Code), then the aggregate amount of such Payments payable to
Executive shall be reduced to an amount that will equal 2.99 times Executive’s base amount. To the extent such aggregate parachute
payment amounts are required to be so reduced, the parachute payment amounts due to Executive (but no non-parachute payment
amounts) shall be reduced in the following order: (i) the parachute payments that are payable in cash shall be reduced (if necessary, to
zero) with amounts that are payable last reduced first; (ii) payments and benefits due in respect of any equity, valued at full value (rather
than accelerated value), with the highest values reduced first (as such values are determined under Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-
1, Q&A 24); and (iii) all other non-cash benefits not otherwise described in clause (ii) of this Section 8 reduced last. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Company will use its good faith best efforts to solicit shareholder approval of the Executive’s “excess parachute
payments” in accordance with Section 280G of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder if Q&A 7 of the 280G regulations
is applicable and Executive first waives the right to receive excess parachute payments unless approved by shareholders.

Section 9. Restrictive Covenants

(a) General. Executive acknowledges and recognizes the highly competitive nature of the business of the
Company Group, that access to Confidential Information renders Executive special and unique within the industry of the Company
Group, and that Executive will have the opportunity to develop substantial relationships with existing and prospective clients, accounts,
customers, consultants, contractors, investors, and strategic partners of the Company Group during the course of and as a result of
Executive’s employment with the Company. In light of the foregoing, as a condition of Executive’s employment by the Company, and in
consideration of Executive’s employment hereunder and the compensation and benefits provided herein, Executive acknowledges and
agrees to the Restrictive Covenants, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Executive further
recognizes and acknowledges that the restrictions and limitations set forth in the Restrictive Covenants are reasonable and valid in
geographical and temporal scope and in all other respects and are essential to protect the value of the business and assets of the Company
Group.

(b) Other Covenants. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that
Executive is subject to similar restrictive covenants pursuant to any other agreement with any member of the Company Group, including,
without limitation, under the Equity Documents (“Other Covenants”), the covenants contained in this Agreement shall be in addition to,
and not in lieu of, any such Other Covenants, and enforcement by the Company of the covenants contained in this Agreement shall not
preclude the applicable member of the Company Group from enforcing such Other Covenants in accordance with their terms.

Section 10. Representations and Warranties of Executive.

Executive represents and warrants to the Company that:

(a) Executive is entering into this Agreement voluntarily and that his employment hereunder and compliance with
the terms and conditions hereof will not conflict with or result in the breach by him of any agreement to which he is a party or by which
he may be bound;
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(b) Executive has not violated, and in connection with his employment with the Company will not violate, any
non-solicitation, non-competition, or other similar covenant or agreement with any Person by which he is or may be bound, copies of
which have been provided to and reviewed by the Company;

(c) In connection with his employment with the Company, Executive will not use any confidential or proprietary
information he may have obtained in connection with employment or service with any prior service recipient; and

(d) Executive has not been terminated from any prior employer or service recipient, or otherwise disciplined in
connection any such relationship, in connection with, or as a result of, any claim of workplace sexual harassment or sex or gender
discrimination, and to Executive’s knowledge, Executive has not been the subject of any investigation, formal allegation, civil or
criminal complaint, charge, or settlement regarding workplace sexual harassment or sex or gender discrimination.

Section 11. Taxes.

The Company may withhold from any payments made under this Agreement all applicable taxes, including but not
limited to income, employment, and social insurance taxes, as shall be required by law. Executive acknowledges and represents that the
Company has not provided any tax advice to him in connection with this Agreement and that he has been advised by the Company to
seek tax advice from his own tax advisors regarding this Agreement and payments that may be made to him pursuant to this Agreement,
including specifically, the application of the provisions of Section 409A of the Code to such payments.

Section 12. Set Off; Mitigation.

To the extent not prohibited by law or in violation of Section 409A of the Code, the Company’s obligation to pay
Executive the amounts provided and to make the arrangements provided hereunder shall be subject to set-off, counterclaim, or
recoupment of amounts owed by Executive to the Company or its affiliates; provided, however, that to the extent any amount so subject
to set-off, counterclaim, or recoupment is payable in installments hereunder, such set-off, counterclaim, or recoupment shall not modify
the applicable payment date of any installment, and to the extent an obligation cannot be satisfied by reduction of a single installment
payment, any portion not satisfied shall remain an outstanding obligation of Executive and shall be applied to the next installment only at
such time the installment is otherwise payable pursuant to the specified payment schedule. Executive shall not be required to mitigate the
amount of any payment provided pursuant to this Agreement by seeking other employment or otherwise, and the amount of any payment
provided for pursuant to this Agreement shall not be reduced by any compensation earned as a result of Executive’s other employment or
otherwise.



-10-

Section 13. Additional Section 409A Provisions.

Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary:

(a) Any payment otherwise required to be made hereunder to Executive at any date as a result of the termination
of Executive’s employment shall be delayed for such period of time as may be necessary to meet the requirements of Section 409A(a)(2)
(B)(i) of the Code (the “Delay Period”). On the first business day following the expiration of the Delay Period, Executive shall be paid,
in a single cash lump sum, an amount equal to the aggregate amount of all payments delayed pursuant to the preceding sentence, and any
remaining payments not so delayed shall continue to be paid pursuant to the payment schedule set forth herein.

(b) Each payment in a series of payments hereunder shall be deemed to be a separate payment for purposes of
Section 409A of the Code.

(c) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payment (or commencement of a series of payments)
hereunder of any nonqualified deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code) upon a termination of
employment shall be delayed until such time as Executive has also undergone a “separation from service” as defined in Treas. Reg.
1.409A-1(h), at which time such nonqualified deferred compensation (calculated as of the date of Executive’s termination of employment
hereunder) shall be paid (or commence to be paid) to Executive on the schedule set forth in this Section 7 as if Executive had undergone
such termination of employment (under the same circumstances) on the date of his ultimate “separation from service.”

(d) To the extent that any right to reimbursement of expenses or payment of any benefit in-kind under this
Agreement constitutes nonqualified deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code), (i) any such expense
reimbursement shall be made by the Company no later than the last day of the taxable year following the taxable year in which such
expense was incurred by Executive, (ii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidation or exchange for
another benefit, and (iii) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits provided during any taxable year shall not
affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits to be provided in any other taxable year; provided, however, that the
foregoing clause shall not be violated with regard to expenses reimbursed under any arrangement covered by Section 105(b) of the Code
solely because such expenses are subject to a limit related to the period the arrangement is in effect.

(e) While the payments and benefits provided hereunder are intended to be structured in a manner to avoid the
implication of any penalty taxes under Section 409A of the Code, in no event whatsoever shall any member of the Company Group be
liable for any additional tax, interest, or penalties that may be imposed on Executive as a result of Section 409A of the Code or any
damages for failing to comply with Section 409A of the Code (other than for withholding obligations or other obligations applicable to
employers, if any, under Section 409A of the Code).

Section 14. Successors and Assigns; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.

(a) The Company. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the Company and its respective successors and
assigns. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, obligations, or interests arising hereunder may be assigned by the Company to a
Person (other than another member of the Company Group, or its or their respective successors) without
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Executive’s prior written consent (which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned); provided, however, that in the
event of a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company or any direct or indirect division or subsidiary thereof to which
Executive’s employment primarily relates, the Company may provide that this Agreement will be assigned to, and assumed by, the
acquiror of such assets, division or subsidiary, as applicable, without Executive’s consent.

(b) Executive. Executive’s rights and obligations under this Agreement shall not be transferable by Executive by
assignment or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the Company; provided, however, that if Executive shall die, all amounts
then payable to Executive hereunder shall be paid in accordance with the terms of this Agreement to Executive’s devisee, legatee, or
other designee, or if there be no such designee, to Executive’s estate.

(c) No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as otherwise set forth in Section 7(c) or Section 14(b) hereof, nothing
expressed or referred to in this Agreement will be construed to give any Person other than the Company, the other members of the
Company Group, and Executive any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim under or with respect to this Agreement or any provision
of this Agreement.

Section 15. Waiver and Amendments.

Any waiver, alteration, amendment, or modification of any of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid only if made
in writing and signed by each of the parties hereto; provided, however, that any such waiver, alteration, amendment, or modification must
be consented to on the Company’s behalf by the Board. No waiver by either of the parties hereto of their rights hereunder shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver with respect to any subsequent occurrences or transactions hereunder unless such waiver specifically states
that it is to be construed as a continuing waiver.

Section 16. Severability.

If any covenants or such other provisions of this Agreement are found to be invalid or unenforceable by a final
determination of a court of competent jurisdiction, (a) the remaining terms and provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and (b) the invalid
or unenforceable term or provision hereof shall be deemed replaced by a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes
closest to expressing the intention of the invalid or unenforceable term or provision hereof.

Section 17. Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial.

THIS AGREEMENT IS GOVERNED BY AND IS TO BE CONSTRUED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEW JERSEY. EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT ALSO HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN
CONNECTION WITH ANY SUIT, ACTION, OR PROCEEDING UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT.
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Section 18. Notices.

(a) Place of Delivery. Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing, and
shall be mailed to or delivered to the party for whom or which it is intended at such address as may from time to time be designated by it
in a notice mailed or delivered to the other party as herein provided; provided, however, that unless and until some other address be so
designated, all notices and communications by Executive to the Company shall be mailed or delivered to the Company at its principal
executive office, and all notices and communications by the Company to Executive may be given to Executive personally or may be
mailed to Executive at Executive’s last known address, as reflected in the Company’s records.

(b) Date of Delivery. Any notice so addressed shall be deemed to be given (i) if delivered by hand, on the date of
such delivery, (ii) if mailed by courier or by overnight mail, on the first business day following the date of such mailing, and (iii) if
mailed by registered or certified mail, on the third business day after the date of such mailing.

Section 19. Section Headings.

The headings of the sections and subsections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not be
deemed to constitute a part thereof or affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement or of any term or provision hereof.

Section 20. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement, together with any exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the
parties hereto regarding the employment of Executive. This Agreement supersedes all prior negotiations, discussions, correspondence,
communications, understandings, and agreements between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

Section 21. Survival of Operative Sections.

Upon any termination of Executive’s employment, the provisions of Section 7 through Section 22 of this Agreement
(together with any related definitions set forth on Appendix A) shall survive to the extent necessary to give effect to the provisions
thereof.

Section 22. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all
of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The execution of this Agreement may be by actual or facsimile signature.

*          *          *

[Signatures to appear on the following page.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

CERTARA, INC.

2/26/2023

By: William Feehery
Title: CEO

EXECUTIVE

2/26/2023

John Gallagher



EXHIBIT A

RELEASE OF CLAIMS

As used in this Release of Claims (this “Release”), the term “claims” will include all claims, covenants, warranties,
promises, undertakings, actions, suits, causes of action, obligations, debts, accounts, attorneys’ fees, judgments, losses, and liabilities, of
whatsoever kind or nature, in law, in equity, or otherwise.

For and in consideration of the Severance Benefits, and other good and valuable consideration, I,              , for and on
behalf of myself and my heirs, administrators, executors, and assigns, effective the date on which this release becomes effective pursuant
to its terms, do fully and forever release, remise, and discharge each of the Company and each of its direct and indirect subsidiaries and
affiliates, together with their respective officers, directors, partners, shareholders, employees, and agents (collectively, the “Group”) from
any and all claims whatsoever up to the date hereof that I had, may have had, or now have against the Group, for or by reason of any
matter, cause, or thing whatsoever, including any claim arising out of or attributable to my employment or the termination of my
employment with the Company, whether for tort, breach of express or implied employment contract, intentional infliction of emotional
distress, wrongful termination, unjust dismissal, defamation, libel, or slander, or under any federal, state, or local law dealing with
discrimination based on age, race, sex, national origin, handicap, religion, disability, or sexual orientation. This release of claims
includes, but is not limited to, all claims arising under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (“ADEA”), Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Family Medical Leave Act, and the Equal Pay Act,
each as may be amended from time to time, and all other federal, state, and local laws, the common law, and any other purported
restriction on an employer’s right to terminate the employment of employees. The release contained herein is intended to be a general
release of any and all claims to the fullest extent permissible by law.

I acknowledge and agree that as of the date I execute this Release, I have no knowledge of any facts or circumstances
that give rise or could give rise to any claims under any of the laws listed in the preceding paragraph.

By executing this Release, I specifically release all claims relating to my employment and its termination under ADEA,
a United States federal statute that, among other things, prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in employment and employee benefit
plans.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Release to the contrary, by executing this Release, I am not releasing (i) any
claims relating to my rights under Section 7 of the Employment Agreement, (ii) any claims that cannot be waived by law, (iii) any claims
with respect to any securities of the Company that I own or (iv) my right of indemnification as provided by, and in accordance with the
terms of, the Company’s by-laws or a Company insurance policy providing such coverage, as any of such may be amended from time to
time.

I expressly acknowledge and agree that I –

◾ Am able to read the language, and understand the meaning and effect, of this Release;

◾ Have no physical or mental impairment of any kind that has interfered with my ability to read and understand
the meaning of this Release or its terms, and that I am not acting under the influence of any medication, drug, or chemical of
any type in entering into this Release;
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◾ Am specifically agreeing to the terms of the release contained in this Release because the Company has
agreed to pay me the Severance Benefits in consideration for my agreement to accept it in full settlement of all possible claims I
might have or ever had, and because of my execution of this Release;

◾ Acknowledge that, but for my execution of this Release, I would not be entitled to the Severance Benefits;

◾ Understand that, by entering into this Release, I do not waive rights or claims under ADEA that may arise
after the date I execute this Release;

◾ Had or could have [twenty-one (21)][forty-five (45)]1 days from the date of my termination of employment
(the “Release Expiration Date”) in which to review and consider this Release, and that if I execute this Release prior to the
Release Expiration Date, I have voluntarily and knowingly waived the remainder of the review period;

◾ Have not relied upon any representation or statement not set forth in this Release or my Employment
Agreement made by the Company or any of its representatives;

◾ Was advised to consult with my attorney regarding the terms and effect of this Release; and

◾ Have signed this Release knowingly and voluntarily.

I represent and warrant that I have not previously filed, and to the maximum extent permitted by law agree that I will
not file, a complaint, charge, or lawsuit against any member of the Group regarding any of the claims released herein. If, notwithstanding
this representation and warranty, I have filed or file such a complaint, charge, or lawsuit, I agree that I shall cause such complaint, charge,
or lawsuit to be dismissed with prejudice and shall pay any and all costs required in obtaining dismissal of such complaint, charge, or
lawsuit, including without limitation the attorneys’ fees of any member of the Group against whom I have filed such a complaint, charge,
or lawsuit. This paragraph shall not apply, however, to a claim of age discrimination under ADEA or to any non-waivable right to file a
charge with the United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (the “EEOC”); provided, however, that if the EEOC were to
pursue any claims relating to my employment with Company, I agree that I shall not be entitled to recover any monetary damages or any
other remedies or benefits as a result and that this Release and the Severance Benefits will control as the exclusive remedy and full
settlement of all such claims by me.

Nothing in this Release shall prohibit or impede me from communicating, cooperating or filing a complaint with any
Governmental Entity with respect to possible violations of any U.S. federal, state or local law or regulation, or otherwise making
disclosures to any Governmental Entity, in each case, that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of any such law or regulation;
provided, that in each case such communications and disclosures are consistent with applicable law. I understand and acknowledge that
an individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret
that is made (1) in confidence to a federal, state, or

1 To be selected based on whether applicable termination was “in connection with an exit incentive or other employment termination
program” (as such phrase is defined in the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967).
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local government official or to an attorney solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law, or (2) in a
complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. I understand and acknowledge
further that an individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose the
trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the individual files any
document containing the trade secret under seal; and does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order. Except as
otherwise provided in this paragraph or under applicable law, under no circumstance am I authorized to disclose any information covered
by the Company’s attorney-client privilege or attorney work product, or the Company’s trade secrets, without the prior written consent of
the Company’s General Counsel or other officer designated by the Company. I do not need the prior authorization of (or to give notice to)
any member of the Company Group regarding any communication, disclosure, or activity permitted by this paragraph.

I hereby agree to waive any and all claims to re-employment with the Company or any other member of the Company
Group and affirmatively agree not to seek further employment with the Company or any other member of the Company Group.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, this Release will not become effective or enforceable prior
to the expiration of the period of seven (7) calendar days following the date of its execution by me (the “Revocation Period”), during
which time I may revoke my acceptance of this Release by notifying the Company, in writing, delivered to the Company at its principal
executive office, marked for the attention of its General Counsel, with copy to the Board. To be effective, such revocation must be
received by the Company no later than 11:59 p.m. on the seventh (7th) calendar day following the execution of this Release. Provided
that the Release is executed and I do not revoke it during the Revocation Period, the eighth (8th) day following the date on which this
Release is executed shall be its effective date. I acknowledge and agree that if I revoke this Release during the Revocation Period, this
Release will be null and void and of no effect, and neither the Company nor any other member of the Group will have any obligations to
pay me the Severance Benefits.

The provisions of this Release shall be binding upon my heirs, executors, administrators, legal personal representatives,
and assigns. If any provision of this Release shall be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void, or unenforceable,
such provision shall be of no force or effect. The illegality or unenforceability of such provision, however, shall have no effect upon and
shall not impair the enforceability of any other provision of this Release.

EXCEPT WHERE PREEMPTED BY FEDERAL LAW, THIS RELEASE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FEDERAL LAW AND THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY, APPLICABLE TO
AGREEMENTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED IN THAT STATE WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO THE PRINCIPLES OF
CONFLICTS OF LAWS. I HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY SUIT, ACTION,
OR PROCEEDING UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS RELEASE.

Capitalized terms used, but not defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in my Employment
Agreement, dated June        , 2021, with the Company (the “Employment Agreement”).

[Executive Name]
Date:
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EXHIBIT B

RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

1. Non-Competition; Non-Solicitation; Non-Interference. Executive acknowledges and recognizes the highly competitive
nature of the businesses of the Company Group and its Affiliates and accordingly agrees as follows:

(a) Prior to the Executive’s Termination for any reason (the “Employment Term”) and until the first anniversary
of Executive’s Termination (the “Restrictive Covenant Period”), Executive will not (i) directly or indirectly, in any geographic location
in which the Company Group engages, own, operate, manage, control, invest in, lend to, acquire an interest in, or otherwise engage or
participate in (whether as an employee, independent contractor, consultant, partner, shareholder, joint venturer, investor, or any other type
of participant) the management or conduct of any business activities, whether through selling, distributing, manufacturing, marketing,
purchasing, or otherwise, that compete directly or indirectly with any member of the Company Group (“Competitive Activities”), it
being understood that Competitive Activities as of the date hereof include, without limitation, principally engaging in the business of
model based drug development consulting services or technology solutions, including with respect to discovery, pre-clinical, clinical and
post-marketing drug development and regulatory submissions and review and any other business in which the Company is actively
engaged at the time of termination (the “Business”).

(b) During the Restrictive Covenant Period, Executive will not directly or indirectly:

(i) (A) solicit or induce any customer, supplier, licensee, or other business relation (or any actively
sought prospective customer, supplier, licensee, or other business relation) of the Company or any member of the Company Group to
cease doing business with or materially reduce the amount of business conducted with the Company or any member of the Company
Group, or interfere with the relationship between any such customer, supplier, licensee, or other business relation (or any actively sought
prospective customer, supplier, licensee, or other business relation) and the Company or any member of the Company Group; or (B)
knowingly or intentionally assist any Person in any substantive or direct way to do, or attempt to do, anything prohibited by clause (A)
above; or

(ii) (A) solicit or hire, directly or indirectly, for employment, or assist others in hiring, employing,
inducing, or soliciting for employment (except in the performance of Executive’s duties), any employees of the Company or any member
of the Company Group (or individuals who were employed during the one-year period prior to the termination of Executive’s
employment with the Service Recipient); or (B) knowingly or intentionally assist any Person in any substantive or direct way to do, or
attempt to do, anything prohibited by clause (A) above.

(c) If a final and non-appealable judicial determination is made that any of the provisions of this Section 1
constitutes an unreasonable or otherwise unenforceable restriction against Executive, the provisions of this Section 1 will not be rendered
void but will be deemed to be modified to the minimum extent necessary to remain in force and effect for the longest period
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and largest geographic area that would not constitute such an unreasonable or unenforceable restriction. Moreover, notwithstanding the
fact that any provision of this Section 1 is determined not to be specifically enforceable, the Company will nevertheless be entitled to
recover monetary damages as a result of Executive’s breach of such provision.

(d) The period of time during which the provisions of this Section 1 shall be in effect shall be extended by the
length of time during which Executive is in breach of the terms hereof.

(e) The provisions of Section 1 hereof shall survive the termination of Executive’s employment for any reason.

2. Confidentiality; Intellectual Property.

(a) Confidentiality.

(i) Executive acknowledges that the Confidential Information obtained by Executive while employed by
the Company is the property of the Company Group. Therefore, Executive agrees that Executive shall not disclose to any unauthorized
Person or use for Executive’s own purposes any Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the Company, unless and
to the extent that the aforementioned matters become generally known to and available for use by the public other than as a result of
Executive’s acts or omissions in violation of this Agreement; provided, however, that if Executive receives a request to disclose
Confidential Information pursuant to a deposition, interrogation, request for information or documents in legal proceedings, subpoena,
civil investigative demand, governmental or regulatory process, or similar process, (i) Executive shall, as promptly as practicable, notify
in writing the Company, and consult with and reasonably assist the Company, at the Company’s expense, in seeking a protective order or
request for other appropriate remedy, (ii) in the event that such protective order or remedy is not obtained, or if the Company waives
compliance with the terms hereof, Executive shall disclose only that portion of the Confidential Information which, based on the advice
of Executive’s legal counsel, is legally required to be disclosed and shall exercise reasonable best efforts to provide that the receiving
Person shall agree to treat such Confidential Information as confidential to the extent possible (and permitted under applicable law) in
respect of the applicable proceeding or process, and (iii) the Company shall be given an opportunity to review the Confidential
Information prior to disclosure thereof.

(ii) For purposes of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” means information, observations, and
data concerning the business or affairs of the Company Group, including, without limitation, all business information (whether or not in
written form) that relates to any member of the Company Group, or its customers, suppliers, or contractors or any other third parties in
respect of which the Company or any member of the Company Group has a business relationship or owes a duty of confidentiality, or
their respective businesses or products, and that is not known to the public generally other than as a result of Executive’s breach of this
Agreement, including but not limited to technical information or reports, formulas, trade secrets, unwritten knowledge and “know-how,”
operating instructions, training manuals, customer lists, customer buying records and habits, product sales records and documents, and
product development, marketing, and sales strategies, market surveys, marketing plans, profitability analyses, product
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cost, long-range plans, information relating to pricing, competitive strategies, and new product development, information relating to any
forms of compensation or other personnel-related information, contracts, and supplier lists. Confidential Information will not include
such information known to Executive prior to Executive’s involvement with the Company or any predecessor thereof or information
rightfully obtained from a third party (other than pursuant to a breach by Executive of this Agreement). Without limiting the foregoing,
Executive and the Company each agree to keep confidential the existence of, and any information concerning, any dispute between
Executive and the Company or any member of the Company Group, except that Executive and the Company each may disclose
information concerning such dispute to the court that is considering such dispute or to their respective legal counsel (provided that such
counsel agrees not to disclose any such information other than as necessary to the prosecution or defense of such dispute).

(iii) Executive acknowledges that all notes, memoranda, specifications, devices, formulas, records, files,
lists, drawings, documents, models, equipment, property, computer, software, or intellectual property relating to the businesses of the
Company Group, in whatever form (including electronic), and all copies thereof, that are received or created by Executive while an
employee of the Company (including but not limited to Confidential Information and Inventions) are and shall remain the property of the
Company Group, and Executive shall as promptly as practicable return such property to the Company upon the termination of
Executive’s employment and, in any event, at the Company’s request. Executive agrees further that any property situated on the premises
of, and owned by, the Company or any member of the Company Group, including disks and other storage media, filing cabinets, and
other work areas, is subject to inspection by the Company’s personnel at any time with or without notice.

(iv) Executive agrees further that Executive will not improperly use or disclose any confidential
information or trade secrets, if any, of any former employers or any other Person to whom Executive has an obligation of confidentiality,
and will not bring onto the premises of the Company or any member of the Company Group any unpublished documents or any property
belonging to any former employer or any other Person to whom Executive has an obligation of confidentiality unless consented to in
writing by the former employer or other Person.

(b) Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit or impede the Executive from communicating, cooperating or filing
a complaint with any U.S. federal, state or local governmental or law enforcement branch, agency or entity (collectively, a
“Governmental Entity”) with respect to possible violations of any U.S. federal, state or local law or regulation, or otherwise making
disclosures to any Governmental Entity, in each case, that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of any such law or regulation,
provided that in each case such communications and disclosures are consistent with applicable law. The Executive understands and
acknowledges that an individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure
of a trade secret that is made (i) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official or to an attorney solely for the purpose of
reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law, or (ii) in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if
such filing is made under seal. The Executive understands and acknowledges further that an individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation
by an employer for reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose the trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade
secret information in the court proceeding, if the individual files any document
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containing the trade secret under seal; and does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, under no circumstance will the Executive be authorized to disclose any information covered by attorney-client privilege or
attorney work product of any member of the Company without prior written consent of the Company’s General Counsel or other officer
designated by the Company.

(c) Intellectual Property.

(i) Executive agrees that the results and proceeds of Executive’s services for the Company Group
(including, but not limited to, any Confidential Information and other trade secrets, products, services, processes, know-how, designs,
developments, innovations, analyses, drawings, reports, techniques, formulas, methods, developmental or experimental work,
improvements, discoveries, inventions, ideas, source and object codes, programs, matters of a literary, musical, dramatic, or otherwise
creative nature, writings, and other works of authorship) resulting from services performed while an employee of the Company and any
works in progress, whether or not patentable or registrable under copyright or similar statutes, that were made, developed, conceived, or
reduced to practice or learned by Executive, either alone or jointly with others (collectively, “Inventions”), shall be works-made-for-hire,
and the Company (or, if applicable or as directed by the Company, any member of the Company Group) shall be deemed the sole owner
throughout the universe of any and all trade secret, patent, copyright, and other intellectual property rights (collectively, “Proprietary
Rights”) of whatsoever nature therein, whether or not now or hereafter known, existing, contemplated, recognized, or developed, with
the right to use the same in perpetuity in any manner the Company determines in its sole discretion, without any further payment to
Executive whatsoever. If, for any reason, any of such results and proceeds shall not legally be a work-made-for-hire or there are any
Proprietary Rights that do not accrue to the Company (or, as the case may be, any member of the Company Group) under the
immediately preceding sentence, then Executive hereby irrevocably assigns and agrees to assign any and all of Executive’s right, title,
and interest thereto, including any and all Proprietary Rights of whatsoever nature therein, whether or not now or hereafter known,
existing, contemplated, recognized, or developed, to the Company (or, if applicable or as directed by the Company, any member of the
Company Group), and the Company or such member of the Company Group shall have the right to use the same in perpetuity throughout
the universe in any manner determined by the Company or such member of the Company Group without any further payment to
Executive whatsoever. As to any Invention that Executive is required to assign, Executive shall promptly and fully disclose to the
Company all information known to Executive concerning such Invention.

(ii) Executive agrees that, from time to time, as may be requested by the Company and at the Company’s
sole cost and expense, Executive shall do any and all things that the Company may reasonably deem useful or desirable to establish or
document the Company’s exclusive ownership throughout the United States of America or any other country of any and all Proprietary
Rights in any such Inventions, including the execution of appropriate copyright or patent applications or assignments. To the extent that
Executive has any Proprietary Rights in the Inventions that cannot be assigned in the manner described above, Executive unconditionally
and irrevocably waives the enforcement of such Proprietary Rights. This Section 2(b)(ii) is subject to and shall not be deemed to limit,
restrict, or constitute any waiver by the Company of ownership of any Proprietary Rights to which the Company (or other applicable
member of the Company Group) may be entitled by operation of law by virtue of the Company’s (or other applicable
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member of the Company Group’s) being Executive’s employer. Executive agrees further that, from time to time, as may be requested by
the Company and at the Company’s sole cost and expense, Executive shall assist the Company in every reasonable, proper and lawful
way to obtain and from time to time enforce Proprietary Rights relating to Inventions in any and all countries. To this end, Executive
shall execute, verify, and deliver such documents and perform such other acts (including appearances as a witness) as the Company may
reasonably request for use in applying for, obtaining, perfecting, evidencing, sustaining, and enforcing such Proprietary Rights and the
assignment thereof. In addition, Executive shall execute, verify, and deliver assignments of such Proprietary Rights to the Company or its
designees. Executive’s obligation to assist the Company with respect to Proprietary Rights relating to such Inventions in any and all
countries shall continue beyond the termination of Executive’s employment with the Company.

(iii) Executive hereby waives and quitclaims to the Company any and all claims, of any nature
whatsoever, that Executive now or may hereafter have for infringement of any Proprietary Rights assigned hereunder to the Company.

3. Non-Disparagement. Executive shall not, whether in writing (electronically or otherwise) or orally, malign, denigrate,
or disparage the Company, any other member of the Company Group, or any of their respective predecessors or successors, or any of
their respective current or former managers, directors, officers, employees, shareholders, partners, members, agents, or representatives,
with respect to any of their respective past or present activities, or otherwise publish (whether in writing (electronically or otherwise) or
orally) statements that tend to portray any of the aforementioned parties in an unfavorable light.
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Exhibit 10.2

Certain confidential information contained in this document, marked by brackets, has been omitted because it is both (i) not
material and (ii) would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed.

PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE
UNDER THE

CERTARA, INC.
2020 INCENTIVE PLAN

Certara, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2020 Incentive Plan, as it may be amended and
restated from time to time (the “Plan”), hereby grants to the Participant set forth below the number of Performance Stock Units
(“Performance Stock Units” or “PSUs”) set forth below. The Performance Stock Units are subject to all of the terms and conditions as set
forth herein, in the Performance Stock Unit Agreement including any addendum to such agreement for the Participant’s country (the
“Addendum”), as attached (together, the “Performance Stock Unit Agreement”), and in the Plan, all of which are incorporated herein in
their entirety. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Plan.

Participant: [●]

Date of Grant: [●]

Number of
Performance Stock Units: [●]

Performance Period: The three-year period comprised of the Company’s fiscal years 2022, 2023 and 2024.

Performance Conditions: Settlement of the Performance Stock Units shall be subject to satisfaction of the Performance
Conditions in accordance with Appendix A, attached to this Grant Notice.

Dividend Equivalents: The Performance Stock Units shall be credited with dividend equivalent payments, as provided in
Section 13(c)(iii) of the Plan.

*          *          *
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THE PARTICIPANT DOES NOT HAVE TO ACCEPT THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS. IF THE PARTICIPANT
WISHES TO DECLINE THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS, THE PARTICIPANT SHOULD PROMPTLY NOTIFY THE
GENERAL COUNSEL OF THE COMPANY OF THE PARTICIPANT’S DECISION IN WRITING. IF THE PARTICIPANT
DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH NOTIFICATION WITHIN 60 DAYS OF GRANT, THE PARTICIPANT WILL BE DEEMED TO
HAVE ACCEPTED THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS ON THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THIS
PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE, THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT AND THE PLAN.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED APPENDIX A
TO THE GRANT NOTICE

The number of PSUs that will be subject to settlement (the “Earned PSUs”) will be calculated based on achievement of the applicable
Performance Conditions, as set forth below.

1. Performance Conditions

PSUs shall be bifurcated into two equal tranches: “Tranche I PSUs,” which will be subject to a Performance Condition based on Revenue
Growth, and “Tranche II PSUs,” which will be subject to a Performance Condition based on Unlevered Free Cash Flow Growth
(“UFCF”), in each case, as set forth in the table below:

Tranche I Tranche II
Performance Condition1 Revenue Growth Unlevered Free Cash


Flow Growth
Threshold Level of Achievement [* * *] [* * *]
Target Level of Achievement [* * *] [* * *]
Maximum Level of Achievement [* * *] [* * *]

2. Calculation of Annual Weighting Percentages

Following the last day of each applicable fiscal year during the Performance Period (or, if earlier, upon a Change in Control), the
Committee shall determine the level of achievement with respect to each Performance Condition in respect of such fiscal year and
calculate the “Weighting Percentage” (as set forth the table below) for such fiscal year with respect to each of the Tranche I PSUs and the
Tranche II PSUs based on such level of achievement in accordance with the following table:

Level of Achievement Weighting Percentage
Below Threshold 0%
Threshold 50%
Target 100%
Maximum 135%
Above Maximum 135%

1 The Performance Conditions were established with the assumption that 5% growth for each financial metric would be attributable to
incremental Revenue or UFCF in the Measurement Year from mergers or acquisitions that occurred in the Base Year (“Base Year
M&A”). For years two and three of the Performance Period only, to the extent such growth accounts for less than 5% growth for a
particular Tranche (or Tranches) in a given Measurement Year, the Performance Condition will be reduced by 5 percentage points
for that respective Tranche(s), in which case all Revenue or UFCF, as applicable, from such Base Year M&A will be discounted in
both the Base Year and Measurement Year. For example, if 2023 Revenue generated from an acquisition that occurred in 2022
accounts for less than 5% of the total Company Revenue growth in 2023, the Threshold, Target, and Maximum Level of
Achievement for Tranche I (Revenue Growth) in 2023 would be 10%, 15%, and 20%, respectively, and any Revenue generated from
that acquisition would be ignored (in both the Base Year (2022) and Measurement Year (2023)).
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Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, if actual performance with respect to any tranche is between (i) “Threshold” and
“Target” or (ii) “Target” and “Maximum” levels of achievement, the Weighting Percentage shall be determined using linear interpolation
(and rounded to the nearest whole percentage point) between such numbers. In the event of a Change in Control during the Performance
Period, the Committee shall determine the Weighting Percentage for the fiscal year during which such Change in Control occurs and any
subsequent fiscal year during the Performance Period. When calculating the Weighted Percentage, the Committee shall have the
authority to make appropriate adjustments to Revenue Growth and Unlevered Free Cash Flow Growth to account for unanticipated
material changes, such as changes in accounting standards, unplanned foreign exchange impact beyond a 5% marginal impact, or
Revenue attributable to acquisitions or divestitures All determinations with respect to whether and to the extent to which a Performance
Condition has been achieved and of the calculation of the Weighting Percentage (including without limitation in the event of a Change in
Control) shall, in each case, be made by the Committee in its sole discretion, whose decision shall be final and binding on the Participant.

3. Calculation of Earned PSUs

Following the end of the Performance Period (and prior to the date the PSUs are settled in accordance with Section 3 of the Performance
Stock Unit Agreement (the “Settlement Date”), the Committee shall determine (i) the “Final Weighting Percentage” with respect to each
tranche of PSUs by taking the average of the Weighting Percentages calculated for each fiscal year of the Performance Period, but in no
event shall the Final Weighted Percentage exceed 100%; and (ii) the number of PSUs that become Earned PSUs, which shall equal the
sum of:

· (x) the number of Tranche I PSUs multiplied by (y) the Final Weighting Percentage applicable to the Tranche I PSUs
multiplied by (z) a quotient, the numerator of which is the Participant’s number of full years of employment during the
Performance Period and the denominator of which is 3 (such result rounded up to the nearest whole unit); plus

· (x) the number of Tranche II PSUs multiplied by (y) the Final Weighting Percentage applicable to the Tranche II PSUs
multiplied by (z) a quotient, the numerator of which is the Participant’s number of full years of employment during the
Performance Period and the denominator of which is 3 (such result rounded up to the nearest whole unit).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant undergoes a Termination by the Service Recipient other than for Cause in connection
with or within 12 months following a Change in Control, the quotient for both subsections (z) above shall be 1 (in other words, the
numerator shall be 3, regardless of term of employment).

Any PSUs which do not become Earned PSUs in accordance with the above formula shall be forfeited as of the date of determination.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in the event of the Participant’s Termination for Cause prior to the Settlement
Date, all of the Participant’s PSUs shall be forfeited as of the date of such Termination, and none of the PSUs shall become Earned PSUs.
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4. Definitions

(a) “Base Year” shall mean the fiscal year occurring immediately prior to the Measurement Year.

(b) “Measurement Year” shall mean the fiscal year for which the Performance Conditions are measured. For example, in
calculating the Revenue growth for fiscal year 2022, the Base Year would be 2021 and the Measurement Year would be 2022.

(c) “Revenue” shall mean the revenue which is publicly disclosed in (or otherwise calculated in a manner consistent with)
the Company’s earnings release for the applicable Measurement Year financial results, excluding for the purpose of calculating Revenue
growth from the Base Year, all revenue resulting from any and all merger & acquisition activity occurring within the Measurement Year
(“M&A Revenue”) to the extent such M&A Revenue exceeds 4% of total Revenue for such year. For purposes of calculating Revenue
growth for the year following the year in which applicable M&A Revenue is recognized, such M&A Revenue will be included in the
Base Year (subject to adjustment per footnote 1).

(d) “Revenue Growth” shall mean the one-year growth rate with respect to Revenue, which shall be expressed as a
percentage (rounded to the nearest tenth of a percent).

(e) “Unlevered Free Cash Flow” shall mean with respect to the applicable Measurement Year, the Company’s Adjusted
EBITDA (as defined in the Company’s annual SEC filings) minus capital expenditures and minus changes in non-cash working capital,
as adjusted for (i) any unplanned loss(es) or gain(s) of a non-recurring nature, such as material restructuring or reorganizations and
litigation/settlement expenses, (ii) unplanned foreign exchange impact beyond a marginal impact of 5%, (iii) integration costs relating to
any merger & acquisition activity, (iv) changes in working capital accounts that are excluded in Adjusted EBITDA, such as deferred tax
accounts; as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion (subject to further adjustment per footnote 1).

(f) “Unlevered Free Cash Flow Growth” shall mean the growth rate with respect to Unlevered Free Cash Flow, which
shall be expressed as a percentage (rounded to the nearest tenth of a percent)
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PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT
UNDER THE

CERTARA, INC.
2020 INCENTIVE PLAN

Pursuant to the Performance Stock Unit Grant Notice (the “Grant Notice”) delivered to the Participant (as defined in the Grant
Notice), and subject to the terms of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement including any addendum to the Performance Stock Unit
Agreement for the Participant’s country (the “Addendum”) as attached (together, the “Performance Stock Unit Agreement”) and the
Certara, Inc. 2020 Incentive Plan, as it may be amended and restated from time to time (the “Plan”), Certara, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”) and the Participant agree as follows. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same
meaning as set forth in the Plan.

1. Grant of Performance Stock Units. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Plan, the Company
hereby grants to the Participant the number of Performance Stock Units provided in the Grant Notice (with the number of Performance
Stock Units that become Earned PSUs representing an unfunded, unsecured right to receive one share of Common Stock upon the
settlement of such PSUs). The Company may make one or more additional grants of Performance Stock Units to the Participant under
this Performance Stock Unit Agreement by providing the Participant with a new grant notice, which may also include any terms and
conditions differing from this Performance Stock Unit Agreement to the extent provided therein. The Company reserves all rights with
respect to the granting of additional Performance Stock Units hereunder and makes no implied promise to grant additional Performance
Stock Units. For purposes of the Plan, Performance Stock Units shall be deemed a Restricted Stock Unit subject to the Performance
Conditions set forth in the Grant Notice.

2. Earned PSUs. Subject to the conditions contained herein and in the Plan, the Performance Stock Units shall become
Earned PSUs as provided in the Grant Notice.

3. Settlement of Performance Stock Units. The Company will deliver to the Participant, without charge on March 1st of
the year immediately following the last day of the Performance Period (or as soon as reasonably practical following a Termination by the
participant other than for Cause in connection with or within 12 months of a Change in Control) one share of Common Stock for each
Earned PSU (as adjusted under the Plan, as applicable) and such Earned PSU shall be cancelled upon such delivery. The Company shall
either (a) deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Participant a certificate or certificates therefor, registered in the Participant’s name or
(b) cause such shares of Common Stock to be credited to the Participant’s account at the third party plan administrator. Notwithstanding
anything in this Performance Stock Unit Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall have no obligation to issue or transfer any shares
of Common Stock as contemplated by this Performance Stock Unit Agreement unless and until such issuance or transfer complies with
all relevant provisions of law and the requirements of any stock exchange on which the Company’s shares of Common Stock are listed
for trading. Notwithstanding the terms of the Plan, “Change in Control” hereunder shall be limited to such transactions that meet the
definition used for purposes of Treas. Reg. Sections 1.409A-3(a)(5) and 1.409A-3(i)(5).

4. Treatment of Performance Stock Units Upon Termination. Treatment of Performance Stock Units upon a
Participant’s Termination shall be as set forth in the Grant Notice. For purposes of the Performance Stock Units, the Participant’s
employment relationship will be considered terminated as of the date of the Participant’s Termination (regardless of the reason for such
termination and whether or not later found to be invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where theParticipant is
employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any), and such date will not be extended by any notice period (e.g.,
the Participant’s period of employment would not include any contractual notice period
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or any period of “garden leave” or similar period mandated under employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed
or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any); the Committee shall have the exclusive discretion to determine when the
Participant is no longer actively providing services for purposes of the Performance Stock Unit grant (including whether the Participant
may still be considered to be providing service while on a leave of absence).

5. Company; Participant.

(a) The term “Company” as used in this Performance Stock Unit Agreement with reference to service shall include the
Company and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates.

(b) Whenever the word “Participant” is used in any provision of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement under
circumstances where the provision should logically be construed to apply to the executors, the administrators, or the person or persons to
whom the Performance Stock Units may be transferred in accordance with Section 13(b) of the Plan, the word “Participant” shall be
deemed to include such person or person.

6. Non-Transferability. The Performance Stock Units are not transferable by the Participant except to Permitted
Transferees in accordance with Section 13(b) of the Plan. Except as otherwise provided herein, no assignment or transfer of the
Performance Stock Units, or of the rights represented thereby, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, shall
vest in the assignee or transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but immediately upon such assignment or transfer the
Performance Stock Units shall terminate and become of no further effect.

7. Rights as Shareholder. Subject to any dividend equivalent payments to be provided to the Participant in accordance
with the Grant Notice and Section 13(c)(iii) of the Plan, the Participant or a Permitted Transferee of the Performance Stock Units shall
have no rights as a shareholder with respect to any share of Common Stock underlying a Performance Stock Unit unless and until the
Participant shall have become the holder of record or the beneficial owner of such share of Common Stock, and no adjustment shall be
made for dividends or distributions or other rights in respect of such share of Common Stock for which the record date is prior to the date
upon which the Participant shall become the holder of record or the beneficial owner thereof.

8. Tax Withholding.

(a) The Participant acknowledges that, regardless of any action taken by the Company or, if different, the Participant’s
employer (the “Employer”), the ultimate liability for all income tax, social insurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account
or other tax-related items related to the Participant’s participation in the Plan and legally applicable to the Participant (“Tax-
RelatedItems”) is and remains the Participant’s responsibility and may exceed the amount actually withheld by the Company or the
Employer. The Participant further acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (i) make no representations or undertakings
regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related Items in connection with any aspect of the Performance Stock Units, including, but not
limited to, the grant or vesting of the Performance Stock Units, the subsequent sale of shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to
such settlement; and (ii) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the terms of the grant or any aspect of Performance
Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s liability for Tax-Related Items or achieve any particular tax result. The Participant
shall not make any claim against the Company, the Employer, or their respective board, officers or employees related to Tax-Related
Items arising from the Performance Stock Units. Further, if the Participant is subject to Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction,
the Participant acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold or
account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.
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(b) Prior to the relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant agrees to make adequate
arrangements satisfactory to the Company and/or the Employer to satisfy all Tax-Related Items. In this regard, the Participant authorizes
the Company and/or the Employer, or their respective agents, to satisfy any applicable withholding obligations with regard to Tax-
Related Items by withholding from the number of shares of Common Stock otherwise deliverable pursuant to the settlement of the
Performance Stock Units a number of shares of Common Stock with a Fair Market Value, on the date that the Performance Stock Units
are settled, equal to such withholding liability; provided that the number of such shares may not have a Fair Market Value greater than
the minimum required statutory withholding liability unless determined by the Committee not to result in adverse accounting
consequences. Alternatively, if the Company determines in its sole discretion that withholding shares of Common Stock is not feasible
under applicable tax or securities laws or has materially adverse accounting consequences, the Participant authorizes the Company and/or
the Employer, or their respective agents, at their discretion and with no obligation to do so, to satisfy any applicable withholding
obligations with regard to Tax-Related Items by one or a combination of the following:

(i) withholding from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation paid to the Participant by the Company
or the Employer;

(ii) withholding from proceeds of the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired at settlement either through a
voluntary sale or through a mandatory sale arranged by the Company (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this authorization)
without further consent; and/or

(iii) any other methods approved by the Committee and permitted by applicable laws.

(c) The Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering statutory or other withholding rates,
including minimum or maximum rates applicable in my jurisdiction(s). In the event of over-withholding, the Participant may receive a
refund of any over- withheld amount in cash (with no entitlement to the equivalent in Common Stock), or if not refunded, the Participant
may seek a refund from the local tax authorities. In the event of under-withholding, the Participant may be required to pay any additional
Tax-Related Items directly to the applicable tax authority or to the Company and/or the Employer. If the obligation for Tax-Related Items
is satisfied by withholding in shares of Common Stock, the Participant is deemed, for tax purposes, to have been issued the full number
of shares of Common Stock subject to the Earned PSUs, notwithstanding that a number of the shares of Common Stock is held back
solely for the purpose of paying the Tax-Related Items. The Company may refuse to issue or deliver the shares of Common Stock or the
proceeds of the sale of shares of Common Stock, if the Participant fails to comply with his or her obligations in connection with the Tax-
Related Items.

9. Notice. Every notice or other communication relating to this Performance Stock Unit Agreement between the
Company and the Participant shall be in writing, which may include by electronic mail, and shall be mailed to or delivered to the party
for whom it is intended at such address as may from time to time be designated by such party in a notice mailed or delivered to the other
party as herein provided; provided that, unless and until some other address be so designated, all notices or communications by the
Participant to the Company shall be mailed or delivered to the Company at its principal executive office, to the attention of the
Company’s General Counsel or its designee, and all notices or communications by the Company to the Participant may be given to the
Participant personally or may be mailed to the Participant at the Participant’s last known address, as reflected in the Company’s records.
Notwithstanding the above, all notices and communications between the Participant and any third-party plan administrator shall be
mailed, delivered, transmitted or sent in accordance with the procedures established by such third-party plan administrator and
communicated to the Participant from time to time.
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10. No Right to Continued Service. This Performance Stock Unit Agreement does not confer upon the Participant any
right to continue as an employee or other service provider to the Company or, if different, the Employer. The grant of Performance Stock
Units is an exceptional, voluntary and one-time benefit and does not create any contractual or other right to receive any other grant of
other Award (including Performance Stock Units) under the Plan in the future, or benefits in lieu of Performance Stock Units, even if
Performance Stock Units have been granted in the past. The grant of the Performance Stock Units does not form or amend part of the
Participant’s entitlement to remuneration or benefits in terms of his or her employment or other service relationship with the Company or,
if different, the Employer, if any, at any time.

11. Nature of Grant. In accepting the Performance Stock Units, the Participant acknowledges, understands and agrees
that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature, and may be modified, amended,
suspended or terminated by the Company at any time, to the extent permitted by the Plan;

(b) all decisions with respect to future Performance Stock Units or other grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the
Company;

(c) the Participant is voluntarily participating in the Plan;

(d) the Performance Stock Units and any shares of Common Stock acquired upon settlement, and the income and value of
same, are not intended to replace any pension rights or compensation;

(e) the Performance Stock Units and any shares of Common Stock acquired upon settlement, and the income and value of
same, are not part of normal or expected compensation for purposes of, including, but not limited to, calculating any
severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, end-of-service payments, bonuses, long-service awards,
leave-related payments, holiday pay, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar mandatory payments;

(f) the future value of the shares of Common Stock underlying the Performance Stock Units is unknown, indeterminable,
and cannot be predicted with certainty;

(g) if the Performance Stock Units become Earned PSUs and the Participant acquires shares of Common Stock, the value
of such Common Stock may increase or decrease;

(h) unless otherwise agreed with the Company in writing, the Performance Stock Units and the shares of Common Stock
subject to the Performance Stock Units, and the income and value of same, are not granted as consideration for, or in
connection with, the service the Participant may provide as a director of any Subsidiary;

(i) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Performance Stock Units
resulting from a Termination (for any reason whatsoever, whether or not later found to be invalid or in breach of
employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or rendering services or the terms of the
Participant’s employment or service agreement, if any);
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(j) unless otherwise provided in the Plan or by the Company in its sole discretion, the Performance Stock Units and the
benefits evidenced by this Performance Stock Unit Agreement do not create any entitlement to have the Performance
Stock Units or any such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, another company nor to be exchanged, cashed out or
substituted for, in connection with any corporate transaction affecting the shares of Common Stock;

(k) neither the Company nor the Employer shall be liable for any foreign exchange rate fluctuation between the
Participant’s local currency and the United States Dollar that may affect the value of the Performance Stock Units or of
any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the settlement of the Performance Stock Units or the subsequent sale of
any shares of Common Stock acquired upon settlement; and

(l) the Company is not providing any tax, legal or financial advice, nor is the Company making any recommendations
regarding the Participant’s participation in the Plan or the Participant’s acquisition or sale of the shares of Common
Stock. The Participant should consult with his or her personal tax, legal and financial advisors regarding his or her
participation in the Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.

12. Data Privacy.

The Company is located at 100 Overlook Center, Suite 101 Princeton, New Jersey 08540, USA and grants employees of the
Company, the opportunity to participate in the Plan, at the Company's sole discretion. If the Participant would like to participate in the
Plan, the Participant understands that he or she should review the following information about the Company’s data processing practices
and declare his or her consent.

(a) Data Collection and Usage. The Company collects, processes and uses the Participant's personal data,
including, but without limitation, name, home address and telephone number, date of birth, social insurance number or other
identification number (e.g., resident registration number), passport number, salary, citizenship, job title, any shares of Common
Stock or directorships held in the Company, and details of all awards, canceled, vested, or outstanding in the Participant's favor,
which the Company receives from the Participant or the Participant's Employer. If the Company offers the Participant the
opportunity to participate in the Plan, then the Company will collect the Participant's personal data for purposes of allocating
stock and implementing, administering and managing the Plan. The Company’s legal basis for the processing of the
Participant’s personal data would be the Participant's consent.

(b) Stock Plan Administration Service Providers and International Data Transfers. The Company intends to
transfer participant data to Fidelity Stock Plan Services, LLC, or its affiliate, an independent service provider based in the
United States, which assists the Company with the implementation, administration and management of the Plan. In the future,
the Company may select different service provider(s) and share the Participant's personal data with another company that serves
in similar capacities. The Company’s service providers may open an account for the Participant. The Participant will be asked to
agree on separate terms and data processing practices with the applicable service providers, which, as it relates to Plan
administration service provider, is a condition to the Participant's ability to participate in the Plan. The Company and its service
providers are based in the United States. If the Participant is outside of the United States, the Participant should note that his or
her country may have enacted data privacy laws that are different from the United States.
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(c) Data Retention. The Company will use the Participant's personal data only as long as is necessary to
implement, administer and manage the Participant's participation in the Plan or as required to comply with legal or regulatory
obligations, including under tax and security laws. When the Company no longer needs the Participant's personal data, the
Company will remove it from it from its systems.

(d) Voluntariness and Consequences of Consent Denial or Withdrawal. The Participant's participation in the Plan
and the Participant's grant of consent is purely voluntary. The Participant may deny or withdraw his or her consent at any time.
If the Participant does not consent, or if the Participant withdraws his or her consent, the Participant cannot participate in the
Plan. This would not affect the Participant's salary as an employee; the Participant would merely forfeit the opportunities
associated with the Plan.

(e) Data Subject Rights. The Participant has a number of rights under data privacy laws in his or her country.
Depending on where the Participant is based, his or her rights may include the right to (i) request access or copies of personal
data the Company processes, (ii) rectification of incorrect data, (iii) deletion of data, (iv) restrictions on processing, (v)
portability of data, (vi) to lodge complaints with competent authorities in the Participant’s country, and/or (vii) a list with the
names and addresses of any potential recipients of the Participant’s personal data. To receive clarification regarding the
Participant’s rights or to exercise his or her rights, the Participant should please contact the Company at Attn: Data Privacy
Office/IT, 100 Overlook Center, Suite 101 Princeton, New Jersey 08540, USA.

13. Binding Effect. This Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators and
successors of the parties hereto.

14. Waiver and Amendments. Except as otherwise set forth in Section 12 of the Plan, any waiver, alteration, amendment
or modification of any of the terms of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be valid only if made in writing and signed by the
parties hereto; provided, however, that any such waiver, alteration, amendment or modification is consented to on the Company’s behalf
by the Committee. No waiver by either of the parties hereto of their rights hereunder shall be deemed to constitute a waiver with respect
to any subsequent occurrences or transactions hereunder unless such waiver specifically states that it is to be construed as a continuing
waiver.

15. Governing Law. This Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the
laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. Notwithstanding anything contained in this
Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Grant Notice or the Plan to the contrary, if any suit or claim is instituted by the Participant or the
Company relating to this Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Grant Notice or the Plan, the Participant hereby submits to the
exclusive jurisdiction of and venue in the courts of Delaware.

16. Plan. The terms and provisions of the Plan are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of a conflict or
inconsistency between the terms and provisions of the Plan and the provisions of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement (including the
Grant Notice and Addendum), the Plan shall govern and control.

17. Section 409A. The Performance Stock Units are intended to comply with the provisions of Section 409A of the Code
and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and the Grant Notice and Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be interpreted consistent
with such intent. Without limiting the foregoing, the Committee will have the right to amend the terms and conditions of the Grant
Notice and/or
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the Performance Stock Unit Agreement in any respect as may be necessary or appropriate to comply with Section 409A of the Code or
any regulations promulgated thereunder, including without limitation by delaying the payments contemplated hereunder.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Grant Notice or Performance Stock Unit Agreement to the contrary, if the Participant is a
“specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code, and is subject to U.S. federal income tax, no payments in respect
of any Performance Stock Unit that would otherwise be payable upon the Participant’s “separation from service” (as defined in Section
409A of the Code) will be made to the Participant prior to the date that is six months after the date of the Participant’s “separation from
service” or, if earlier, the Participant’s date of death. Following any applicable six-month delay, all such delayed payments will be paid in
a single lump sum on the earliest date permitted under Section 409A of the Code that is also a business day. The Participant is solely
responsible and liable for the satisfaction of all taxes and penalties under Section 409A of the Code that may be imposed on or in respect
of the Participant in connection with the Performance Stock Units, and the Company will not be liable to any Participant for any payment
made under the Plan or this Performance Stock Unit Agreement that is determined to result in an additional tax, penalty or interest under
Section 409A of the Code, nor for reporting in good faith any payment made in respect of the Performance Stock Units as an amount
includible in gross income under Section 409A of the Code.

18. Imposition of Other Requirements. The Company reserves the right to impose other requirements on the
Participant’s participation in the Plan, on the Performance Stock Units and on any shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan, to
the extent the Company determines it is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require the Participant to sign
any additional agreements or undertakings that may be necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

19. Electronic Delivery and Acceptance. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents
related to current or future participation in the Plan by electronic means. The Participant hereby consents to receive such documents by
electronic delivery and agrees to participate in the Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the
Company or a third party designated by the Company.

20. Compliance with Law. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan or this Performance Stock Unit Agreement,
unless there is an exemption from any registration, qualification or other legal requirement applicable to the shares of Common Stock,
the Company shall not be required to deliver any shares of Common Stock issuable in respect of Earned PSUs prior to the completion of
any registration or qualification of the shares of Common Stock under any U.S. or non-U.S. local, state or federal securities or exchange
control law or regulation or under rulings or regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or of any other
governmental regulatory body, or prior to obtaining any approval or other clearance from any U.S. or non-U.S. local, state or federal
governmental agency, which registration, qualification or approval the Company shall, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary or
advisable. The Participant understands that the Company is under no obligation to register or qualify the shares of Common Stock with
the SEC or any U.S. or non-U.S. state or other securities commission or to seek approval or clearance from any governmental authority
for the issuance or sale of the shares of Common Stock and the inability of the Company to obtain approval from any regulatory body
having authority deemed by the Company to be necessary for the lawful issuance and sale of any shares of Common Stock pursuant to
the Performance Stock Units shall relieve the Company of any liability with respect to the non-issuance or sale of the Shares as to which
such approval shall not have been obtained.

21. Language. The Participant acknowledges that he or she is sufficiently proficient in English to understand the terms and
conditions of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement. Furthermore, if the Participant has received this Performance Stock Unit
Agreement, or any other document related to the Performance Stock Units and/or the Plan translated into a language other than English
and if the meaning of the translated version is different than the English version, the English version will control.



[* * *]=[CONFIDENTIAL PORTION HAS BEEN OMITTED BECAUSE IT (I) IS NOT MATERIAL AND (II) WOULD BE
COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED.]

13

22. Addendum. Notwithstanding any provisions in this Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Performance Stock Units
shall be subject to any special terms and conditions set forth in any Addendum to this Performance Stock Unit Agreement for the
Participant’s country. Moreover, if the Participant relocates to one of the countries included in the Addendum, the special terms and
conditions for such country will apply to the Participant, to the extent the Committee determines that the application of such terms and
conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons. The Addendum constitutes part of this Performance Stock Unit
Agreement.

23. Insider Trading/Market Abuse Restrictions. Depending on the Participant's country, the Participant may be subject
to insider trading restrictions and/or market abuse laws in applicable jurisdictions, which may affect the Participant's ability to, directly or
indirectly, acquire, sell or attempt to sell shares of Common Stock or otherwise dispose of shares of Common Stock or rights to shares of
Common Stock (e.g., the Performance Stock Units) under the Plan during such times as the Participant is considered to have “inside
information” regarding the Company (as defined by the laws in the applicable jurisdictions or the Participant's country). The Participant
could be prohibited from (i) disclosing the inside information to any third party, which may include fellow employees; (ii) “tipping” third
parties or causing them to otherwise buy or sell securities; and (iii) cancelling or amending orders the Participant placed before he or she
possessed inside information. Any restrictions under these laws or regulations are separate from and in addition to any restrictions that
may be imposed under any applicable Company insider trading policy. The Participant is responsible for ensuring the Participant's
compliance with any applicable restrictions and is advised to speak with his or her personal legal advisor on this matter.

24. Exchange Control, Tax And / Or Foreign Asset/Account Reporting. The Participant acknowledges that, depending
on his or her country, the Participant may be subject to foreign asset/account, exchange control and/or tax reporting requirements as a
result of the acquisition, holding and/or transfer of shares of Common Stock or cash derived from his or her participation in the Plan, in,
to and/or from a brokerage/bank account or legal entity located outside the Participant’s country. The applicable laws of the Participant’s
country may require that the Participant report such accounts, assets, the balances therein, the value thereof and/or the transactions
related thereto to the applicable authorities in such country. The Participant acknowledges that he or she is responsible for ensuring
compliance with any applicable foreign asset/account, exchange control and tax reporting requirements and is advised to consult his or
her personal legal advisor on this matter.

25. Severability. It is the desire and intent of the parties hereto that the provisions of this Performance Stock Unit
Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the laws and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which
enforcement is sought. Accordingly, if any particular provision of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be adjudicated by a court
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable for any reason, such provision, as to such jurisdiction, shall be
ineffective, without invalidating the remaining provisions of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement or affecting the validity or
enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such provision could be more narrowly
drawn so as not to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable in such jurisdiction, it shall, as to such jurisdiction, be so narrowly drawn,
without invalidating the remaining provisions of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of
such provision in any other jurisdiction.

26. Entire Agreement. This Performance Stock Unit Agreement (including the Addendum), the Grant Notice and the Plan
constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter contained herein and supersede all prior agreements
and understandings of the parties, oral and written, with respect to such subject matter.
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ADDENDUM TO THE
PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE

UNDER THE CERTARA, INC.
2020 INCENTIVE PLAN

Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Addendum have the meanings set forth in the Plan and/or Agreement.

Terms and Conditions

This Addendum includes additional terms and conditions that govern the Performance Stock Units granted to the Participant under the
Plan if the Participant resides and/or works in one of the countries listed below.

If the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which he or she is currently residing and/or working or
transfers to another country after the grant of the Performance Stock Units, or is considered a resident of another country for local law
purposes, the Company shall, in its sole discretion, determine to what extent the terms and conditions contained herein shall apply to the
Participant under these circumstances.

Notifications

This Addendum also includes information regarding exchange controls and certain other issues of which the Participant should be aware
with respect to his or her participation in the Plan. The information is based on the securities, exchange control and other laws in effect in
the respective countries as of December 2020. Such laws are often complex and change frequently. As a result, the Company strongly
recommends that the Participant not rely on the information in this Addendum as the only source of information relating to the
consequences of the Participant’s participation in the Plan because the information may be out of date at the time that the Performance
Stock Units become Earned PSUs or at the time the Participant sells shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan.

The information contained herein is general in nature and may not apply to the Participant’s particular situation and the Company is not
in a position to assure the Participant of any particular result. Accordingly, the Participant is advised to seek appropriate professional
advice as to how the relevant laws in the Participant’s country may apply to his or her situation.

If the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which he or she is currently residing and/or working or
transfers to another country after the grant of the Performance Stock Units, or is considered a resident of another country for local law
purposes, the information contained herein may not be applicable to the Participant in the same manner.
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CANADA

Terms and Conditions

Performance Stock Units Payable Only in Shares. Notwithstanding Section 3 of the Agreement, the grant of the Performance Stock
Units does not provide any right for the Participant to receive a cash payment, and settlement of the Performance Stock Units is payable
only in shares of Common Stock.

The following provisions will apply to Participants who are residents of Quebec:

Language Consent. The parties acknowledge that it is their express wish that the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, as well as all
documents, notices and legal proceeds entered into, given or instituted pursuant hereto or relating directly or indirectly hereto, be drawn
up in English.

Consentement relatif à la langue utilisée: Les parties reconnaissent avoir exigé la rédaction en anglais de cette convention, ainsi que de
tous documents, avis et procédures judiciaires, exécutés, donnés ou intentés en vertu de, ou liés directement ou indirectement à, la
présente convention.

Data Privacy Notice. This provision supplements Section 12 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:

The Participant hereby authorizes the Company and the Company’s representatives to discuss with and obtain all relevant information
from all personnel, professional or not, involved in the administration and operation of the Plan. The Participant further authorizes the
Employer and the Company to disclose and discuss the Plan with their respective advisors. The Participant further authorizes the
Employer, and the Company to record such information and to keep such information in the Participant’s employee file.

Notifications

Securities Law Notification. The Participant acknowledges that he or she is permitted to sell Shares acquired under the Plan, provided
the sale of the Shares acquired under the Plan takes place outside of Canada.

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. The Participant is required to report any foreign specified property (including shares of
Common Stock acquired under the Plan) with a value exceeding C$100,000 on Form T1135 (Foreign Income Verification Statement) on
an annual basis. The statement is due at the same time as the Participant’s annual tax return. The Performance Stock Units must be
reported (generally at a nil cost) if the $100,000 cost threshold is exceeded because of other foreign specified property the Participant
holds at any time during the year. If Shares are acquired, their cost generally is the adjusted cost base (“ACB”) of the Shares. The ACB
ordinarily would equal the fair market value of the shares of Common Stock at the time of acquisition, but if the Participant owns other
shares of Common Stock, this ACB may have to be averaged with the ACB of the other shares of Common Stock. The form must be
filed by April 30 of the following year. The Participant is strongly advised to check with his or her personal advisor regarding the
Participant’s reporting obligations.
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FRANCE

Terms and Conditions

Performance Stock Units Not Tax-Qualified. The Participant understands that the Performance Stock Units are not intended to be
French tax-qualified.

Language Consent. By accepting the Award, the Participant confirms that he or she has read and understood the documents relating to
the Performance Stock Units (the Grant Notice, the Plan, and the Performance Stock Unit Agreement) which were provided in the
English language. The Participant accepts the terms of these documents accordingly.

Consentement relatif à la langue utilisée: En acceptant l’Attribution, le Bénéficiaire confirme qu’il ou qu’elle a lu et compris les
documents afférents aux Attributions Gratuites d’Actions (la Notification d’Attribution, le Plan et les Termes de l’Attribution, ainsi que
la présente Annexe) qui sont produits en langue anglaise. Le Bénéficiaire accepte les termes de ces documents en connaissance de cause.

Notifications

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. If the Participant retains shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan outside of
France or maintains a foreign bank account, the Participant is required to report such to the French tax authorities when filing his or her
annual tax return. Further, French residents with foreign account balances exceeding €1,000,000 may have additional monthly reporting
obligations.

GERMANY

Notifications

Exchange Control Notification. Cross-border payments in excess of €12,500 (including transactions made in connection with the sale
of securities) must be reported monthly to the German Federal Bank (Bundesbank). If the Participant makes or receives a payment in
excess of this amount in connection with the Participant’s participation in the Plan, the Participant must report the payment to
Bundesbank electronically using the “General Statistics Reporting Portal” (“Allgemeines Meldeportal Statistik”) available via
Bundesbank’s website (www.bundesbank.de).

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. If the acquisition of shares of Common Stock under the Plan leads to a “qualified
participation” at any point during the calendar year, the Participant understands that he or she will need to report the acquisition when the
Participant files his or her tax return for the relevant year. A qualified participation is attained if (i) the value of the shares of Common
Stock acquired exceeds a certain threshold or (ii) in the unlikely event the Participant holds shares of Common Stock exceeding a certain
threshold of the Company’s total Common Stock. However, provided the shares of Common Stock are listed on a recognized stock
exchange (e.g., the Nasdaq Stock Market) and the Participant owns less than 1% of the Company, this requirement will not apply. The
Participant should consult with his or her personal tax advisor to ensure the Participant complies with applicable reporting obligations.
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INDIA

Notifications

Exchange Control Notification. It is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with any applicable exchange control regulations in
India. The Participant must repatriate the proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock or the receipt of any dividends (if
applicable) to India within a certain time period after receipt. The Participant must retain the foreign inward remittance certificate
received from the bank where the foreign currency is deposited in the event that the Reserve Bank of India or the Employer requests
proof of repatriation. It is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with these requirements.

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. The Participant is required to declare any foreign bank accounts for which Participant
has signing authority and any foreign financial assets (including shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) in his or her annual
tax return. It is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with this reporting obligation and the Participant should consult his or her
personal advisor in this regard.

ITALY

Terms and Conditions

Plan Document Acknowledgment. In accepting the grant of Performance Stock Units, the Participant acknowledges that they have
received a copy of the Plan and the Performance Stock Unit Agreement and have reviewed the Plan and the Performance Stock Unit
Agreement in their entirety and fully understand and accept all provisions of the Plan and the Performance Stock Unit Agreement. The
Participant further acknowledge that they have read and specifically and expressly approve the following section of the Performance
Stock Unit Agreement: Earned PSUs, Settlement of Performance Stock Units, Treatment of Performance Stock Units Upon Termination,
Tax Withholding, Governing Law, Imposition of Other Requirements, Compliance with Law, and Data Privacy.

Notifications

Foreign Asset / Account Reporting. Italian residents who, at any time during the fiscal year, hold foreign financial assets (e.g., cash,
shares of Common Stock, etc.) which may generate income taxable in Italy are required to report such investments or assets on their
annual tax returns (UNICO Form, RW Schedule) or on a special form if no tax return is due. The same reporting duties apply to Italian
residents who are beneficial owners of the foreign financial assets pursuant to Italian money laundering provisions, even if they do not
directly hold the foreign asset abroad.

Tax on Foreign Financial Assets. The value of any shares of Common Stock (and certain other foreign assets) the Participant holds
outside of Italy will be subject to a foreign financial assets tax. Financial assets include shares of Common Stock acquired under the
Plan. The taxable amount will be the fair market value of the financial assets assessed at the end of each calendar year.
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JAPAN

Terms and Conditions

Compliance with Law. By accepting the Performance Stock Units, the Participant agrees to comply with all applicable Japanese laws
and report and pay any and all applicable Tax-Related Items associated with the receipt of Performance Stock Units and any payment
made to the Participant upon settlement of Performance Stock Units. The Participant acknowledges that the Japanese tax authorities are
aware that employees of Japanese affiliates of U.S. companies may earn substantial income as a result of participation in an equity
incentive plan, and may audit the tax returns of such employees to confirm that they have correctly reported the resulting income.

Notifications

Exchange Control Notification. Japanese residents acquiring shares of Common Stock valued at more than ¥100,000,000 in a single
transaction must file a Securities Acquisition Report with the Ministry of Finance through the Bank of Japan within 20 days of the
acquisition of shares of Common Stock.

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. If the Participant holds assets outside of Japan with atotal net fair market value
exceeding ¥50,000,000 as of December 31 (each year), the Participant is required to comply with annual tax reporting obligations with
respect to such assets by March 15 of the following year. The Participant is advised to consult with a personal tax advisor to ensure
compliance with applicable reporting requirements.

NETHERLANDS

There are no country-specific provisions.

PHILIPPINES

Terms and Conditions

Settlement of Performance Stock Units. Issuance of shares of Common Stock is conditioned upon the Company determining that an
exemption exists or the Company securing and maintaining all necessary approvals from the Philippines Securities and Exchange
Commission to permit the operation of the Plan in the Philippines, as determined by the Company in its sole discretion. If or to the extent
the Company is unable to determine that a satisfactory exemption applies or the Company is unable to secure and maintain all necessary
approvals, no shares of Common Stock subject to the Performance Stock Units for which an exemption cannot be obtained or a
registration cannot be completed or maintained shall be issued. In this case, the Company retains the discretion to settle any Performance
Stock Units in cash in an amount equal to the fair market value of the shares of Common Stock less any Tax-Related Items.

Notifications

Securities Law Notice. The offer under the Plan is being made pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Philippines
Securities Regulation Code that has been approved by the Philippines Securities and Exchange Commission.

The risks of participating in the Plan include (without limitation) the risk of fluctuation in the price of the shares of Common Stock on
the Nasdaq Global Select Market and the risk of currency fluctuations between the U.S. Dollar and the Participant's local currency. The
value of any shares of Common Stock the
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Participant may acquire under the Plan may decrease below the value of the shares of Common Stock at settlement (on which the
Participant is required to pay taxes) and fluctuations in foreign exchange rates between the Participant's local currency and the U.S.
Dollar may affect the value any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the subsequent sale of any shares of Common Stock acquired
upon settlement. The Company is not making any representations, projections or assurances about the value of the shares of Common
Stock now or in the future.

For further information on risk factors impacting the Company's business that may affect the value of the shares of Common Stock, you
may refer to the risk factors discussion in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, which are
filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and are available online at www.sec.gov, as well as on the Company’s website
at www.certara.com. In addition, the Participant may receive, free of charge, a copy of the Company's Annual Report, Quarterly Reports
or any other reports, proxy statements or communications distributed to the Company’s stockholders by contacting the Company’s legal
department (Richard Traynor at richard.traynor@certara.com). The telephone number at the executive offices is 609-716-7900.

The Participant acknowledges that they are permitted to sell shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan through the designated
Plan broker appointed by the Company (or such other broker to whom the Participant may transfer the shares of Common Stock),
provided that such sale takes place outside of the Philippines through the facilities of the Nasdaq Global Select Market on which the
shares of Common Stock are listed.

POLAND

Notifications

Foreign Asset/Accounting Reporting Notification. Polish residents holding foreign securities (including shares of Common Stock
acquired under the Plan) and maintaining accounts abroad must report information to the National Bank of Poland on transactions and
balances of the securities and cash deposited in such accounts if the value of such transactions or balances exceeds PLN 7,000,000. If
required, the reports must be filed on a quarterly basis on special forms available on the website of the National Bank of Poland.

Exchange Control Notification. If the Participant transfers funds into Poland in excess of a certain threshold in connection with the sale
of shares of Common Stock under the Plan, the funds must be transferred via a bank account held at a bank in Poland. the Participant is
required to retain the documents connected with a foreign exchange transaction for a period of five (5) years, as measured from the end
of the tax year in which such transaction occurred.

PORTUGAL

Terms and Conditions

Consent to Receive Information in English. The Participant hereby expressly declare that they have full knowledge of the English
language and have read, understood and fully accepted and agreed with the terms and conditions established in the Plan and Performance
Stock Unit Agreement.

Conhecimento da Lingua. Contratado, pelo presente instrumento, declara expressamente que tem pleno conhecimento da língua
inglesa e que leu, compreendeu e livremente aceitou e concordou com ostermos e condições estabelecidas no Plano e no Acordo.
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Notifications

Exchange Control Information. If the Participant receives shares of Common Stock upon vesting and settlement of the Performance
Stock Units, the acquisition of the shares of Common Stock should be reported to the Banco de Portugal for statistical purposes. If the
shares of Common Stock are deposited with a commercial bank or financial intermediary in Portugal, such bank or financial
intermediary will submit the report on the Participant’s behalf. If the shares of Common Stock are not deposited with a commercial bank
or financial intermediary in Portugal, the Participant is responsible for submitting the report to the Banco de Portugal.

SPAIN

Terms and Conditions

Nature of Grant. This provision supplements Section 11 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:

In accepting the Performance Stock Units, the Participant consents to participate in the Plan and acknowledges having received and read
a copy of the Plan.

The Participant understands that the Company has unilaterally, gratuitously and discretionally decided to grant Performance Stock Units
under the Plan to individuals who may be employees of the Company throughout the world. The decision is a limited decision that is
entered into upon the express assumption and condition that any grant will not bind the Company. Consequently, the Participant
understands that the Performance Stock Units are granted on the assumption and condition that such Performance Stock Units and any
shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan shall not become a part of any employment contract and shall not be considered a
mandatory benefit, salary for any purposes (including severance compensation) or any other right whatsoever. In addition, the Participant
understands that the Performance Stock Units would not granted but for the assumptions and conditions referred to above; thus, the
Participant acknowledges and freely accepts that should any or all of the assumptions be mistaken or should any of the conditions not be
met for any reason, then any grant of the Performance Stock Units shall be null and void.

Notifications

Exchange Control Notification. The acquisition, ownership and sale of shares of Common Stock under the Plan must be declared for
statistical purposes to the Spanish Dirección General de Comercio e Inversiones (the “DGCI”), the Bureau for Commerce and
Investments, which is a department of the Ministry of Economy and Competitiveness. Generally, the declaration must be made each
January for shares of Common Stock owned as of December 31st of the prior year, by means of a D-6 form; however, if the value of the
shares of Common Stock acquired or sold exceeds €1,502,530 (or if the Participant holds 10% or more of the share capital of the
Company or such other amount that would entitle the Participant to join the Company’s board of directors), the declaration must be filed
also within one month of the acquisition or sale, as applicable.

The Participant is required to declare electronically to the Bank of Spain any securities accounts (including brokerage accounts held
abroad), foreign instruments (including any shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) and any transactions with non-Spanish
residents (including any payments of shares of Common Stock made to the Participant by the Company), depending on the amount of the
transactions during the relevant year or the balances in such accounts as of December 31st of the relevant year. Generally, the report is
required on an annual basis (by January 20 of each year). The Participant should consult with his or her personal advisor to ensure that
the Participant is properly complying with his or her reporting obligations.
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Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. If the Participant holds rights or assets (e.g., shares of Common Stock or cash held in a
bank or brokerage account) outside of Spain with a value in excess of €50,000 per type of right or asset (e.g., shares of Common Stock,
cash, etc.) as of December 31 each year, the Participant is required to report certain information regarding such rights and assets on tax
form 720. After such rights and/or assets are initially reported, the reporting obligation will only apply for subsequent years if the value
of any previously-reported rights or assets increases by more than €20,000. If reporting is required, the reporting must be completed by
the following March 31. The Participant should consult his or her personal tax advisor for details regarding this requirement.

Securities Law Notification. The Performance Stock Units described in this document do not qualify as securities under Spanish
regulations. No “offer of securities to the public,” within the meaning of Spanish law, has taken place or will take place in the Spanish
territory. The Plan, the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, and any other documents evidencing the award of Performance Stock Units
have not been, nor will they be, registered with the Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores (Spanish Securities Exchange
Commission), and none of those documents constitutes a public offering prospectus.

SWEDEN

Terms and Conditions

Tax Withholding. This provision supplements Section 8 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:

Without limiting the Company’s and the Employer’s authority to satisfy their obligations for Tax-Related Items as set forth in Section 8
of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, by accepting the Performance Stock Units, the Participant authorizes the Company and/or the
Employer to withhold shares of Common Stock or to sell shares of Common Stock otherwise deliverable to the Participant upon
settlement of the Performance Stock Units to satisfy any Tax-Related Items, regardless of whether the Company and/or the Employer
have an obligation to withhold such Tax-Related Items.

SWITZERLAND

Notifications

Securities Law Notification. Because the offer of the Performance Stock Units is considered a private offering in Switzerland; it is not
subject to registration in Switzerland. Neither this document nor any other materials relating to the Performance Stock Units (i) constitute
a prospectus according to articles 35 et seq. of the Swiss Federal Act on Financial Services (“FinSA”), (ii) may be publicly distributed
nor otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland to any person other than the Participant or (iii) has been or will be filed with,
approved or supervised by any Swiss reviewing body according to article 51 FinSA or any Swiss regulatory authority, including the
Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority.

UNITED KINGDOM

Settlement. The following provision supplements Section 3 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:

Notwithstanding any discretion contained in the Plan or the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Performance Stock Units will not be
settled in cash or a combination of cash and shares of Common Stock. The Performance Stock Units will be settled only in shares of
Common Stock.

Tax Withholding. The following provision supplements Section 8 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:
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Without limitation to Section 8 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Participant agrees to be liable for any Tax-Related Items
related to the Participant's participation in the Plan and legally applicable to the Participant and hereby covenants to pay any such Tax-
Related Items, as and when requested by the Employer or by Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs (“HMRC”) (or any other tax authority
or any other relevant authority). The Participant also agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified the Employer against any Tax-Related
Items that the Employer is required to pay or withhold or have paid or will pay to HMRC (or any other tax authority or any other relevant
authority) on the Participant’s behalf.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant is a director or executive officer, the Participant understands that he or she may not be
able to indemnify the Company for the amount of any Tax-Related

Items not collected from or paid by the Participant; in case the indemnification could be considered to be a loan. In this case, the Tax-
Related Items not collected or paid may constitute a benefit to the Participant on which additional income tax and National Insurance
contributions (“NICs”) may be payable. The Participant understands that he or she will be responsible for reporting and paying any
income tax due on this additional benefit directly to HMRC under the self-assessment regime and for paying to the Company and/or the
Employer (as appropriate) the amount of any NICs due on this additional benefit, which may also be recovered from the Participant by
any of the means referred to in Section 8 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement.
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Exhibit 10.3

Certain confidential information contained in this document, marked by brackets, has been omitted because it is both (i) not
material and (ii) would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed.

PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE
UNDER THE

CERTARA, INC.
2020 INCENTIVE PLAN

Certara, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2020 Incentive Plan, as it may be amended and
restated from time to time (the “Plan”), hereby grants to the Participant set forth below the number of Performance Stock Units
(“Performance Stock Units” or “PSUs”) set forth below. The Performance Stock Units are subject to all of the terms and conditions as set
forth herein, in the Performance Stock Unit Agreement including any addendum to such agreement for the Participant’s country (the
“Addendum”), as attached (together, the “Performance Stock Unit Agreement”), and in the Plan, all of which are incorporated herein in
their entirety. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Plan.

Participant:   [●]

Date of Grant: [●]

Number of
Performance Stock Units: [●]

Performance Period: The three-year period comprised of the Company’s fiscal years 2023, 2024 and 2025 (beginning at
12:00 AM January 1 and ending at 12:00 AM January 1 for each year).

Performance Conditions: Settlement of the Performance Stock Units shall be subject to satisfaction of the Performance
Conditions in accordance with Appendix A, attached to this Grant Notice.

Dividend Equivalents: The Performance Stock Units shall be credited with dividend equivalent payments, as provided in
Section 13(c)(iii) of the Plan.

*          *          *
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THE PARTICIPANT DOES NOT HAVE TO ACCEPT THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS. IF THE PARTICIPANT
WISHES TO DECLINE THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS, THE PARTICIPANT SHOULD PROMPTLY NOTIFY THE
GENERAL COUNSEL OF THE COMPANY OF THE PARTICIPANT’S DECISION IN WRITING. IF THE PARTICIPANT
DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH NOTIFICATION WITHIN 60 DAYS OF GRANT, THE PARTICIPANT WILL BE DEEMED TO
HAVE ACCEPTED THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS ON THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THIS
PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE, THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT AND THE PLAN.
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APPENDIX A
TO THE GRANT NOTICE

The number of PSUs that will be subject to settlement (the “Earned PSUs”) will be calculated based on achievement of the applicable
Performance Conditions, as set forth below.

1. Performance Conditions

PSUs shall be bifurcated into two equal tranches: “Tranche I PSUs”, which will be subject to a Performance Condition based on Revenue
Achieved, and “Tranche II PSUs”, which will be subject to a Performance Condition based on Adjusted EBITDA Achieved. The
Threshold, Target, and Maximum Level of Achievement for the first fiscal year of the Performance Period (2023) is set forth in the
following table. The Threshold, Target and Maximum Level of Achievement for the second (2024) and third (2024) fiscal year of the
Performance Period will be established by the Compensation Committee within the first 120 days of each such fiscal year:

Tranche I Tranche II
Performance Condition - 2023 Revenue Achieved Adjusted EBITDA Achieved
Threshold Level of Achievement [* * *] [* * *]
Target Level of Achievement [* * *] [* * *]
Maximum Level of Achievement [* * *] [* * *]

Regardless of the level of achievement for any of the fiscal years during the Performance Period, if the Adjusted EBITDA Margin of the
Company averages less than 20% over the first two fiscal years of the Performance Period, the Earned PSUs will equal zero and all PSUs
will be automatically forfeited.

2. Calculation of Annual Weighting Percentages

Following the last day of each applicable fiscal year during the Performance Period (or, if earlier, upon a Change in Control), the
Committee shall determine the level of achievement with respect to each Performance Condition in respect of such fiscal year and
calculate the “Weighting Percentage” (as set forth the table below) for such fiscal year with respect to each of the Tranche I PSUs and the
Tranche II PSUs based on such level of achievement in accordance with the following table:

LEVEL OF ACHIEVEMENT WEIGHTING PERCENTAGE
Below Threshold 0%
Threshold 50%
Target 100%
Maximum 200%
Above Maximum 200%

Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, if actual performance with respect to any tranche is between (i) “Threshold” and
“Target” or (ii) “Target” and “Maximum” levels of achievement, the Weighting Percentage shall be determined using linear interpolation
(and rounded to the nearest whole percentage point) between such numbers. In the event of a Change in Control during the Performance
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Period, the Committee shall determine the Weighting Percentage for the fiscal year during which such Change in Control occurs and any
subsequent fiscal year during the Performance Period. All determinations with respect to whether and to the extent to which a
Performance Condition has been achieved and of the calculation of the Weighting Percentage (including without limitation in the event
of a Change in Control) shall, in each case, be made by the Committee in its sole discretion, whose decision shall be final and binding on
the Participant.

3. TSR Modification.

The total number of Earned PSUs will be modified (“TSR Modifier”) by the Company’s TSR performance relative to the Peer Group
TSR (the “rTSR Ranking”) for the Performance Period. If rTSR Ranking is at a level anywhere from within the ≤25th percentile and up
to the ≥75th percentile, no TSR Modifier will be applied. If rTSR Ranking is achieved at a level within the ≥75th percentile, the TSR
Modifier will be +20% (i.e. a multiple of 1.2). If the rTSR Ranking is within the 25 percentile, the TSR Modifier will be negative 20%
(i.e. a multiple of 0.8).

4. Calculation of Earned PSUs

Following the end of the Performance Period (and prior to the date the PSUs are settled in accordance with Section 3 of the Performance
Stock Unit Agreement (the “Settlement Date”), the Committee shall determine (i) the “Final Weighting Percentage” with respect to each
tranche of PSUs by taking the average of the Weighting Percentages calculated for each fiscal year of the Performance Period (as
modified by the TSR Modifier, as described below), and (ii) the number of PSUs that become Earned PSUs, which shall equal the sum
of:

· (x) the number of Tranche I PSUs multiplied by (x) the Final Weighting Percentage applicable to the Tranche I PSUs multiplied
by (y) the TSR Modifier (if applicable) multiplied by (z) a quotient, the numerator of which is the Participant’s number of full
years of employment during the Performance Period and the denominator of which is 3 (such result rounded up to the nearest
whole unit); plus

· (x) the number of Tranche II PSUs multiplied by (x) the Final Weighting Percentage applicable to the Tranche II PSUs
multiplied by (y) the TSR Modifier (if applicable) multiplied by (z) a quotient, the numerator of which is the Participant’s
number of full years of employment during the Performance Period and the denominator of which is 3 (such result rounded up
to the nearest whole unit).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant undergoes a Termination other than for Cause in connection with or within 12 months
following a Change in Control, the quotient for both subsections (z) above shall be 1 (in other words, the numerator shall be 3, regardless
of term of employment).

Any PSUs that do not become Earned PSUs in accordance with the above formula shall be forfeited as of the date of determination.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in the event of the Participant’s Termination for Cause prior to the Settlement
Date, all of the Participant’s PSUs shall be forfeited as of the date of such Termination, and none of the PSUs shall become Earned PSUs.
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4. Definitions

(a) “Adjusted EBITDA” means annual net income (loss) excluding (i) interest expense, (ii) provision (benefit) for
income taxes, (iii) depreciation and amortization expense, (iv) intangible asset amortization, (v) equity-based compensation expense, (vi)
acquisition and integration expense, (vii) and other items not indicative of the Company’s operating performance, as reported in the
Company annual report on Form 10-K.

(b) “Adjusted EBITDA Margin” means the percentage calculated by dividing the Adjusted EBITDA in a given
fiscal year by the Revenue achieved in that year.

(b) “Average Market Value” means the average of the closing Market Share Price of the applicable company for
the applicable thirty (30) trading days beginning or ending on a specified date.

(c) “Beginning Average Market Value” means the Average Market Value based on the last thirty (30) trading days
ending on (and including) the day immediately prior to the first day of the Performance Period.

(d) “Ending Average Market Value” means the Average Market Value based on the last thirty (30) trading days of
the Performance Period.

(e) “Market Share Price” means the closing price per share of common stock of the applicable company for the
specified day (or the last preceding day thereto for which reported) as reported by the NYSE, Nasdaq or such other authoritative source
as the Committee may determine.

(f) “Peer Group” means the companies included in the S&P 600 Healthcare Index at both the beginning of the
Performance Period and end of the Performance Period. The Committee’s calculation of the appropriate interpolated percentage shall
disregard the aforementioned companies only to the extent permitted for the Awards to continue to qualify as performance-based
compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code and the transition rule under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, as amended. If any
member of the Peer Group goes bankrupt during the Performance Period, that member will be counted as the lowest in the group.
Members of the Peer Group will not be disregarded solely as the result of acquisitions during the Performance Period except as described
above.

(g) “Peer Group Member TSR” means the TSR for the Performance Period for each applicable company in the
Peer Group

(g) “Revenue” shall mean the revenue which is publicly disclosed in (or otherwise calculated in a manner
consistent with) the Company’s earnings release for the applicable fiscal year financial results:

(i) excluding revenue resulting from any merger & acquisition activity occurring within the current year
(“M&A Revenue”) to the extent that such M&A Revenue exceeds 4% of total Revenue for such year;

(ii) adjusted for any unplanned foreign exchange impact beyond a 5% marginal impact; and

(iii) adjusted for any loss of revenue greater than 4% of total Revenue of the prior year resulting from any
material divestitures.
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(i) “TSR” means, as of a given date, the percentage change in the Average Market Value of a company’s
common stock form the Beginning Average Market Value to the Ending Average Market Value calculated as the quotient of (i)(a) the
applicable Ending Average Market Value minus the applicable Beginning Average Market Value, plus (b) the dividends paid with respect
to a record date occurring during the Performance Period, divided by (ii) the applicable Beginning Average Market Value.

(h) “TSR Ranking” means the Company’s ranking (in the range of highest to lowest) in the TSR Peer Group as of
the end of the Performance Period determined on the basis of the TSR for the Performance Period for the Company and each of the
applicable companies in the Peer Group (with the highest number ranked first and the lowest number ranked last).
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PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT
UNDER THE

CERTARA, INC.
2020 INCENTIVE PLAN

Pursuant to the Performance Stock Unit Grant Notice (the “Grant Notice”) delivered to the Participant (as defined in
the Grant Notice), and subject to the terms of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement including any addendum to the Performance Stock
Unit Agreement for the Participant’s country (the “Addendum”) as attached (together, the “Performance Stock Unit Agreement”) and the
Certara, Inc. 2020 Incentive Plan, as it may be amended and restated from time to time (the “Plan”), Certara, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”) and the Participant agree as follows. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same
meaning as set forth in the Plan.

1. Grant of Performance Stock Units. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Plan, the
Company hereby grants to the Participant the number of Performance Stock Units provided in the Grant Notice (with the number of
Performance Stock Units that become Earned PSUs representing an unfunded, unsecured right to receive one share of Common Stock
upon the settlement of such PSUs). The Company may make one or more additional grants of Performance Stock Units to the Participant
under this Performance Stock Unit Agreement by providing the Participant with a new grant notice, which may also include any terms
and conditions differing from this Performance Stock Unit Agreement to the extent provided therein. The Company reserves all rights
with respect to the granting of additional Performance Stock Units hereunder and makes no implied promise to grant additional
Performance Stock Units. For purposes of the Plan, Performance Stock Units shall be deemed a Restricted Stock Unit subject to the
Performance Conditions set forth in the Grant Notice.

2. Earned PSUs. Subject to the conditions contained herein and in the Plan, the Performance Stock Units shall
become Earned PSUs as provided in the Grant Notice.

3. Settlement of Performance Stock Units. The Company will deliver to the Participant, without charge on
March 1st of the year immediately following the last day of the Performance Period (or as soon as reasonably practical following a
Termination by the participant other than for Cause in connection with or within 12 months of a Change in Control) one share of
Common Stock for each Earned PSU (as adjusted under the Plan, as applicable) and such Earned PSU shall be cancelled upon such
delivery. The Company shall either (a) deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Participant a certificate or certificates therefor, registered
in the Participant’s name or (b) cause such shares of Common Stock to be credited to the Participant’s account at the third party plan
administrator. Notwithstanding anything in this Performance Stock Unit Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall have no
obligation to issue or transfer any shares of Common Stock as contemplated by this Performance Stock Unit Agreement unless and until
such issuance or transfer complies with all relevant provisions of law and the requirements of any stock exchange on which the
Company’s shares of Common Stock are listed for trading. Notwithstanding the terms of the Plan, “Change in Control” hereunder shall
be limited to such transactions that meet the definition used for purposes of Treas. Reg. Sections 1.409A-3(a)(5) and 1.409A-3(i)(5).

4. Treatment of Performance Stock Units Upon Termination. Treatment of Performance Stock Units upon a
Participant’s Termination shall be as set forth in the Grant Notice. For purposes of the Performance Stock Units, the Participant’s
employment relationship will be considered terminated as of the date of the Participant’s Termination (regardless of the reason for such
termination and whether or not later found to be invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is
employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any), and such date will not be extended by any notice period (e.g.,
the Participant’s period of employment would not include any contractual notice period or any period of “garden leave” or similar period
mandated under
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employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any);
the Committee shall have the exclusive discretion to determine when the Participant is no longer actively providing services for purposes
of the Performance Stock Unit grant (including whether the Participant may still be considered to be providing service while on a leave
of absence).

5. Company; Participant.

(a) The term “Company” as used in this Performance Stock Unit Agreement with reference to service shall
include the Company and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates.

(b) Whenever the word “Participant” is used in any provision of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement under
circumstances where the provision should logically be construed to apply to the executors, the administrators, or the person or persons to
whom the Performance Stock Units may be transferred in accordance with Section 13(b) of the Plan, the word “Participant” shall be
deemed to include such person or person.

6. Non-Transferability. The Performance Stock Units are not transferable by the Participant except to Permitted
Transferees in accordance with Section 13(b) of the Plan. Except as otherwise provided herein, no assignment or transfer of the
Performance Stock Units, or of the rights represented thereby, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, shall
vest in the assignee or transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but immediately upon such assignment or transfer the
Performance Stock Units shall terminate and become of no further effect.

7. Rights as Shareholder. Subject to any dividend equivalent payments to be provided to the Participant in
accordance with the Grant Notice and Section 13(c)(iii) of the Plan, the Participant or a Permitted Transferee of the Performance Stock
Units shall have no rights as a shareholder with respect to any share of Common Stock underlying a Performance Stock Unit unless and
until the Participant shall have become the holder of record or the beneficial owner of such share of Common Stock, and no adjustment
shall be made for dividends or distributions or other rights in respect of such share of Common Stock for which the record date is prior to
the date upon which the Participant shall become the holder of record or the beneficial owner thereof.

8. Tax Withholding.

(a) The Participant acknowledges that, regardless of any action taken by the Company or, if different, the
Participant’s employer (the “Employer”), the ultimate liability for all income tax, social insurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax,
payment on account or other tax-related items related to the Participant’s participation in the Plan and legally applicable to the Participant
(“Tax-Related Items”) is and remains the Participant’s responsibility and may exceed the amount actually withheld by the Company or
the Employer. The Participant further acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (i) make no representations or undertakings
regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related Items in connection with any aspect of the Performance Stock Units, including, but not
limited to, the grant or vesting of the Performance Stock Units, the subsequent sale of shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to
such settlement; and (ii) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the terms of the grant or any aspect of Performance
Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s liability for Tax-Related Items or achieve any particular tax result. The Participant
shall not make any claim against the Company, the Employer, or their respective board, officers or employees related to Tax-Related
Items arising from the Performance Stock Units. Further, if the Participant is subject to Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction,
the Participant acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold or
account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.
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(b) Prior to the relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant agrees to make adequate
arrangements satisfactory to the Company and/or the Employer to satisfy all Tax-Related Items. In this regard, the Participant authorizes
the Company and/or the Employer, or their respective agents, to satisfy any applicable withholding obligations with regard to Tax-
Related Items by withholding from the number of shares of Common Stock otherwise deliverable pursuant to the settlement of the
Performance Stock Units a number of shares of Common Stock with a Fair Market Value, on the date that the Performance Stock Units
are settled, equal to such withholding liability; provided that the number of such shares may not have a Fair Market Value greater than
the minimum required statutory withholding liability unless determined by the Committee not to result in adverse accounting
consequences. Alternatively, if the Company determines in its sole discretion that withholding shares of Common Stock is not feasible
under applicable tax or securities laws or has materially adverse accounting consequences, the Participant authorizes the Company and/or
the Employer, or their respective agents, at their discretion and with no obligation to do so, to satisfy any applicable withholding
obligations with regard to Tax-Related Items by one or a combination of the following:

(i) withholding from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation paid to the Participant by the
Company or the Employer;

(ii) withholding from proceeds of the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired at settlement either
through a voluntary sale or through a mandatory sale arranged by the Company (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this
authorization) without further consent; and/or

(iii) any other methods approved by the Committee and permitted by applicable laws.

(c) The Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering statutory or other withholding
rates, including minimum or maximum rates applicable in my jurisdiction(s). In the event of over-withholding, the Participant may
receive a refund of any over- withheld amount in cash (with no entitlement to the equivalent in Common Stock), or if not refunded, the
Participant may seek a refund from the local tax authorities. In the event of under-withholding, the Participant may be required to pay
any additional Tax-Related Items directly to the applicable tax authority or to the Company and/or the Employer. If the obligation for
Tax-Related Items is satisfied by withholding in shares of Common Stock, the Participant is deemed, for tax purposes, to have been
issued the full number of shares of Common Stock subject to the Earned PSUs, notwithstanding that a number of the shares of Common
Stock is held back solely for the purpose of paying the Tax-Related Items. The Company may refuse to issue or deliver the shares of
Common Stock or the proceeds of the sale of shares of Common Stock, if the Participant fails to comply with his or her obligations in
connection with the Tax-Related Items.
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9. Notice. Every notice or other communication relating to this Performance Stock Unit Agreement between the
Company and the Participant shall be in writing, which may include by electronic mail, and shall be mailed to or delivered to the party
for whom it is intended at such address as may from time to time be designated by such party in a notice mailed or delivered to the other
party as herein provided; provided that, unless and until some other address be so designated, all notices or communications by the
Participant to the Company shall be mailed or delivered to the Company at its principal executive office, to the attention of the
Company’s General Counsel or its designee, and all notices or communications by the Company to the Participant may be given to the
Participant personally or may be mailed to the Participant at the Participant’s last known address, as reflected in the Company’s records.
Notwithstanding the above, all notices and communications between the Participant and any third-party plan administrator shall be
mailed, delivered, transmitted or sent in accordance with the procedures established by such third-party plan administrator and
communicated to the Participant from time to time.

10. No Right to Continued Service. This Performance Stock Unit Agreement does not confer upon the
Participant any right to continue as an employee or other service provider to the Company or, if different, the Employer. The grant of
Performance Stock Units is an exceptional, voluntary and one-time benefit and does not create any contractual or other right to receive
any other grant of other Award (including Performance Stock Units) under the Plan in the future, or benefits in lieu of Performance Stock
Units, even if Performance Stock Units have been granted in the past. The grant of the Performance Stock Units does not form or amend
part of the Participant’s entitlement to remuneration or benefits in terms of his or her employment or other service relationship with the
Company or, if different, the Employer, if any, at any time.

11. Nature of Grant. In accepting the Performance Stock Units, the Participant acknowledges, understands and
agrees that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature, and may be
modified, amended, suspended or terminated by the Company at any time, to the extent permitted by the Plan;

(b) all decisions with respect to future Performance Stock Units or other grants, if any, will be at the sole
discretion of the Company;

(c) the Participant is voluntarily participating in the Plan;

(d) the Performance Stock Units and any shares of Common Stock acquired upon settlement, and the
income and value of same, are not intended to replace any pension rights or compensation;

(e) the Performance Stock Units and any shares of Common Stock acquired upon settlement, and the
income and value of same, are not part of normal or expected compensation for purposes of, including, but not limited to, calculating any
severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, end-of-service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, leave-related
payments, holiday pay, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar mandatory payments;

(f) the future value of the shares of Common Stock underlying the Performance Stock Units is unknown,
indeterminable, and cannot be predicted with certainty;

(g) if the Performance Stock Units become Earned PSUs and the Participant acquires shares of Common
Stock, the value of such Common Stock may increase or decrease;
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(h) unless otherwise agreed with the Company in writing, the Performance Stock Units and the shares of
Common Stock subject to the Performance Stock Units, and the income and value of same, are not granted as consideration for, or in
connection with, the service the Participant may provide as a director of any Subsidiary;

(i) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Performance
Stock Units resulting from a Termination (for any reason whatsoever, whether or not later found to be invalid or in breach of employment
laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or rendering services or the terms of the Participant’s employment or service
agreement, if any);

(j) unless otherwise provided in the Plan or by the Company in its sole discretion, the Performance
Stock Units and the benefits evidenced by this Performance Stock Unit Agreement do not create any entitlement to have the Performance
Stock Units or any such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, another company nor to be exchanged, cashed out or substituted for, in
connection with any corporate transaction affecting the shares of Common Stock;

(k) neither the Company nor the Employer shall be liable for any foreign exchange rate fluctuation
between the Participant’s local currency and the United States Dollar that may affect the value of the Performance Stock Units or of any
amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the settlement of the Performance Stock Units or the subsequent sale of any shares of
Common Stock acquired upon settlement; and

(l) the Company is not providing any tax, legal or financial advice, nor is the Company making any
recommendations regarding the Participant’s participation in the Plan or the Participant’s acquisition or sale of the shares of Common
Stock. The Participant should consult with his or her personal tax, legal and financial advisors regarding his or her participation in the
Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.

12. Data Privacy.

The Company is located at 100 Overlook Center, Suite 101 Princeton, New Jersey 08540, USA and grants
employees of the Company, the opportunity to participate in the Plan, at the Company's sole discretion. If the Participant would like
to participate in the Plan, the Participant understands that he or she should review the following information about the Company’s
data processing practices and declare his or her consent.

(a) Data Collection and Usage. The Company collects, processes and uses the Participant's personal data,
including, but without limitation, name, home address and telephone number, date of birth, social insurance number or other
identification number (e.g., resident registration number), passport number, salary, citizenship, job title, any shares of Common Stock
or directorships held in the Company, and details of all awards, canceled, vested, or outstanding in the Participant's favor, which the
Company receives from the Participant or the Participant's Employer. If the Company offers the Participant the opportunity to
participate in the Plan, then the Company will collect the Participant's personal data for purposes of allocating stock and
implementing, administering and managing the Plan. The Company’s legal basis for the processing of the Participant’s personal data
would be the Participant's consent.

(b) Stock Plan Administration Service Providers and International Data Transfers. The Company intends to
transfer participant data to Fidelity Stock Plan Services, LLC, or its affiliate,
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an independent service provider based in the United States, which assists the Company with the implementation, administration and
management of the Plan. In the future, the Company may select different service provider(s) and share the Participant's personal
data with another company that serves in similar capacities. The Company’s service providers may open an account for the
Participant. The Participant will be asked to agree on separate terms and data processing practices with the applicable service
providers, which, as it relates to Plan administration service provider, is a condition to the Participant's ability to participate in the
Plan. The Company and its service providers are based in the United States. If the Participant is outside of the United States, the
Participant should note that his or her country may have enacted data privacy laws that are different from the United States.

(c) Data Retention. The Company will use the Participant's personal data only as long as is necessary to
implement, administer and manage the Participant's participation in the Plan or as required to comply with legal or regulatory
obligations, including under tax and security laws. When the Company no longer needs the Participant's personal data, the Company
will remove it from it from its systems.

(d) Voluntariness and Consequences of Consent Denial or Withdrawal. The Participant's participation in the
Plan and the Participant's grant of consent is purely voluntary. The Participant may deny or withdraw his or her consent at any time.
If the Participant does not consent, or if the Participant withdraws his or her consent, the Participant cannot participate in the Plan.
This would not affect the Participant's salary as an employee; the Participant would merely forfeit the opportunities associated with
the Plan.

(e) Data Subject Rights. The Participant has a number of rights under data privacy laws in his or her country.
Depending on where the Participant is based, his or her rights may include the right to (i) request access or copies of personal data
the Company processes, (ii) rectification of incorrect data, (iii) deletion of data, (iv) restrictions on processing, (v) portability of data,
(vi) to lodge complaints with competent authorities in the Participant’s country, and/or (vii) a list with the names and addresses of any
potential recipients of the Participant’s personal data. To receive clarification regarding the Participant’s rights or to exercise his or
her rights, the Participant should please contact the Company at Attn: Data Privacy Office/IT, 100 Overlook Center, Suite 101
Princeton, New Jersey 08540, USA

13. Binding Effect. This Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors,
administrators and successors of the parties hereto.

14. Waiver and Amendments. Except as otherwise set forth in Section 12 of the Plan, any waiver, alteration,
amendment or modification of any of the terms of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be valid only if made in writing and
signed by the parties hereto; provided, however, that any such waiver, alteration, amendment or modification is consented to on the
Company’s behalf by the Committee. No waiver by either of the parties hereto of their rights hereunder shall be deemed to constitute a
waiver with respect to any subsequent occurrences or transactions hereunder unless such waiver specifically states that it is to be
construed as a continuing waiver.

15. Governing Law. This Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance
with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. Notwithstanding anything contained in
this Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Grant Notice or the Plan to the contrary, if any suit or claim is instituted by the Participant
or the Company relating to this Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Grant Notice or the Plan, the Participant hereby submits to the
exclusive jurisdiction of and venue in the courts of Delaware.



13

[* * *]=[CONFIDENTIAL PORTION HAS BEEN OMITTED BECAUSE IT (I) IS NOT MATERIAL AND (II) WOULD BE
COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED.]

16. Plan. The terms and provisions of the Plan are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of a conflict or
inconsistency between the terms and provisions of the Plan and the provisions of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement (including the
Grant Notice and Addendum), the Plan shall govern and control.

17. Section 409A. The Performance Stock Units are intended to comply with the provisions of Section 409A of
the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and the Grant Notice and Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be interpreted
consistent with such intent. Without limiting the foregoing, the Committee will have the right to amend the terms and conditions of the
Grant Notice and/or the Performance Stock Unit Agreement in any respect as may be necessary or appropriate to comply with Section
409A of the Code or any regulations promulgated thereunder, including without limitation by delaying the payments contemplated
hereunder. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Grant Notice or Performance Stock Unit Agreement to the contrary, if the
Participant is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code, and is subject to U.S. federal income tax, no
payments in respect of any Performance Stock Unit that would otherwise be payable upon the Participant’s “separation from service” (as
defined in Section 409A of the Code) will be made to the Participant prior to the date that is six months after the date of the Participant’s
“separation from service” or, if earlier, the Participant’s date of death. Following any applicable six-month delay, all such delayed
payments will be paid in a single lump sum on the earliest date permitted under Section 409A of the Code that is also a business day. The
Participant is solely responsible and liable for the satisfaction of all taxes and penalties under Section 409A of the Code that may be
imposed on or in respect of the Participant in connection with the Performance Stock Units, and the Company will not be liable to any
Participant for any payment made under the Plan or this Performance Stock Unit Agreement that is determined to result in an additional
tax, penalty or interest under Section 409A of the Code, nor for reporting in good faith any payment made in respect of the Performance
Stock Units as an amount includible in gross income under Section 409A of the Code.

18. Imposition of Other Requirements. The Company reserves the right to impose other requirements on the
Participant’s participation in the Plan, on the Performance Stock Units and on any shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan, to
the extent the Company determines it is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require the Participant to sign
any additional agreements or undertakings that may be necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

19. Electronic Delivery and Acceptance. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any
documents related to current or future participation in the Plan by electronic means. The Participant hereby consents to receive such
documents by electronic delivery and agrees to participate in the Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained
by the Company or a third party designated by the Company.

20. Compliance with Law. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan or this Performance Stock Unit
Agreement, unless there is an exemption from any registration, qualification or other legal requirement applicable to the shares of
Common Stock, the Company shall not be required to deliver any shares of Common Stock issuable in respect of Earned PSUs prior to
the completion of any registration or qualification of the shares of Common Stock under any U.S. or non-U.S. local, state or federal
securities or exchange control law or regulation or under rulings or regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) 
or of any other governmental regulatory body, or prior to obtaining any approval or other clearance from any U.S. or non-U.S. local, state 
or federal governmental agency, which registration, qualification or approval the Company shall, in its absolute discretion, deem 
necessary or advisable.  The Participant understands that the Company is under no obligation to register or qualify the shares of Common 
Stock with the SEC or any U.S. or non-U.S. state or other securities commission or to seek approval or clearance from any governmental
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authority for the issuance or sale of the shares of Common Stock and the inability of the Company to obtain approval from any
regulatory body having authority deemed by the Company to be necessary for the lawful issuance and sale of any shares of Common
Stock pursuant to the Performance Stock Units shall relieve the Company of any liability with respect to the non-issuance or sale of the
Shares as to which such approval shall not have been obtained.

21. Language. The Participant acknowledges that he or she is sufficiently proficient in English to understand the
terms and conditions of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement. Furthermore, if the Participant has received this Performance Stock
Unit Agreement, or any other document related to the Performance Stock Units and/or the Plan translated into a language other than
English and if the meaning of the translated version is different than the English version, the English version will control.

22. Addendum. Notwithstanding any provisions in this Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Performance
Stock Units shall be subject to any special terms and conditions set forth in any Addendum to this Performance Stock Unit Agreement
for the Participant’s country. Moreover, if the Participant relocates to one of the countries included in the Addendum, the special terms
and conditions for such country will apply to the Participant, to the extent the Committee determines that the application of such terms
and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons. The Addendum constitutes part of this Performance Stock
Unit Agreement.

23. Insider Trading/Market Abuse Restrictions. Depending on the Participant's country, the Participant may be
subject to insider trading restrictions and/or market abuse laws in applicable jurisdictions, which may affect the Participant's ability to,
directly or indirectly, acquire, sell or attempt to sell shares of Common Stock or otherwise dispose of shares of Common Stock or rights
to shares of Common Stock (e.g., the Performance Stock Units) under the Plan during such times as the Participant is considered to have
“inside information” regarding the Company (as defined by the laws in the applicable jurisdictions or the Participant's country). The
Participant could be prohibited from (i) disclosing the inside information to any third party, which may include fellow employees; (ii)
“tipping” third parties or causing them to otherwise buy or sell securities; and (iii) cancelling or amending orders the Participant placed
before he or she possessed inside information. Any restrictions under these laws or regulations are separate from and in addition to any
restrictions that may be imposed under any applicable Company insider trading policy. The Participant is responsible for ensuring the
Participant's compliance with any applicable restrictions and is advised to speak with his or her personal legal advisor on this matter.

24. Exchange Control, Tax And / Or Foreign Asset/Account Reporting. The Participant acknowledges that,
depending on his or her country, the Participant may be subject to foreign asset/account, exchange control and/or tax reporting
requirements as a result of the acquisition, holding and/or transfer of shares of Common Stock or cash derived from his or her
participation in the Plan, in, to and/or from a brokerage/bank account or legal entity located outside the Participant’s country. The
applicable laws of the Participant’s country may require that the Participant report such accounts, assets, the balances therein, the value
thereof and/or the transactions related thereto to the applicable authorities in such country. The Participant acknowledges that he or she is
responsible for ensuring compliance with any applicable foreign asset/account, exchange control and tax reporting requirements and is
advised to consult his or her personal legal advisor on this matter.

25. Severability. It is the desire and intent of the parties hereto that the provisions of this Performance Stock Unit
Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the laws and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which
enforcement is sought. Accordingly, if any particular provision of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall be adjudicated by a court
of competent
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jurisdiction to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable for any reason, such provision, as to such jurisdiction, shall be ineffective, without
invalidating the remaining provisions of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such
provision in any other jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such provision could be more narrowly drawn so as not to be
invalid, prohibited or unenforceable in such jurisdiction, it shall, as to such jurisdiction, be so narrowly drawn, without invalidating the
remaining provisions of this Performance Stock Unit Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any other
jurisdiction.

26. Entire Agreement. This Performance Stock Unit Agreement (including the Addendum), the Grant Notice and
the Plan constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter contained herein and supersede all prior
agreements and understandings of the parties, oral and written, with respect to such subject matter.
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ADDENDUM TO THE
PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE

UNDER THE
CERTARA, INC.

2020 INCENTIVE PLAN

Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Addendum have the meanings set forth in the Plan and/or Agreement.

Terms and Conditions

This Addendum includes additional terms and conditions that govern the Performance Stock Units granted to the Participant under the
Plan if the Participant resides and/or works in one of the countries listed below.

If the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which he or she is currently residing and/or working or
transfers to another country after the grant of the Performance Stock Units, or is considered a resident of another country for local law
purposes, the Company shall, in its sole discretion, determine to what extent the terms and conditions contained herein shall apply to the
Participant under these circumstances.

Notifications

This Addendum also includes information regarding exchange controls and certain other issues of which the Participant should be aware
with respect to his or her participation in the Plan. The information is based on the securities, exchange control and other laws in effect in
the respective countries as of December 2020. Such laws are often complex and change frequently. As a result, the Company strongly
recommends that the Participant not rely on the information in this Addendum as the only source of information relating to the
consequences of the Participant’s participation in the Plan because the information may be out of date at the time that the Performance
Stock Units become Earned PSUs or at the time the Participant sells shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan.

The information contained herein is general in nature and may not apply to the Participant’s particular situation and the Company is not
in a position to assure the Participant of any particular result. Accordingly, the Participant is advised to seek appropriate professional
advice as to how the relevant laws in the Participant’s country may apply to his or her situation.

If the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which he or she is currently residing and/or working or
transfers to another country after the grant of the Performance Stock Units, or is considered a resident of another country for local law
purposes, the information contained herein may not be applicable to the Participant in the same manner.

CANADA

Terms and Conditions

Performance Stock Units Payable Only in Shares. Notwithstanding Section 3 of the Agreement, the
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grant of the Performance Stock Units does not provide any right for the Participant to receive a cash payment, and settlement of the
Performance Stock Units is payable only in shares of Common Stock.

The following provisions will apply to Participants who are residents of Quebec:

Language Consent. The parties acknowledge that it is their express wish that the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, as well as all
documents, notices and legal proceeds entered into, given or instituted pursuant hereto or relating directly or indirectly hereto, be drawn
up in English.

Consentement relatif à la langue utilisée: Les parties reconnaissent avoir exigé la rédaction en anglais de cette convention, ainsi que de
tous documents, avis et procédures judiciaires, exécutés, donnés ou intentés en vertu de, ou liés directement ou indirectement à, la
présente convention.

Data Privacy Notice. This provision supplements Section 12 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:

The Participant hereby authorizes the Company and the Company’s representatives to discuss with and obtain all relevant information
from all personnel, professional or not, involved in the administration and operation of the Plan. The Participant further authorizes the
Employer and the Company to disclose and discuss the Plan with their respective advisors. The Participant further authorizes the
Employer, and the Company to record such information and to keep such information in the Participant’s employee file.

Notifications

Securities Law Notification. The Participant acknowledges that he or she is permitted to sell Shares acquired under the Plan, provided
the sale of the Shares acquired under the Plan takes place outside of Canada.

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. The Participant is required to report any foreign specified property (including shares of
Common Stock acquired under the Plan) with a value exceeding C$100,000 on Form T1135 (Foreign Income Verification Statement) on
an annual basis. The statement is due at the same time as the Participant’s annual tax return. The Performance Stock Units must be
reported (generally at a nil cost) if the $100,000 cost threshold is exceeded because of other foreign specified property the Participant
holds at any time during the year. If Shares are acquired, their cost generally is the adjusted cost base (“ACB”) of the Shares. The ACB
ordinarily would equal the fair market value of the shares of Common Stock at the time of acquisition, but if the Participant owns other
shares of Common Stock, this ACB may have to be averaged with the ACB of the other shares of Common Stock. The form must be
filed by April 30 of the following year. The Participant is strongly advised to check with his or her personal advisor regarding the
Participant’s reporting obligations.

FRANCE

Terms and Conditions

Performance Stock Units Not Tax-Qualified. The Participant understands that the Performance Stock Units are not intended to be
French tax-qualified.

Language Consent. By accepting the Award, the Participant confirms that he or she has read and understood the documents relating to
the Performance Stock Units (the Grant Notice, the Plan, and the Performance Stock Unit Agreement) which were provided in the
English language. The Participant accepts the terms of these documents accordingly.
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Consentement relatif à la langue utilisée: En acceptant l’Attribution, le Bénéficiaire confirme qu’il ou qu’elle a lu et compris les
documents afférents aux Attributions Gratuites d’Actions (la Notification d’Attribution, le Plan et les Termes de l’Attribution, ainsi que
la présente Annexe) qui sont produits en langue anglaise. Le Bénéficiaire accepte les termes de ces documents en connaissance de cause.

NOTIFICATIONS

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. If the Participant retains shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan outside of
France or maintains a foreign bank account, the Participant is required to report such to the French tax authorities when filing his or her
annual tax return. Further, French residents with foreign account balances exceeding €1,000,000 may have additional monthly reporting
obligations.

GERMANY

Notifications

Exchange Control Notification. Cross-border payments in excess of €12,500 (including transactions made in connection with the sale
of securities) must be reported monthly to the German Federal Bank (Bundesbank). If the Participant makes or receives a payment in
excess of this amount in connection with the Participant’s participation in the Plan, the Participant must report the payment to
Bundesbank electronically using the “General Statistics Reporting Portal” (“Allgemeines Meldeportal Statistik”) available via
Bundesbank’s website (www.bundesbank.de).

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. If the acquisition of shares of Common Stock under the Plan leads to a “qualified
participation” at any point during the calendar year, the Participant understands that he or she will need to report the acquisition when the
Participant files his or her tax return for the relevant year. A qualified participation is attained if (i) the value of the shares of Common
Stock acquired exceeds a certain threshold or (ii) in the unlikely event the Participant holds shares of Common Stock exceeding a certain
threshold of the Company’s total Common Stock. However, provided the shares of Common Stock are listed on a recognized stock
exchange (e.g., the Nasdaq Stock Market) and the Participant owns less than 1% of the Company, this requirement will not apply. The
Participant should consult with his or her personal tax advisor to ensure the Participant complies with applicable reporting obligations.

INDIA

Notifications

Exchange Control Notification. It is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with any applicable exchange control regulations in
India. The Participant must repatriate the proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock or the receipt of any dividends (if
applicable) to India within a certain time period after receipt. The Participant must retain the foreign inward remittance certificate
received from the bank where the foreign currency is deposited in the event that the Reserve Bank of India or the Employer requests
proof of repatriation. It is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with these requirements.
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Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. The Participant is required to declare any foreign bank accounts for which Participant
has signing authority and any foreign financial assets (including shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) in his or her annual
tax return. It is the Participant’s responsibility to comply with this reporting obligation and the Participant should consult his or her
personal advisor in this regard.

ITALY

Terms and Conditions

Plan Document Acknowledgment. In accepting the grant of Performance Stock Units, the Participant acknowledges that they have
received a copy of the Plan and the Performance Stock Unit Agreement and have reviewed the Plan and the Performance Stock Unit
Agreement in their entirety and fully understand and accept all provisions of the Plan and the Performance Stock Unit Agreement. The
Participant further acknowledge that they have read and specifically and expressly approve the following section of the Performance
Stock Unit Agreement: Earned PSUs, Settlement of Performance Stock Units, Treatment of Performance Stock Units Upon Termination,
Tax Withholding, Governing Law, Imposition of Other Requirements, Compliance with Law, and Data Privacy.

Notifications

Foreign Asset / Account Reporting. Italian residents who, at any time during the fiscal year, hold foreign financial assets (e.g., cash,
shares of Common Stock, etc.) which may generate income taxable in Italy are required to report such investments or assets on their
annual tax returns (UNICO Form, RW Schedule) or on a special form if no tax return is due. The same reporting duties apply to Italian
residents who are beneficial owners of the foreign financial assets pursuant to Italian money laundering provisions, even if they do not
directly hold the foreign asset abroad.

Tax on Foreign Financial Assets. The value of any shares of Common Stock (and certain other foreign assets) the Participant holds
outside of Italy will be subject to a foreign financial assets tax. Financial assets include shares of Common Stock acquired under the
Plan. The taxable amount will be the fair market value of the financial assets assessed at the end of each calendar year.

JAPAN

Terms and Conditions

Compliance with Law. By accepting the Performance Stock Units, the Participant agrees to comply with all applicable Japanese laws
and report and pay any and all applicable Tax-Related Items associated with the receipt of Performance Stock Units and any payment
made to the Participant upon settlement of Performance Stock Units. The Participant acknowledges that the Japanese tax authorities are
aware that employees of Japanese affiliates of U.S. companies may earn substantial income as a result of participation in an equity
incentive plan, and may audit the tax returns of such employees to confirm that they have correctly reported the resulting income.

Notifications

Exchange Control Notification. Japanese residents acquiring shares of Common Stock valued at more than ¥100,000,000 in a single
transaction must file a Securities Acquisition Report with the Ministry of Finance through the Bank of Japan within 20 days of the
acquisition of shares of Common Stock.
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Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. If the Participant holds assets outside of Japan with a total net fair market value
exceeding ¥50,000,000 as of December 31 (each year), the Participant is required to comply with annual tax reporting obligations with
respect to such assets by March 15 of the following year. The Participant is advised to consult with a personal tax advisor to ensure
compliance with applicable reporting requirements.

NETHERLANDS

There are no country-specific provisions.

PHILIPPINES

Terms and Conditions

Settlement of Performance Stock Units. Issuance of shares of Common Stock is conditioned upon the Company determining that an
exemption exists or the Company securing and maintaining all necessary approvals from the Philippines Securities and Exchange
Commission to permit the operation of the Plan in the Philippines, as determined by the Company in its sole discretion. If or to the extent
the Company is unable to determine that a satisfactory exemption applies or the Company is unable to secure and maintain all necessary
approvals, no shares of Common Stock subject to the Performance Stock Units for which an exemption cannot be obtained or a
registration cannot be completed or maintained shall be issued. In this case, the Company retains the discretion to settle any Performance
Stock Units in cash in an amount equal to the fair market value of the shares of Common Stock less any Tax-Related Items.

Notifications

Securities Law Notice. The offer under the Plan is being made pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Philippines
Securities Regulation Code that has been approved by the Philippines Securities and Exchange Commission.

The risks of participating in the Plan include (without limitation), the risk of fluctuation in the price of the shares of Common Stock on
the Nasdaq Global Select Market and the risk of currency fluctuations between the U.S. Dollar and the Participant's local currency. The
value of any shares of Common Stock the Participant may acquire under the Plan may decrease below the value of the shares of
Common Stock at settlement (on which the Participant is required to pay taxes) and fluctuations in foreign exchange rates between the
Participant's local currency and the U.S. Dollar may affect the value any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the subsequent sale
of any shares of Common Stock acquired upon settlement.

The Company is not making any representations, projections or assurances about the value of the shares of Common Stock now or in the
future.

For further information on risk factors impacting the Company's business that may affect the value of the shares of Common Stock, you
may refer to the risk factors discussion in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, which are
filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and are available online at www.sec.gov, as well as on the Company’s website
at www.certara.com. In addition, the Participant may receive, free of charge, a copy of the Company's Annual Report, Quarterly Reports
or any other reports, proxy statements or communications distributed to the Company’s stockholders by contacting the Company’s legal
department (Richard Traynor at richard.traynor@certara.com). The telephone number at the executive offices is 609-716-7900.
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The Participant acknowledges that they are permitted to sell shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan through the designated
Plan broker appointed by the Company (or such other broker to whom the Participant may transfer the shares of Common Stock),
provided that such sale takes place outside of the Philippines through the facilities of the Nasdaq Global Select Market on which the
shares of Common Stock are listed.

POLAND

Notifications

Foreign Asset/Accounting Reporting Notification. Polish residents holding foreign securities (including shares of Common Stock
acquired under the Plan) and maintaining accounts abroad must report information to the National Bank of Poland on transactions and
balances of the securities and cash deposited in such accounts if the value of such transactions or balances exceeds PLN 7,000,000. If
required, the reports must be filed on a quarterly basis on special forms available on the website of the National Bank of Poland.

Exchange Control Notification. If the Participant transfers funds into Poland in excess of a certain threshold in connection with the sale
of shares of Common Stock under the Plan, the funds must be transferred via a bank account held at a bank in Poland. the Participant is
required to retain the documents connected with a foreign exchange transaction for a period of five (5) years, as measured from the end
of the tax year in which such transaction occurred.

PORTUGAL

Terms and Conditions

Consent to Receive Information in English. The Participant hereby expressly declare that they have full knowledge of the English
language and have read, understood and fully accepted and agreed with the terms and conditions established in the Plan and Performance
Stock Unit Agreement.

Conhecimento da Lingua. Contratado, pelo presente instrumento, declara expressamente que tem pleno conhecimento da língua
inglesa e que leu, compreendeu e livremente aceitou e concordou com os termos e condições estabelecidas no Plano e no Acordo.

Notifications

Exchange Control Information. If the Participant receives shares of Common Stock upon vesting and settlement of the Performance
Stock Units, the acquisition of the shares of Common Stock should be reported to the Banco de Portugal for statistical purposes. If the
shares of Common Stock are deposited with a commercial bank or financial intermediary in Portugal, such bank or financial
intermediary will submit the report on the Participant’s behalf. If the shares of Common Stock are not deposited with a commercial bank
or financial intermediary in Portugal, the Participant is responsible for submitting the report to the Banco de Portugal.

SPAIN

Terms and Conditions

Nature of Grant. This provision supplements Section 11 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:
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In accepting the Performance Stock Units, the Participant consents to participate in the Plan and acknowledges having received and read
a copy of the Plan.

The Participant understands that the Company has unilaterally, gratuitously and discretionally decided to grant Performance Stock Units
under the Plan to individuals who may be employees of the Company throughout the world. The decision is a limited decision that is
entered into upon the express assumption and condition that any grant will not bind the Company. Consequently, the Participant
understands that the Performance Stock Units are granted on the assumption and condition that such Performance Stock Units and any
shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan shall not become a part of any employment contract and shall not be considered a
mandatory benefit, salary for any purposes (including severance compensation) or any other right whatsoever. In addition, the Participant
understands that the Performance Stock Units would not granted but for the assumptions and conditions referred to above; thus, the
Participant acknowledges and freely accepts that should any or all of the assumptions be mistaken or should any of the conditions not be
met for any reason, then any grant of the Performance Stock Units shall be null and void.

Notifications

Exchange Control Notification. The acquisition, ownership and sale of shares of Common Stock under the Plan must be declared for
statistical purposes to the Spanish Dirección General de Comercio e Inversiones (the “DGCI”), the Bureau for Commerce and
Investments, which is a department of the Ministry of Economy and Competitiveness. Generally, the declaration must be made each
January for shares of Common Stock owned as of December 31st of the prior year, by means of a D-6 form; however, if the value of the
shares of Common Stock acquired or sold exceeds €1,502,530 (or if the Participant holds 10% or more of the share capital of the
Company or such other amount that would entitle the Participant to join the Company’s board of directors), the declaration must be filed
also within one month of the acquisition or sale, as applicable.

The Participant is required to declare electronically to the Bank of Spain any securities accounts (including brokerage accounts held
abroad), foreign instruments (including any shares of Common Stock acquired under the Plan) and any transactions with non-Spanish
residents (including any payments of shares of Common Stock made to the Participant by the Company), depending on the amount of the
transactions during the relevant year or the balances in such accounts as of December 31st of the relevant year. Generally, the report is
required on an annual basis (by January 20 of each year). The Participant should consult with his or her personal advisor to ensure that
the Participant is properly complying with his or her reporting obligations.

Foreign Asset/Account Reporting Notification. If the Participant holds rights or assets (e.g., shares of Common Stock or cash held in a
bank or brokerage account) outside of Spain with a value in excess of €50,000 per type of right or asset (e.g., shares of Common Stock,
cash, etc.) as of December 31 each year, the Participant is required to report certain information regarding such rights and assets on tax
form 720. After such rights and/or assets are initially reported, the reporting obligation will only apply for subsequent years if the value
of any previously-reported rights or assets increases by more than €20,000. If reporting is required, the reporting must be completed by
the following March 31. The Participant should consult his or her personal tax advisor for details regarding this requirement.

Securities Law Notification. The Performance Stock Units described in this document do not qualify as securities under Spanish
regulations. No “offer of securities to the public,” within the meaning of Spanish law, has taken place or will take place in the Spanish
territory. The Plan, the Performance Stock Unit
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Agreement, and any other documents evidencing the award of Performance Stock Units have not been, nor will they be, registered with
the Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores (Spanish Securities Exchange Commission), and none of those documents constitutes a
public offering prospectus.

SWEDEN

Terms and Conditions

Tax Withholding. This provision supplements Section 8 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:

Without limiting the Company’s and the Employer’s authority to satisfy their obligations for Tax-Related Items as set forth in Section 8
of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, by accepting the Performance Stock Units, the Participant authorizes the Company and/or the
Employer to withhold shares of Common Stock or to sell shares of Common Stock otherwise deliverable to the Participant upon
settlement of the Performance Stock Units to satisfy any Tax-Related Items, regardless of whether the Company and/or the Employer
have an obligation to withhold such Tax-Related Items.

SWITZERLAND

Notifications

Securities Law Notification. Because the offer of the Performance Stock Units is considered a private offering in Switzerland; it is not
subject to registration in Switzerland. Neither this document nor any other materials relating to the Performance Stock Units (i) constitute
a prospectus according to articles 35 et seq. of the Swiss Federal Act on Financial Services (“FinSA”), (ii) may be publicly distributed
nor otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland to any person other than the Participant or (iii) has been or will be filed with,
approved or supervised by any Swiss reviewing body according to article 51 FinSA or any Swiss regulatory authority, including the
Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority.

UNITED KINGDOM

Settlement. The following provision supplements Section 3 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:

Notwithstanding any discretion contained in the Plan or the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Performance Stock Units will not be
settled in cash or a combination of cash and shares of Common Stock. The Performance Stock Units will be settled only in shares of
Common Stock.

Tax Withholding. The following provision supplements Section 8 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement:

Without limitation to Section 8 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement, the Participant agrees to be liable for any Tax-Related Items
related to the Participant's participation in the Plan and legally applicable to the Participant and hereby covenants to pay any such Tax-
Related Items, as and when requested by the Employer or by Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs (“HMRC”) (or any other tax authority
or any other relevant authority). The Participant also agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified the Employer against any Tax-Related
Items that the Employer is required to pay or withhold or have paid or will pay to HMRC (or any other tax authority or any other relevant
authority) on the Participant’s behalf.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant is a director or executive officer, the Participant understands that he or she may not be
able to indemnify the Company for the amount of any Tax-Related
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Items not collected from or paid by the Participant, in case the indemnification could be considered to be a loan. In this case, the Tax-
Related Items not collected or paid may constitute a benefit to the Participant on which additional income tax and National Insurance
contributions (“NICs”) may be payable. The Participant understands that he or she will be responsible for reporting and paying any
income tax due on this additional benefit directly to HMRC under the self-assessment regime and for paying to the Company and/or the
Employer (as appropriate) the amount of any NICs due on this additional benefit, which may also be recovered from the Participant by
any of the means referred to in Section 8 of the Performance Stock Unit Agreement.



Exhibit 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION
CERTARA, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (Principal Executive Officer)

I, William F. Feehery, certify that:

1.            I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Certara, Inc.;

2.            Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.            Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.            The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)          Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

(b)          Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(c)          Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)          Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and

5.            The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors:

(a)          All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

(b)          Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date:  May 8, 2023      /s/ William F. Feehery
William F. Feehery
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2
RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION

CERTARA, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (Principal Financial Officer)

I, John Gallagher, certify that:

1.            I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Certara, Inc.;

2.            Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.            Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.            The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)          Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

(b)          Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(c)          Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)          Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and

5.            The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors:

(a)          All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

(b)          Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date:  May 8, 2023      /s/ John Gallagher
John Gallagher
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

AS REQUIRED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Certara, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2023,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, the undersigned, hereby certify that to the
best of my knowledge:

1.    The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.    The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

May 8, 2023      /s/ William Feehery     
William Feehery
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

AS REQUIRED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Certara, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2023,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, the undersigned, hereby certify that to the
best of my knowledge:

1.    The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.    The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

May 8, 2023 /s/ John Gallagher
John Gallagher
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


